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OPERATING ENTITY:
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PROJECT COST:

FINANCING:

PURPOSE FOR FILING:

DESCRIPTION:

Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC d/b/a Premier Radiology is seeking approval for
the establishment of an outpatient diagnostic center (ODC), acquisition of fixed
magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) equipment, and the initiation of MRI services.
The ODC will be established at 980 Professional Park Drive, Suite E in Clarksville
(Montgomery County). The applicant currently has a mobile MRI operating under
an ODC license at this location four days per week. If approved, the mobile MRI
will continue operations as an ODC at other locations. This will be explained in
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CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW

CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, EXPANSION, AND REPLACEMENT OF
HEALTH CARE INSTITUTIONS

1. Any project that includes the addition of beds, services, or medical
equipment will be reviewed under the standards for those specific activities.

The applicant is requesting the initiation of Magnetic Resonance Imaging
(MRI) services. The applicant provided responses to the applicable criteria
and standards to initiate MRI services.

It appears that this criterion has been met.
3.  For renovation or expansions of an existing licensed health care institution:

a. The applicant should demonstrate that there is an acceptable existing
demand for the proposed project.

The mobile MRI unit currently operating at the site of the proposed project
and all other locations performed 2,538 procedures in 2015, 88.9% or 2,256
procedures were performed at the Clarksville site. The applicant projects
that the proposed fixed MRI unit at the Clarksville ODC site will perform
2,873 procedures in Year 2 of the project.

[t appears that this criterion has been met.

b. The applicant should demonstrate that the existing physical plant’s
condition warrants major renovation or expansion.

To transition the site from one accommodating a mobile MRI unit to one that
will accommodate a fixed unit, 1,072 square feet (SF) of the existing 1,253
square feet of medical office building space will require minor renovation.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

OUTPATIENT DIAGNOSTIC CENTERS

1. The need for outpatient diagnostic services shall be determined on a county by
county basis (with data presented for contiguous counties for comparative
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purposes) and should be projected four years into the future using available
population figures.

The mobile MRI unit performed 2,538 procedures in 2015. 88.9% or
2,256 procedures were performed at the Clarksville site. The patient
origin for the mobile unit was 67.2% Montgomery County residents,
7.4% Stewart County residents, 4.5% Robertson County residents, and
3.4% Houston County residents. Kentucky residents accounted for 6.7%
of patients and the remaining 10.8% of patients resided elsewhere.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

Approval of additional outpatient diagnostic services will be made only when
it is demonstrated that existing services in the applicant’s geographical service
area are not adequate and/or there are special circumstances that require
additional services.

According to data from the HSDA Equipment Registry, the MRI
providers in the Tennessee portion of the proposed service area have only
attained MRI procedure volume that is at approximately 81% of the
optimal MRI utilization standard.

It appears that this criterion has not been met.

Any special needs and circumstances:

a. The needs of both medical and outpatient diagnostic facilities and services
must be analyzed.

The applicant provided historical MRI volumes for units located at other
ODCs, hospitals and physician offices.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

b. Other special needs and circumstances, which might be pertinent, must be
analyzed.

The applicant did not identify any special needs or circumstances.

It appears that this criterion is not applicable.
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c. The applicant must provide evidence that the proposed diagnostic
outpatient services will meet the needs of the potential clientele to be
served.

1. The applicant must demonstrate how emergencies within the
outpatient diagnostic facility will be managed in conformity with
accepted medical practice.

There will be a physician present when patients are receiving diagnostic
services, technologists will be trained to handle emergency situations, a
well-stocked crash cart will be available, and existing hospital transfer
agreements will be maintained.

It appears that the application will meet this criterion.

2. The applicant must establish protocols that will assure that all clinical
procedures performed are medically necessary and will not
unnecessarily duplicate other services.

Existing policies regarding medical necessity and medical
appropriateness will be maintained.

It appears that the application will meet this criterion.

MAGNETIC RESONANCE IMAGING SERVICES

1. Utilization Standards for non-Specialty MRI Units.
a. An applicant proposing a new non-Specialty stationary
MRI service should project a minimum of at least 2160 MRI
procedures in the first year of service, building to a minimum of
2520 procedures per year by the second year of service, and
building to a minimum of 2880 procedures per year by the third
year of service and for every year thereafter.

The proposed project will essentially replace a mobile MRI unit that is
operating four days per week and performed 2,538 procedures in 2015. The
applicant projects 2,817 procedures in Year 1, 2,873 procedures in Year 2,
and 2,931 procedures in Year 3. The mobile unit will continue to operate at
other locations.

It appears that the applicant is on track to meet the MRI standard and meet
this criterion.
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b.  Providers proposing a new non-Specialty mobile MRI service
should project a minimum of at least 360 mobile MRI procedures
in the first year of service per day of operation per week, building
to an annual minimum of 420 procedures per day of operation
per week by the second year of service, and building to a
minimum of 480 procedures per day of operation per week by the
third year of service and for every year thereafter.

c. An exception to the standard number of procedures may
occur as new or improved technology and equipment or new
diagnostic applications for MRI units are developed. An applicant
must demonstrate that the proposed unit offers a unique and
necessary technology for the provision of health care services in
the Service Area.

d. Mobile MRI units shall not be subject to the need standard
in paragraph 1 b if fewer than 150 days of service per year are
provided at a given location. However, the applicant must
demonstrate that existing services in the applicant's Service Area
are not adequate and/or that there are special circumstances that
require these additional services.

e. Hybrid MRI Units. The HSDA may evaluate a CON
application for an MRI “hybrid” Unit (an MRI Unit that is
combined/utilized with medical equipment such as a
megavoltage radiation therapy unit or a positron emission
tomography unit) based on the primary purposes of the Unit.

The criteria identified in items 1.b — 1.e above are not applicable to the
applicant’s proposed project.

2. Access to MRI Units. All applicants for any proposed new MRI
Unit should document that the proposed location is accessible to
approximately 75% of the Service Area’s population. Applications
that include non-Tennessee counties in their proposed Service Areas
should provide evidence of the number of existing MRI units that
service the non-Tennessee counties and the impact on MRI unit
utilization in the non-Tennessee counties, including the specific
location of those units located in the non-Tennessee counties, their
utilization rates, and their capacity (if that data are available).
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Based on the operation of the current mobile MRI service, 89.2% of the
projected patients will reside within the defined primary and secondary
service ared.

[t appears that this criterion has been met.

3. Economic Efficiencies. All applicants for any proposed new MRI
Unit should document that alternate shared services and lower
cost technology applications have been investigated and found
less advantageous in terms of accessibility, availability,
continuity, cost, and quality of care.

The applicant notes that MRI volume has outgrown the capacity of the
current shared mobile MRI service.

It appears that the applicant will meet this criterion.

4. Need Standard for non-Specialty MRI Units.

A need likely exists for one additional non-Specialty MRI unit in a
Service Area when the combined average utilization of existing MRI
service providers is at or above 80% of the total capacity of 3600
procedures, or 2880 procedures, during the most recent twelve month
period reflected in the provider medical equipment report
maintained by the HSDA. The total capacity per MRI unit is based
upon the following formula:

Stationary MRI Units: 1.20 procedures per hour x twelve hours per
day x 5 days per week x 50 weeks per year = 3,600 procedures per
year

Mobile MRI Units: Twelve (12) procedures per day x days per week
in operation x 50 weeks per year. For each day of operation per
week, the optimal efficiency is 480 procedures per year, or 80
percent of the total capacity of 600 procedures per year.

The overall utilization of MRI units in the Tennessee portion of the
applicant’s primary and secondary service area was equal to approximately
65% of the total capacity standard of 3600 procedures.
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It appears that this criterion has not been met.

5. Need Standards for Specialty MRI Units.

This standard does not apply to this application.

6. Separate Inventories for Specialty MRI Units and non-Specialty MRI
Units.

This standard does not apply to this application.

7. Patient Safety and Quality of Care. The applicant shall provide evidence
that any proposed MRI Unit is safe and effective for its proposed use.

a. The United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) must
certify the proposed MRI  Unit for clinical use.

The applicant has provided documentation in Tab 12 that the proposed MRI
meets FDA certification requirements.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

b. The applicant should demonstrate that the proposed MRI
Procedures will be offered in a physical environment that
conforms to applicable federal standards, manufacturer’s
specifications, and licensing agencies’ requirements.

The applicant has provided a letter dated June 16, 2016 from an architectural
firm that affirms the proposed MRI physical environment conforms to
applicable codes and standards.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

c: The applicant should demonstrate how emergencies within the MRI
Unit facility will be managed in conformity with accepted medical practice.

There will be a physician present when patients are receiving diagnostic
services, technologists will be trained to handle emergency situations, a well-
stocked crash cart will be available, and existing hospital transfer agreements
will be maintained.

It appears that the application will meet this criterion.
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d.  The applicant should establish protocols that assure that all MRI
Procedures performed are medically necessary and will not
unnecessarily duplicate other services.

Existing policies regarding medical necessity and medical
appropriateness will be maintained.

It appears that the application will meet this criterion.

€. An applicant proposing to acquire any MRI Unit or institute any
MRI service, including Dedicated Breast and Extremity MRI Units, shall
demonstrate that it meets or is prepared to meet the staffing
recommendations and requirements set forth by the American College of
Radiology, including staff education and training programs.

The applicant indicates that the existing mobile MRI unit is fully
accredited by the American College of Radiology (ACR) and meets ACR
staffing standards. The applicant states that it will continue to meet the
accreditation standards after replacement with the fixed unit.

It appears that this criterion will be met.

f. All applicants shall commit to obtain accreditation from the Joint
Commission, the American College of Radiology, or a comparable
accreditation authority for MRI within two years following operation of
the proposed MRI Unit.

The applicant indicates that the existing mobile MRI unit is accredited by
the American College of Radiology (ACR). The applicant states that it
will continue to meet the accreditation standards after replacement with
the fixed unit.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

g. All applicants should seek and document emergency transfer
agreements with local area hospitals, as appropriate. An applicant’s
arrangements with its physician medical director must specify that said
physician be an active member of the subject transfer agreement hospital
medical staff.
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The applicant provided a transfer agreement with St. Thomas Health
Services which included St. Thomas Midtown, St. Thomas West, St.
Thomas Rutherford, and St. Thomas Hickman. None of these hospitals
are located in the applicant’s primary or secondary service area. The
hospital closest to the applicant is St. Thomas Midtown at 47 miles. It is
unclear if any of these hospitals listed could be considered local area
hospitals. The applicant has indicated that a transfer agreement with
Tennova Healthcare-Clarksville will be sought.

It is unclear as to whether this criterion is met.

8. The applicant should provide assurances that it will submit data in a timely
fashionas requested by the HSDA to maintain the HSDA Equipment

Registry.
The applicant indicates data will be submitted in a timely fashion.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

9. In light of Rule 0720-11.01, which lists the factors concerning need on
which an application may be evaluated, and Principle No. 2 in the State Health
Plan, “Every citizen should have reasonable access to health care,” the HSDA
may decide to give special consideration to an applicant:

a. Who is offering the service in a medically underserved area as designated
by the United States Health Resources and Services Administration; or

The applicant states that all of Houston, Montgomery, Robertson, and
Stewart Counties are medically underserved areas.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

b. Who is a “safety net hospital” or a “children’s hospital” as defined by the
Bureau of TennCare Essential Access Hospital payment program; or

The applicant is not a hospital. This criterion does not apply to this application.

c. Who provides a written commitment of intention to contract with at
least one TennCare MCO and, if providing adult services, to participate
in the Medicare program; or

The applicant contracts with four TennCare MCOs and participates in the
Medicare program.
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It appears that this criterion has been met.

d. Who is proposing to use the MRI unit for patients that typically require
longer preparation and scanning times (e.g., pediatric, special needs,
sedated, and contrast agent use patients). The applicant shall provide in
its application information supporting the additional time required per
scan and the impact on the need standard.

It appears that this criterion is not applicable.
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Staff Summary
The following information is a summary of the original application and all supplemental
responses. Any staff comments or notes, if applicable, will be in bold italics as a Note to
Agency members.

Application Synopsis

Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC (MTI), d/b/a Premier Radiology (Premier) is
proposing the establishment of an outpatient diagnostic center (ODC), the initiation
of magnetic resonance imaging services (MRI), and acquisition of MRI equipment.
The ODC will be located at a site, where the applicant is currently operating an
ODC with a mobile MRI service four days a week.

If approved, the mobile MRI service will continue to operate at other locations.

Note to Agency members: MRI services have been provided at this site by Premier
Radiology under another CON [87-CN-031] for mobile MRI in 19 counties covering
most of middle Tennessee. CN1605-016 might seek to treat the patients currently
seen pursuant to 87-CN-031, but it would not replace that service - it would add to
the MRI capacity in Montgomery County and Middle Tennessee, because patients
would be seen both at the current location and at an additional location or
locations because Premier Radiology would continue to operate MRI services
under 87-CN-031 elsewhere in Middle Tennessee.

The applicant expects to initiate services in March 2017.

Facility and Equipment Information

The site for the proposed project is currently serving the applicant’s mobile MRI.
To accommodate the applicant’s new ODC with a fixed MRI unit, 1,072 square feet
(SF) of the currently existing 1,253 SF of medical office building space currently
leased by MTT will undergo minor renovations. The cost of construction, shielding
and architectural/engineering fees will be approximately $541,101.

A previously owned GE 1.5 short bore MRI unit will be purchased by MTI. The
expected useful life of the equipment is five years. The MRI will be used for
musculoskeletal imaging, body and breast imaging, cardiac imaging, neuro
imaging, and vascular imaging. MTI commits that the proposed ODC will be
accredited by the American College of Radiology.

The applicant anticipates initiating services at the outpatient diagnostic center in
June 2015. An overview of the project is provided on pages 6-9 of the original
application.
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Ownership

Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC (MTI) d/b/a Premier Radiology (Premier) is a
joint venture between Saint Thomas Health, (53.86%), NOL, LLC (42.15%), and
Murfreesboro Imaging Partners (3.99%). NOL, LLC consists of 25 members none
having greater than 3.759% ownership. Murfreesboro Imaging Partners, LLC
consists of eleven members and each member has a 9.09% membership interest.

MTI was created to own and operate ODCs. MTI operates 13 fixed site locations in
the metro Nashville area and the mobile service that will be replaced by the
proposed project at the Clarksville site. The mobile service will serve other
locations within in its 19 county service area. The mobile service, Mobile MRI
Medical Services, LLC, was acquired by MTI in September 2014.

NEED

Project Need
The applicant states that the proposed outpatient diagnostic center and fixed MRI
unit are needed for the following reasons:
e The project is based on improving access and the quality of cost-effective
outpatient imaging services.
e The mobile MRI unit performed 2,538 procedures in 2015, 88.9% of those
procedures performed at the Clarksville location.
e The Clarksville site is now at the point where its volume will support a fixed
MRI unit.
e This will allow the mobile MRI unit to serve other locations in its approved
19-county mobile service area.

Service Area Demographics

The Tennessee counties in the applicant’s primary (PSA) and secondary service area
(SSA) include Montgomery in the PSA; and Houston, Robertson, and Stewart in the
SSA. The SSA also includes 4 counties in Kentucky (Christian, Logan, Todd, and

Trigg).

o The total population of the Tennessee portion of the service area is estimated
at 298,274 residents in calendar year (CY) 2016 increasing by approximately
8.6% to 323,838 residents in CY 2020.

o The overall Tennessee statewide population is projected to grow by 4.3%
from 2016 to 2020.

e The Age 65+ population of the Tennessee portion of the service area is
estimated at 33,897 residents in calendar year (CY) 2016 increasing by
approximately 20.8% to 40,935 residents in CY 2020.
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e The overall Tennessee statewide Age 65+ population is projected to grow by
16.0% from 2016 to 2020.
¢ The proportion of TennCare enrollees of the service area population is 18.5%,
compared with the state-wide average of 22.5%. The proportions vary from
17.6% in Montgomery County to 24.0% in Houston County.

Service Area Historical Utilization

*Service Area Historical MRI Utilization, 2013-2015

% of
] # of g:fx:dard %
Provider Type | County MRIs | 2013 2014 2015 in 2015 Change
@

)
Clarksville Imaging Center, LLC ODC Montgomery 1 4,276 3,426 1,808 62.8% -57.7%
Mobile MRI Services ODC | Montgomery | 0.8 1404 | 65 2,555 | 110.9% +81.98%
Premier Medical Group PO Montgomery | 1 138 |1453 | 1,441 | 50.0% +4.0%
Tennessee Orthopedic Alliance PO Montgomery |1 1932 1976 |2,081 |723% +7.7%
Tennova Healthcare-Clarksville | HOSP | Montgomery
f/k/a Gateway Medical Center 4432 | 4,617 | 4,637 | 80.5% +4.63%
Montgomery Co. Facility Sub-
Total 13,430 | 11,537 | 12,522 | 75.0% -6.8%
Northcrest Medical Center Robertson 3232 |3407 |3377 |[117.3% +4.5%
Service Area Total 16,662 | 14,944 | 15,889 | 81.1% -4.6%

Source: HSDA Equipment Registry
*There are currently no MRI units in Houston or Stewart Counties

1)
2)

e There are 6 MRI providers in the service area with 6.8 full time equivalent MRIs.

The applicant states that the mobile MRI service operates 4 days per weelk.
37 Year of service standard of 2,880 MRI procedures per year is applied

The chart above indicates that MRI volumes in the service area declined 4.6%
between 2013 and 2015. Despite the decline in total volumes, MRI utilization
increased for 5 of the 6 providers during the period.
e Overall, the MRIs in the service area are operating at 81.1% of the MRI volume
standard in 2015. Two of the six MRI providers met the utilization standard in 2015.
e The applicant states that three of the four Kentucky counties in the secondary service
area have MRI providers. See page 20 of the application for more details.

The table below from HSDA Equipment Registry records illustrates where residents of
service area counties went for MRI services in 2015.
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MRI PATIENT DESTINATION-2015

Procedures at Procedures at Procedures % | Procedures % | Total

Resident | Montgomery % Robertson | % Total | 2t Davidson Total at Other | Total | Resident

County Co. MRI Total Co. MRI Co. MRI Co. MRI Procedures
Providers Providers Providers Providers
Montgomery 9,247 | 66.8% 271 2.0% 4,115 29.7% 212 15% 13,845
Houston 345 36.9% 2 0.2% 332 35.6% 255 | 27.3% 934
Robertson 338 4.7% 2,302 31.9% 4,000 55.5% 568 7.9% 7,208
Stewart 780 57.6% 7 05% 364 26.9% 203 | 15.0% 1,354
TN Service 10,710 | 45.9% 2,582 11.1% 8,811 37.7% 1,238 | 5.3% 23,341
Area Total

Source: HSDA Equipment Registry

The table above indicates that approximately two-thirds of Montgomery County
resident procedures took place at a Montgomery County MRI provider, followed by
approximately 30% of Montgomery County resident procedures taking place at
Davidson County MRI providers.

Approximately 37% of Houston County resident procedures took place at a
Montgomery County MRI provider, followed by approximately 36% of Houston
County resident procedures taking place at Davidson County MRI providers.
Approximately 55% of Robertson County resident procedures took place at a
Davidson County MRI provider, followed by approximately 32% of Robertson
County resident procedures taking place at Robertson County MRI providers.
Approximately 58% of Stewart County resident procedures took place at a
Montgomery County MRI provider, followed by approximately 27% of Stewart
County resident procedures taking place at Davidson County MRI providers.
Approximately 46% of the TN portion of the service area resident procedures took
place at a Montgomery County MRI provider, followed by approximately 38% of TN
portion of the service area resident procedures taking place at Davidson County MRI
providers.

Applicant’s Historical and Projected Utilization
The applicant provides historical and projected MRI utilization as follows:

OoDC 2013 | 2014 | 2015 2016 (est.) | Year 1 | Year 2(2018)
(2017)

Mobile Service 1,525 | *65 | 2,538 3,500 2,600 2,600

Fixed MRI Unit N/A |N/A |N/A N/A 2,817 2,873

(Applicant)

*Operational for one month under Premier Radiology’s new ownership
Source CN1605-016
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The following table identifies the mobile service’s distribution of MRI procedures by site in
2015.

Location 2015 Procedures | %Total

Clarksville 2,319 88.9%
Hendersonville 34 1.3%
Madison 256 9.8%
TOTAL 2,609 100.0%

Source CN1605-016

Note to Agency members: It is apparent from the above two tables that almost 90% of the
procedures for the mobile service took place at the Clarksville site, which suggests that the
majority of the projected volume for the proposed fixed unit will be a transfer of
procedures from the mobile unit. As noted earlier the mobile service has a CON to
operate in 19 middle Tennessee counties. The applicant was asked to provide the details
on forecasting the mobile MRI volumes, since the majority of the Clarksville procedures
would be moving to the fixed unit.

How was it expected that the mobile service would attain 2,600 procedures during each of
the first two years after the initiation of service for the fixed unit? The applicant was
asked during a request for supplemental information to supply the projected volumes by
site for the mobile service. The applicant’s response was as follows:

“For competitive reasons, site-specific volume projections for the mobile MRI unit will
not be provided. Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC respectfully declines to engage in re-
evaluation of the need for the existing mobile MRI unit. Suffice it to say that the 19
authorized counties have a 2016 population of 2,273,954 persons and are expected to
increase 7.0% by 2020 compared to a 4.3% growth rate for the state overall. In theory,
the mobile MRI unit could serve each of these 19 authorized counties one day per month
and still remain in compliance with its CON authorization.”

The rationale for HSDA staff requesting this information was that with the transfer of
procedures at the Clarksville site from the mobile unit to the fixed unit, it is unclear what
impact the fixed unit will have on the mobile unit and subsequently the indirect impact
this will have on other service area providers. Without this information to determine
impact on existing providers it is in turn difficult to assess the contribution the proposed
project will have to the orderly development of adequate and effective healthcare. Agency
members may want to inquire regarding detailed projections by site for the mobile unit.
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ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

Project Cost
The total revised project cost is $941,648 (Supplemental #1 response). Of this
amount, the major costs are as follows:
e Construction Cost - $509,919 or 64.2% of total cost
e GE 1.5 short bore MRI unit - $250,000 or 26.5% of total cost.
e For other details on Project Cost, see the Project Cost Chart on page 34 of the
application.

Financing
MTI plans to utilize cash reserves to pay for the proposed project.

e A March 10, 2016 letter from Mark Gaw, Chief Financial Officer, is provided
in the application that attests to the hospital’s ability to financially support
the project.

e Review of MTI's audited financial statements revealed cash and cash
equivalents of $3,899,673, current assets of $10,833,286 and current liabilities
of $11,547,671 for a current ratio of 0.94 to 1.0.

Note to Agency Members: Current ratio is a measure of liquidity and is the
ratio of current assets to current liabilities, which measures the ability of
an entity to cover its current liabilities with its existing current assets. A
ratio of 1:1 would be required to have the minimum amount of assets needed
to cover current liabilities.

Historical Data Chart
MTI purchase the mobile service in September 2014 and became operational in
2014, so that the Historical Data Chart provided is for one year, 2015. Some of the
highlights are as follows:
e Based on 2,538 MRI procedures, the applicant generated $4,677,152 in gross
operating revenue in 2015.
e Net operating income was $122,962 which was favorable at approximately
13.1% of net operating revenue.

Projected Data Chart
Highlights of the financial performance of the proposed ODC are as follows:

e Based on 2,817 procedures in 2017, estimated gross operating revenue is
$5,191,308. In 2018 based on 2,873 MRI procedures, gross operating revenue
is expected to increase to $5,294,508.

e Net operating revenue in 2017 and 2018 is expected to be approximately 25%
of gross operating revenue.
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¢ Net operating income of $236,241 is projected for 2017 and is expected to be
mainly unchanged in 2018 at $236,719.

e The applicant expects to serve approximately 17 charity care patients in Year
1 and Year 2.

Charges
e The applicant projects an average gross charge of $1,843. This amount is
between the first quartile and median of MRI charges in Tennessee in 2015.
The average deduction from gross revenue is $1,318, resulting in a net charge
of $525.

Medicare/TennCare Payor Mix
o The applicant expects to contract will all Tenncare managed care plans
available in the service area. These plans are AmeriGroup, BlueCare, United
Healthcare Community Plan, and TennCare Select.

The applicant’s projected payor mix for Year 1 (2017) is as follows:

Payor Source Gross Revenue % Gross Revenue

Medicare $882,303 17.0%
TennCare $1,117,233 21.5%
Managed Care $1,612,089 31.1%
Commercial $1,219,615 23.5%
Self-Pay $28,784 0.6%
Other $331,285 6.4%
TOTAL $5,191,308 100.0%

e TennCare/Medicaid-2017 projected revenue $1,117,233 representing 21.5%
of total revenue in Year 1.

¢ Medicare- The applicant expects $882,303 in Medicare revenue representing
17.0% of total gross revenue in Year 1.

e Managed Care/Commercial combined is projected to total $2,831,703 or
54.5% of total revenue.

PROVIDE HEALTHCARE THAT MEETS APPROPRIATE
QUALITY STANDARDS

Licensure
o The proposed ODC will seek licensure by the Tennessee Department of
Health.
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Certification
e The applicant will apply for Medicare and TennCare/Medicaid certification.

Accreditation
e MTI expects the proposed ODC to be accredited by the American College of
Radiology.

Note to Agency Members: The Agency may want to consider placing a condition on
this application pertaining to the ODC obtaining accreditation from the American
College of Radiology as this would be applicable to Public Chapter 1043.

CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF
HEALTHCARE

Agreements

The applicant expects to have transfer agreements with St. Thomas Midtown and
St. Thomas West in Davidson County, St. Thomas Rutherford in Rutherford
County, and St. Thomas Hickman in Hickman County. The closest of these four
hospitals to the applicant location is St. Thomas Midtown at 47 miles. The
applicant has indicated that a transfer agreement with Tennova Healthcare-
Clarksville will be sought.

The applicant also lists twenty five managed care contracts.
Impact on Existing Providers

The applicant states that the proposed project will essentially replace the mobile
MRI service currently operating at the proposed site.

Note to Agency members: The mobile service will continue to operate at other sites
within its 19 county service area. HSDA staff requested detailed information
regarding the projected volumes for the mobile service. See Note to Agency
members on pages 15-16 of this summary.

Staffing
The applicant’s proposed clinical staffing for the proposed project is 1.0 FTE MRI
Tech and 1.0 FTE Med Assist/Ofc.

Corporate documentation and office lease information are on file at the Agency office and
will be available at the Agency meeting.

MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC D/B/A PREMIER RADIOLOGY
CN1605-016
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Should the Agency vote to approve this project, the CON would expire in two
years.

CERTIFICATE OF NEED INFORMATION FOR THE APPLICANT:

There are no other Letters of Intent, denied or pending applications, or outstanding
Certificates of Need for this applicant.

Note: Saint Thomas Health has a financial interest in the proposed project and the
following.

Qutstanding Certificates of Need

Saint Thomas West Hospital f/k/a Saint Thomas Hospital, CN1110-037AM, has an
outstanding Certificate of Need which will expire on March 1, 2017. The project was
approved at the January 25, 2012 Agency meeting for construction of a three phase
hospital construction project, including the renovation of 89,134 square feet of
existing hospital space and the construction of a six level 135,537 sq. ft. patient
tower to be adjoined to the hospital located at 4220 Harding Road, Nashville, TN.
The services and areas affected include critical care, operating rooms, patient
registration, patient admission and testing, surgery waiting, surgery pre/post-op,
emergency department, chest pain clinic, cardiac short stay, PACU, cath lab
holding and support space. Major medical equipment included in the project will
include one additional GE Discovery CT750 HD 128-slice CT scanner. No additional
services or licensed beds are being requested in the project. Note: Modification of the
project was approved at the June 25, 2014 Agency. The total estimated cost of the project
was reduced by approximately $15 million as a result of the elimination of 4 ORs and
changes in the construction/renovation of 3 patient floors, shelled space & related
infrastructure. The revised estimated project cost is $95,780,000. Project Status update:
A 10/3/16 email update from a representative of the applicant indicated that the project is
continuing and nearing completion. Scheduled for completion in late 2016. The operating
rooms and new lobby and patient waiting area are complete, and many of the nursing units
have been modernized, with only a few units remaining.

Baptist Plaza Surgicare, CN1307-029AM, has an outstanding Certificate of Need
which will expire on June 30, 2017. It was approved at the October 23, 2013 Agency
meeting for the relocation and replacement of the existing ASTC from 2011 Church
Street Medical Plaza I Lower Level, Nashville (Davidson County) to the northeast
corner of the intersection of Church Street and 20t Avenue North, Nashville
(Davidson County). The facility will be constructed in approximately 28,500 SF of
rentable space in a new medical office building and will contain nine (9) operating
rooms and one (1) procedure room. Note: Modification of the project was
approved at the July 23, 2014 Agency meeting. The total estimated project cost
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was reduced by approximately $10 million. The ASTC will remain in its current
location at Medical Plaza 1 on the hospital campus of Saint Thomas-Midtown
and relocate from the basement to a new 3 floor addition with slightly more
space. The modification is a significant change to the project’s original plan to
relocate to a new building constructed on the northeast corner of Church Street
and 20t Avenue North near the hospital campus. The revised estimated project
cost is $19,095,948.00. Project Status Update: An 18 month extension was granted by the
Agency at the October 28, 2015 Agency meeting. A 10/3/2016 email update from a
representative of the applicant stated that the project is progressing and it is
anticipated that construction will be complete in the 1st quarter of 2017; late
February or early March.

CERTIFICATE OF NEED INFORMATION FOR OTHER SERVICE AREA
FACILITIES:

There are no Letters of Intent, denied or pending applications, or outstanding
Certificates of Need for similar service area entities proposing this type of service.

PLEASE REFER TO THE REPORT BY THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH,
DIVISION OF HEALTH STATISTICS, FOR A DETAILED ANALYSIS OF THE
STATUTORY CRITERIA OF NEED, ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY, HEALTH
CARE THAT MEETS APPROPRIATE QUALITY STANDARDS, AND
CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF HEALTH CARE IN
THE AREA FOR THIS PROJECT. THAT REPORT IS ATTACHED TO THIS
SUMMARY IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE COLOR DIVIDER PAGE.

MAF
10/5/16
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LETTER OF INTENT




State of Tennessee

Health Services and Development Agency

Andrew Jackson Building, 9" Floor

502 Deaderick Street

Nashville, TN 37243

www.tn.govlhsda  Phone: 615-741-2364 Fax: 615-741-9884

LETTER OF INTENT

The Publication of Intent is to be published in the _Leaf-Chronicle which is a newspaper
(Name of Newspaper)
of general circulation in_Montgomery , Tennessee, on or before 05/02 ,2016
(County) (Month / day) (Year)
for one day.
i S el d el T el Tl I T e i T e e i T el d e T e e T es e - =

This is to provide official notice to the Health Services and Development Agency and all interested parties, in
accordance with T.C.A. § 68-11-1601 et seq., and the Rules of the Health Services and Development Agency,

that:
Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC d/b/a Premier Radiology, an existing outpatient diagnostic center (ODC) provider,

(Name of Applicant) (Fagillty Type-Existing)
owned by: _Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC with an ownership type of limited liability company
and to be managed by: PhyData, LLC intends to file an application for a Certificate of Need

for [PROJECT DESCRIPTION BEGINS HERE]: the establishment of a new ODC, the initiation of MRI services and the.
acquisition of a fixed MRI unit, all at 980 Professional Park Drive, Suite E in Clarksville, TN, 37040 (Montgomery

Co.). As part of the project, 1,072 square feet of medical office space will be renovated to house one fixed MRI.

No other diagnostic imaging services are proposed at this time. Total project costs are estimated to be $941,648.

The anticipated date of filing the application is: May 4, 2016.

The contact person for this project is_Robert M. Limyansky Partner
(Contact Name) (Title)
who may be reached at;_The Strategy House, Inc. 71 Vickery Street
(Company Name) (Address)
Roswel GA 30075 770 /__394-8465
& )] (State) {(Zip Code) (Area Code / Phone Number)

ﬁ)(w ' (//’ 29- 206 rlimyansky%ﬁlestrategyhouse.net
— © (Signature) (Date) {E-mail Address)

The Letter of Intent must be filed in triplicate and received between the first and the tenth day of the month. If the
last day for flling is a Saturday, Sunday or State Holiday, filing must occur on the preceding business day. File
this form at the following address: '

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, 9" Floor
502 Deaderick Street
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

i AR Tl R B Tl D e ™l o D Tl D T ™l e Tl T ™l i D Tl ol T TRl ™

The published Letter of Intent must contain the following statement pursuant to T.C.A. § 68-11-1607(c)(1). (A) Any health
care institution wishing to oppose a Certificate of Need application must file a written notice with the Health Services and
Development Agency no later than fifteen (15) days before the regularly scheduled Health Services and Development
Agency meeting at which the application is originally scheduled; and (B) Any other person wishing to oppose the
application must file written objection with the Health Services and Development Agency at or prior to the consideration of
the application by the Agency.

) e e - T T e e e i T e i T e e e T el s
HF51 (Revised 01/09/2013 - all forms prior to this date are obsolete)
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__“Radiology

the imaging specialists

MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC
D/B/A
PREMIER RADIOLOGY

OUTPATIENT DIAGNOSTIC CENTER
CLARKSVILLE, TN

CERTIFICATE OF NEED APPLICATION
MAY 2016




SECTION A:

APPLICANT PROFILE

Please enter all Section A responses on this form. All questions must be answered. Iif an item does not
apply, please indicate “N/A.” Attach appropriate documentation as an Appendix at the end of the
application and reference the applicable item Number on the attachment.

For Section A, Item 1, Facility Name must be applicant facility’s name and address must be the site of
the proposed project.

For Section A, Item 3, Attach a copy of the partnership agreement, or corporate charter and certificate
of corporate existence, if applicable, from the Tennessee Secretary of State.

For Section A, Item 4, Describe the existing or proposed ownership structure of the applicant, including
an ownership structure organizational chart. Explain the corporate structure and the manner in which all
entities of the ownership structure relate to the applicant. As applicable, identify the members of the
ownership entity and each member's percentage of ownership, for those members with 5% or more
ownership interest. In addition, please document the financial interest of the applicant and the
applica7nt's parent company/owner in any other health care institution as defined in Tennessee Code
Annotated, §68-11-1602 in Tennessee. At a minimum, please provide the name, address, current status

of licensure/certification, and percentage of ownership for each health care institution identified.

For Section A, Item 5, For new facilities or existing facilities without a current management agreement,
aftach a copy of a draft management agreement that at least includes the anticipated scope of
management services to be provided, the anticipated term of the agreement, and the anticipated
management fee payment methodology and schedule. For facilities with existing management
agreements, attach a copy of the fully executed final contract.

Please describe the management entity's experience in providing management services for the type of
the facility, which is the same or similar to the applicant facility. Please describe the ownership structure
of the management entity.

For Section A, Item 6, For applicants or applicant's parent company/owner that currently own the
building/land for the project location; attach a copy of the title/deed. For applicants or applicant’s parent
company/owner that currently lease the building/land for the project location, attach a copy of the fully
executed lease agreement. For projects where the location of the project has not been secured, attach a
fully executed document including Option to Purchase Agreement, Option to Lease Agreement, or other
appropriate documentation. Option to Purchase Agreements must include anticipated purchase price.
Lease/Option to Lease Agreements must include the actual/anticipated term of the agreement and
actual/anticipated lease expense. The legal interests described herein must be valid on the date of the
Agency's consideration of the certificate of need application.

Certificate of Need Application May 2016
Premier Radiology (Clarksville) Page 1



Name of Facility, Agency, or Institution

Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC d/b/a Premier Radiology

Name
980 Professional Park Drive, Suite E
Street or Route Montgomery
County
Clarksville TN 37040
City State Zip Code
Contact Person Available for Responses to Questions
Robert M. Limyansky Partner
Name Title
The Strategy House, Inc. rlimyansky@thestrategyhouse.net
Company Name email address
71 Vickery Street Roswell GA 30005
Street or Route City State Zip Code
Consultant 770-394-8465 x120 770-394-5470
Association with Owner Phone Number Fax Number

Owner of the Facility, Agency or Institution

Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC (MTI) 615-986-6153
Name Phone Number
28 White Bridge Pike, Suite 111 Davidson
Street or Route County
Nashville TN 37205

City ST Zip Code

See Attachment A, 3 (Tab 1) — Corporate Charter documentation

Type of Ownership of Control (Check One)

A. Sole Proprietorship F. Governmental (State of TN or

B. Partnership Political Subdivision)

C. Limited Partnership G.  Joint Venture

D. Corporation (For Profit) H.  Limited Liability Company X
E. Corporation (Not-for-Profit) l. " Other (Specify)

PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE BACK OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER AND REFERENCE
THE APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL ATTACHMENTS

See Attachment A, 3 (Tab 1) — Corporate Charter documentation
See Attachment A, 4 (Tab 2) — Organizational/Ownership Chart
See Attachment A, 4 (Tab 3) — Related Healthcare Institutions

Certificate of Need Application May 2016
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Name of Management/Operating Entity (If Applicable)
PhyData, LLC

Name

3024 Business Park Circle Sumner
Street or Route County
Goodlettsville TN 37072
City ST Zip Code

PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE END OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER AND REFERENCE THE
APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL ATTACHMENTS.

See Attachment A, 5 (Tab 4) — Management Agreement. The management company serves the facilities
listed in Tab 3 as part of the Saint Thomas Imaging Network.

Legal Interest in the Site of the Institution (Check One)

A.  Ownership D. Option to Lease
B.  Option to Purchase E. Other (Specify)
C. Leaseof _ 1.5 Years

|

M |

PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE BACK OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER AND REFERENCE THE
APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL ATTACHMENTS.

See Attachment A, 6 (Tab 5) — Site Entitlement

Type of Institution (Check as appropriate--more than one response may apply)

A Hospital (Specify) Acute Care . Nursing Home
B. Ambulatory Surgical Treatment J.  Outpatient Diagnostic Center X
Center (ASTC), Multi-Specialty K. Recuperation Center
C. ASTC, Single Specialty L. Rehabilitation Facility
D. Home Health Agency M. Residential Hospice
E. Hospice N. Non-Residential Methadone
F.  Mental Health Hospital Facility
G. Mental Health Residential O. Birthing Center
Treatment Facility P.  Other Qutpatient Facility
H. Mental Retardation Institutional (Specify)
Habilitation Facility (ICF/MR) —— Q. Other (Specify)
Purpose of Review (Check as appropriate--more than one response may apply)
A.  New Institution X G. Change in Bed Complement
B. Replacement/Existing Facility L [Please note the type of change
C. Modification/Existing Facility X by underlining the appropriate
D. Initiation of Significant Health Care response: Increase, Decrease,
Service as defined in TCA § 68-11- Designation, Distribution,
1607(4) (Specify) - Conversion, Relocation]
E.  Discontinuance of OB Services - H.  Change of Location -
F Acquisition of Equipment X L Other (Specify)
Certificate of Need Application May 2016
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9. Bed Complement Data

Please indicate current and proposed distribution and certification of facility beds.

Current Beds  Staffed Beds
Beds Proposed

Licensed *CON

Medical

Surgical (General Med/Surg)
Long-Term Care Hospital

Obstetrical

ICU/CCU

Neonatal

Pediatric

Adult Psychiatric

Geriatric Psychiatric

Child/Adolescent Psychiatric
Rehabilitation

Nursing Facility (non-Medicaid Certified)
Nursing Facility Level 1 (Medicaid only)
Nursing Facility Level 2 (Medicare only)

Nursing Facility Level 2
(dually certified Medicaid/Medicare)

ICF/IMR
Adult Chemical Dependency

Child and Adolescent Chemical
Dependency

OZErxec-~IGMMOOW>»

DO

»

Swing Beds

Mental Health Residential Treatment
Residential Hospice

TOTAL

*CON-Beds approved but not yet in
service

-

<

RESPONSE: Not applicable.

10. Medicare Provider Number 103G706948

Certification Type

11. Medicaid Provider Number 3790913

Certification Type

12. If this is a new facility, will certification be sought for Medicare and/or Medicaid? _Yes

Certificate of Need Application
Premier Radiology (Clarksville)
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Identify all TennCare Managed Care Organizations/Behavioral Health Organizations (MCOs/BHOs)
operating in the proposed service area. Will this project involve the treatment of TennCare
participants?_Yes If the response to this item is yes, please identify all MCOs/BHOs with which
the applicant has contracted or plans to contract.

Discuss any out-of-network relationships in place with MCOs/BHOs in the area.

REsSPONSE: AmeriGroup, BlueCare, United Healthcare Community Plan and TennCare Select are the
TennCare MCOs operating in the area. The applicant is contracted with all of these. Please see
Attachment A, 13 (Tab 6) for a list of managed care contracts with Saint Thomas Imaging Network
affiliates.

Certificate of Need Application May 2016
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NOTE: Section B is intended to give the applicant an opportunity to describe the project

and to discuss the need that the applicant sees for the project. Section C
addresses how the project relates to the Certificate of Need criteria of Need,
Economic Feasibility, and the Contribution to the Orderly Development of Health
Care. Discussions on how the application relates to the criteria should not

take place in this section unless otherwise specified.

SECTION B: PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Please answer all questions on 8 1/2" x 11" white paper, clearly typed and spaced, identified correctly
and in the correct sequence. In answering, please type the question and the response. All exhibits and
tables must be attached to the end of the application in correct sequence identifying the questions(s) to

which they refer. If a particular question does not apply to your project, indicate “Not Applicable (NA)

after that question.

Provide a brief executive summary of the project not to exceed two pages. Topics to be included
in the executive summary are a brief description of proposed services and equipment, ownership
structure, service area, need, existing resources, project cost, funding, financial feasibility and
staffing.

RESPONSE: Please see the following executive summary.
NEW ODC, INITIATE MRI SERVICE, ACQUIRE FIXED MRI

Ownership. Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC (MTI) d/b/a Premier Radiology (Premier) is a joint
venture between Saint Thomas Health (53.86%), NOL, LLC (42.15%) and Murfreesboro Imaging
Partners (3.99%). MTI was created to own and operate outpatient diagnostic centers (ODCs).

MTI currently operates 13 fixed site locations in the metro Nashville area. Premier also operates
one mobile MRI (ODC License #058) through wholly-owned affiliates Premier Mobile, LLC and
Mobile MRI Medical Services, LLC.

The applicant (Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC d/b/a Premier Radiology) acquired all of the
ownership interest of Mobile MRI Medical Services, LLC in September 2014. The fixed MRI that
is the subject of this application will be owned by Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC (MTI1). Mobile
MRI Medical Services, LLC is wholly owned by Premier Mobile, LLC which, in turn, is wholly
owned by Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC d/b/a Premier Radiology. Mobile MRI Medical
Services, LLC has made the proper Outpatient Diagnostic Center (ODC) Joint Annual Report
(JAR) filings, and MTI has been in contact with Alecia Craighead regarding the equipment registry
following its purchase of Mobile MRI Medical Services, LLC.

History. It is the applicant’'s understanding that CON 87-CN-031 was originally granted to Horizon
Mobile MRI d/b/a Tennessee Imaging Alliance. It is also the applicant's understanding that
Horizon implemented the Mobile MRI services as permitted by CON 87-CN-031 in a timely
manner. Following Horizon's implementation of the Mobile MRI services, the ownership was
rightfully transferred and ultimately the right to conduct these services was legally transferred to
other parties over a period of years, and ultimately the right to conduct such services was
transferred to Mobile MRI Medical Services, LLC. The applicant is not aware of all of the history
between Horizon's implementation of the mobile MRI services and the transfer of the right to
provide the mobile MRI services to Mobile MRI Medical Services, LLC. The Health Department
apparently did require that Mobile MRl Medical Services, LLC obtain an ODC license in

Certificate of Need Application May 2016
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connection with its acquisition of the right to conduct the mobile MRI Services. The applicant does
know that the change of ownership (CHOW) changing the ownership of the right to operate the
mobile MRI services to Mobile MRl Medical Services, LLC was effective July 15, 2011, and that
this change was ratified by the Board for Licensing Health Care Facilities. Further, the initial
application for ODC license #58 authorizing Mobile MRI Medical Services to operate the mobile
MRI services was approved effective July 13, 2011, and was ratified on September 14, 2011. See
Tab 3 hereto. At this time, Mobile MRI Medical Services, LLC holds a valid ODC License (#58)
that authorizes it to operate the mobile services.

If this application is approved, the applicant will establish a new ODC with a fixed MRI in
Clarksville. The current mobile MRI services, as originally approved per 87-CN-031A and as
licensed by Outpatient Diagnostic Center License #58, will continue serving multiple counties in
Middle Tennessee. The applicant does not intend to voluntarily surrender 87-CN-031A should
CN1603-013 be approved.

Replacement Plan. This application proposes to replace the four-day per week mobile MRI service
now at 980 Professional Park Drive, Suite E in Clarksville, TN, 37040 (Montgomery County) with a
fixed MRI at the same location. This requires minor renovations to 1,072 square feet of the
existing 1,253 square feet of medical office building space currently leased by MTI.

Services and Equipment. A previously owned GE 1.5T short bore MRI unit will be purchased to
replace the mobile unit now serving this location. No other diagnostic imaging services are
proposed at this time.

Service Area. The transition from the mobile MRI unit to the proposed fixed MRI unit is not
expected to significantly affect the service area. Based on the 2015 ODC JAR (Joint Annual
Report) for the current mobile unit, the primary service area now includes Montgomery County
(67.2% of patients). The secondary service area includes adjacent Stewart County (7.4%), four
adjacent Kentucky counties (Christian, Logan, Todd, Trigg; 6.7%), adjacent Robertson County
(4.5%) and adjacent Houston County (3.4%). These counties will account for approximately
89.2% of the patients served.

Need. This project is based on improving access to and the quality of cost-effective outpatient
imaging services. The current mobile MRI unit is in Clarksville four days per week, including
Saturdays. In 2015, the mobile MRI unit served 2,082 patients and performed 2,538 procedures.
The vast majority of this volume (88.9%) was in Clarksville. MTI's Clarksville site is now at the
point where its volume will support a fixed MRI unit, thus allowing the mobile MRI unit to better
serve other locations in the approved 19-county mobile service area.

Existing Resources. Though a new ODC will be created upon approval, this project essentially will
replace a mobile MRI unit with a fixed MRI unit to better serve MTI's existing patients. MTI will
use the current leased space for the fixed MRI unit with only minor renovations. Though hours of
operation will increase from four days per week to five, the existing receptionist, MRI technologist
and radiologists are not expected to change.

Project Cost. The total cost of the project will be less than $1 million -- $941,648 including the
valuation of the leased space. This also includes equipment costs of $250,000 and renovation
costs (construction, shielding, A&E fees) of $541,101.

Financial Feasibility. MTI has more than enough cash and cash equivalents to fund the Clarksville
project from existing reserves. The replacement ODC will produce a positive financial return. The
project will have no adverse impact on patient charges.

Staffing. As stated above, the existing receptionist, MRI technologist and radiologists are not
expected to change though hours of operation will increase from four days per week to five.

Certificate of Need Application May 2016
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L. Provide a detailed narrative of the project by addressing the following items as they relate to the
proposal.

A.

Describe the construction, modification and/or renovation of the facility (exclusive of major
medical equipment covered by T.C.A. § 68-11-1601 et seq.) including square footage,
major operational areas, room configuration, etc. Applicants with hospital projects
(construction cost in excess of $5 million) and other facility projects (construction cost in
excess of $2 million) should complete the Square Footage and Cost per Square Footage
Chart. Utilizing the attached Chart, applicants with hospital projects should complete Parts
A.-E. by identifying as applicable nursing units, ancillary areas, and support areas affected
by this project. Provide the location of the unit/service within the existing facility along with
current square footage, where, if any, the unit/service will relocate temporarily during
construction and renovation, and then the location of the unit/service with proposed square
footage. The total cost per square foot should provide a breakout between new
construction and renovation cost per square foot. Other facility projects need only complete
Parts B.-E. Please also discuss and justify the cost per square foot for this project.

If the project involves none of the above, describe the development of the proposal.

RESPONSE: This application proposes to replace the four-day per week mobile MRI service
now at 980 Professional Park Drive, Suite E in Clarksville, TN, 37040 (Montgomery County)
with a fixed MRI at the same location. This requires minor renovations to 1,072 square feet
of the existing 1,253 square feet of medical office building space currently leased by MTI.
The building renovation costs (construction, shielding, A&E fees) are estimated to be
$541,101.

The tenant/lessee will be responsible for the costs for the maodifications in accordance with
the facility's proposed use as an ODC with MRI. As such, there is not a tenant
improvement allowance available to help offset the applicant’s costs with same.

As described in Tab 13 of the application, there are not any unique/special modifications
and costs that will be related to structural support for this project. Approximately half the
build out costs involve mechanical systems while concrete, masonry and steel account for
less than five percent of the costs. Shielding will be provided in a separate contract as
described in Tab 13 of the application.

The building that MTI currently leases for the existing mobile MRI service is a single-story,
multi-tenant medical office building currently zoned for medical/other professional use. It
was constructed in 2010 and contains approximately 20,546 rentable square feet of space
in total.

Highlights of the renovation process pertaining to the major phases and timelines of the
process, such as issuance of construction permits, structural, finish, survey by state/local
organizations, etc., are described on page 48 of the application.

The radiologists will not be on-site so there is no need for a reading room. The images for
all studies are securely routed to a secure PACS (picture archiving & communication
system) for reading by any one of the radiologists within the radiology group. This permits
quick turn-around times for studies (approximately 15 minutes on average) and allows
studies to be ready by a radiologist that specializes in the type of study that has been
performed.

Certificate of Need Application May 2016
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B. ldentify the number and type of beds increased, decreased, converted, relocated,
designated, and/or redistributed by this application. Describe the reasons for change in bed
allocations and describe the impact the bed change will have on the existing services.

RESPONSE: Not applicable. This ODC project does not involve beds.

Certificate of Need Application May 2016
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C. As the applicant, describe your need to provide the following health care services (if
applicable to this application):

Adult Psychiatric Services

Alcohol and Drug Treatment for Adolescents (exceeding 28 days)
Birthing Center

Burn Units

Cardiac Catheterization Services

Child and Adolescent Psychiatric Services
Extracorporeal Lithotripsy

Home Health Services

Hospice Services

10. Residential Hospice

11. ICF/MR Services

12. Long-term Care Services

13. Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI)

14. Mental Health Residential Treatment

15. Neonatal Intensive Care Unit

16. Non-Residential Methadone Treatment Centers
17. Open Heart Surgery

18. Positron Emission Tomography

19. Radiation Therapy/Linear Accelerator

20. Rehabilitation Services

21. Swing Beds

CoNDIORLN =

RESPONSE: Though a new ODC will be created upon approval, this project essentially will
replace a mobile MRI unit with a fixed MRI unit. MTI will use the current leased space for
the fixed MR! unit with only minor renovations. Hours of operation will increase from four
days per week (including Saturdays) to five weekdays. The transition from the mobile MRI
unit to the proposed fixed MRI unit is not expected to significantly affect the service area.
This project will improve access to and the quality of cost-effective outpatient imaging
services for MTI's existing patient base and referring physicians.

D. Describe the need to change location or replace an existing facility.

RESPONSE: Not applicable. MTI's MRI service will remain at 980 Professional Park Drive,
Suite E in Clarksville, TN, 37040 (Montgomery County).

E. Describe the acquisition of any item of major medical equipment (as defined by the Agency
Rules and the Statute) which exceeds a cost of $1.5 million; and/or is a magnetic resonance
imaging (MRI) scanner, positron emission tomography (PET) scanner, extracorporeal
lithotripter and/or linear accelerator by responding to the following:

1. For fixed-site major medical equipment (not replacing existing equipment):

a. Describe the new equipment, including:
1. Total cost; (As defined by Agency Rule).
2. Expected useful life;
3. List of clinical applications to be provided; and
4. Documentation of FDA approval.

b. Provide current and proposed schedules of operations.

Certificate of Need Application May 2016
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RESPONSE: A previously owned GE 1.5T short bore MRI unit will be purchased by MTI to
replace a mobile MRI unit now serving this location and owned by a separate MTI
affiliate. This cost is well below the $1.5 million cost threshold for review. There are no
service contract costs anticipated. Per MTI policy, all maintenance required will be
funded through operations as needed. The expected useful life is five years. Like the
mobile MRI unit it is replacing, the fixed MRI unit will be used for the following clinical
applications:

e Musculoskeletal imaging,
Body and breast imaging,
Cardiac imaging,
Neuro imaging and
Vascular imaging.

Please see the FDA 510(k) summary of safety and effectiveness for the proposed MRI
unit in Attachment C, Need 1 (Tab 12).

Hours of operation will increase from four days per week (including Saturdays) to five
weekdays.

Please see the vendor quotation for the proposed MRI unit in Attachment B, II.E.3 (Tab
7). All prices are before sales tax.

As a CON decision is not expected before the end of July 2016, MTI cannot commit to
the actual purchase of the 1.5 Tesla replacement fixed MRI unit until that time.
Therefore, the seller cannot commit to provide a specific MRI unit in May 2016. After
CON approval, MTI's order will be executed and the specific unit will be selected from
available inventory. Therefore, refit or upgrade requirements, if any, are not known at
this time. However, MTI will commit that the unit purchased will be accredited by the
American College of Radiology as is customary with other MTI patient diagnostic
equipment.

2. For mobile major medical equipment:

a. List all sites that will be served;

b. Provide current and/or proposed schedule of operations;
c. Provide the lease or contract cost.

d. Provide the fair market value of the equipment; and

e. List the owner for the equipment.

RESPONSE: Not applicable. This project does not involve the acquisition of mobile major
medical equipment.

3. Indicate applicant's legal interest in equipment (i.e., purchase, lease, etc.). In the case of
equipment purchase include a quote and/or proposal from an equipment vendor, or in the
case of an equipment lease provide a draft lease or contract that at least includes the
term of the lease and the anticipated lease payments.

REsSPONSE: As described above, this project involves the purchase of a replacement MRI

unit. Please see Attachment B, Il.E.3 (Tab 7) for the vendor quotation for the equipment
to be purchased.

Certificate of Need Application May 2016
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.

As stated in paragraph six of the Revised Sales Agreement, the applicant is responsible
for an additional $23,125 for taxes. As stated in paragraph two, shipping and installation
costs are included within the $250,000 base cost.

The sales agreement has been updated and executed to reflect that the sales price
includes shipping and installation costs and that price will remain valid through
September 30, 2016.

(A) Attach a copy of the plot plan of the site on an 8 1/2” x 11" sheet of white paper which must
include:

1. Size of site (in acres);

2. Location of structure on the site; and

3. Location of the proposed construction.

4. Names of streets, roads or highway that cross or border the site.

Please note that the drawings do not need to be drawn to scale. Plot plans are
required for all projects.

RESPONSE: Please see Attachment B, Ill.{(A) (Tab 8). MTI will continue to lease the same space

it now uses for the mobile MRI unit.

(B) 1.

Describe the relationship of the site to public transportation routes, if any, and to any
highway or major road developments in the area. Describe the accessibility of the
proposed site to patients/clients.

RESPONSE: MTI's Clarksville site is already accessible to residents of the service area as

documented by the high utilization of its existing mobile MRI unit at this location.
Furthermore, the site is located across Dunlop Lane from Gateway Medical Center.
Gateway Medical Center itself abuts Interstate Highway 1-24.

The Clarksville Transit System (CTS) provides both regularly scheduled bus service (Route
8 — 101 Express / Gateway Medical Center) and on-demand specialty van access (The
Lift) to the MTI site. Thus, MTI is readily accessibie to the service area population. Please
see Attachment B, 1Il.(B).1 (Tab 9) for CTS service descriptions and maps depicting these
public transportation services.

IV. Attach a floor plan drawing for the facility which includes legible labeling of patient care rooms
(noting private or semi-private), ancillary areas, equipment areas, etc. on an 8 1/2” x 11" sheet of
white paper.

NOTE: DO NOT SUBMIT BLUEPRINTS. Simple line drawings should be submitted and need not
be drawn to scale.

RESPONSE: Please see Attachment B, IV (Tab 10) for the existing and proposed floor plan
schematics.

Certificate of Need Application May 2016
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V. For a Home Health Agency or Hospice, identify:

1. Existing service area by County;

2. Proposed service area by County;
3. A parent or primary service provider;
4. Existing branches; and

5. Proposed branches.

REsPONSE: Not applicable. The project does not involve a Home Health Agency or Hospice.

Certificate of Need Application May 2016
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SECTION C: GENERAL CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED

In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated § 68-11-1609(b), “no Certificate of Need shall be granted
unless the action proposed in the application for such Certificate is necessary to provide needed health
care in the area to be served, can be economically accomplished and maintained, and will contribute to
the orderly development of health care.” The three (3) criteria are further defined in Agency Rule 0720-4-
.01. Further standards for guidance are provided in the state health plan (Guidelines for Growth),
developed pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated §68-11-1625.

The following questions are listed according to the three (3) criteria: (1) Need, (Il) Economic Feasibility,
and (llI) Contribution to the Orderly Development of Health Care. Please respond to each question and
provide underlying assumptions, data sources, and methodologies when appropriate. Please type each
question and its response on an 8 1/2" x 11" white paper. All exhibits and tables must be attached to the
end of the application in correct sequence identifying the question(s) to which they refer. If a question
does not apply to your project, indicate “Not Applicable (NA).”

QUESTIONS
NEED
1. Describe the relationship of this proposal toward the implementation of the State Health Plan and

Tennessee's Health: Guidelines for Growth.

a. Please provide a response to each criterion and standard in Certificate of Need Categories
that are applicable to the proposed project. Do not provide responses to General Criteria and
Standards (pages 6-9) here.

RESPONSE: Under the “Tennessee Health: Guidelines for Growth” there are three sets of
criteria applicable to the proposed project:
¢ OQutpatient Diagnostic Centers,
¢ Construction, Renovation, Expansion & Replacement of Health Care Institutions
and
¢ Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI).

OUTPATIENT DIAGNOSTIC CENTERS

1. The need for outpatient diagnostic services shall be determined on a county by county
basis (with data presented for contiguous counties for comparative purposes) and
should be projected four years into the future using available population figures.

REsPONSE: Though a new ODC will be created upon approval, this project essentially
will replace a mobile MRI unit with a fixed MRI unit. MTI will use the current leased
space for the fixed MRI unit with only minor renovations. Hours of operation will
increase from four days per week (including Saturdays) to five weekdays. The
transition from the mobile MRI unit to the proposed fixed MRI unit is not expected to
significantly affect the service area. This project will improve access to and the quality
of cost-effective outpatient imaging services for MTI's existing patient base and
referring physicians.

MTI acquired the existing mobile MRI service in September 2014 and, after the
transition, began operating it in December 2014. The proposed fixed MRI unit is
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projected to become operational in January 2017. Historical MRI utilization data are
provided in Exhibit 1, below, for MTl. Volumes are then projected four years into the
future based upon 88.9% of mobile MRI patients being served in Clarksville in 2015,
increasing the days of service per week in Clarksville from four to five, and using
service area population growth estimates’.

ExHIBIT 1A
PREMIER RADIOLOGY — CLARKSVILLE SITE
MRI HISTORICAL AND PROJECTED UTILIZATION, 2015-2020
PoPULATION GROWTH AT 2.0% PER YEAR

MRI Volumes JAR Interim Projected

2015 2016/ 2017 2018 2019 2020
Procedures 2,538| 2,689 2,817 2,873] 2,931 2,989
Units 1 1 1 1 1 1

Proc/Unit 2,538| 2,589 2,817 2,873| 2,931| 2,989
Sources: TN ODC JARs, MTI internal data, Niglsen, Inc.

These projections are based on a population growth rate which is a blend of the total
population (0.7% per year) and the elderly population (3.3% per year). Imaging
services such as those offered at the facility are historically utilized at a much higher
level by the elderly population, an age cohort which is growing at nearly three times the
rate of the total service area population.

In 2015, 88.9% of the total 2,538 procedures on the mobile MRl were performed in
Clarksville. This amounts to 2,256 procedures in Clarksville. In Clarksville alone, in
2017, the fixed MRI unit is projected to perform 2,817 procedures. This is an increase
of 561 procedures. An additional day of service, noting that one of the current days is a
Saturday, is projected to increase services by 460 procedures. Population growth over
two years is projected to account for another 100 procedures.

Please note that the applicant did not own Mobile MR! Medical Services, LLC or its
ODC License #58 in 2013. Though it took possession of the service in September
2014, it began operations in December 2014 (one month only; no data for prior owner
operations).

ExHIBIT 1B
APPLICANT'S HISTORICAL AND PROJECTED MRI UTILIZATION (PROCEDURES)

4 % Projected  Projected
2013 2014 2015 change @ 2016 Year1 Year 2
'13-'15 (est) (2017) (2017)

Mobile MRI 65 2,538
Procedures | N/A | (1 mo.) | (full yr) N/A 2,589
Fixed MRI
Procedures 2,817 2,873
as a % of
2,880 MRl 97.8% 99.8%
standard

Sources: Historical JARS; internal records

' Growth estimates provided in Question 4a of this section.
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On-site physician supervision will be provided by Dr. Richard Rubinowicz, M.D. and
Richard Berkman, M.D.

Transfer arrangements with Tennova Healthcare Clarksville will be sought for patients
needing transfer to a hospital. Currently, the applicant has a transfer agreement in place
with Saint Thomas Midtown Hospital.

The driving distances between Tennova and the proposed new ODC facility is less than
one mile.

2. Approval of additional outpatient diagnostic services will be made only when it is
demonstrated that existing services in the applicant's geographical service area are not
adequate and/or there are special circumstances that require additional services.

RESPONSE: MRI services are available just three weekdays per week plus Saturdays at
MTI's Clarksville location. MTI's existing mobile MRI unit can no longer accommodate
patient demand. Due to commitments at other mobile locations, MTI cannot expand
mobile service in Clarksville. Replacing the mobile service with a fixed MRI unit is the
next logical step to meet patient demand.

3. Any special needs and circumstances:

a. The needs of both medical and outpatient diagnostic facilities and services must
be analyzed.

RESPONSE: Though a new ODC will be created upon approval, this project
essentially will replace a mobile MRI unit with a fixed MRI unit. MTI will use the
current leased space for the fixed MRI unit with only minor renovations. Hours of
operation will increase from four days per week (including Saturdays) to five
weekdays. The transition from the mobile MRI unit to the proposed fixed MRI unit
is not expected to significantly affect service area providers, including those based
in a hospital, physician office or ODC setting. This project will improve access to
and the quality of cost-effective outpatient imaging services for MTl's existing
patient base and referring physicians.

b. Other special needs and circumstances, which might be pertinent, must be
analyzed.

RESPONSE: As stated above, this project essentially will replace a mobile MRI unit
with a fixed MRI unit though a new ODC will be created upon approval.

c. The applicant must provide evidence that the proposed diagnostic outpatient
services will meet the needs of the potential clientele to be served.

1. The applicant must demonstrate how emergencies within the outpatient
diagnostic facility will be managed in conformity with accepted medical
practice.

RESPONSE: This project does not propose to offer any new health services.
As with current operations, a physician will be present whenever patients are
receiving diagnostic services and technologists will be trained to handle
emergency situations. A crash cart, stocked with appropriate emergency
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equipment and medications, will be maintained at all times. Existing hospital
transfer agreements will be maintained.

2. The applicant must establish protocols that will assure that all clinical
procedures performed are medically necessary and will not unnecessarily
duplicate other services.

RESPONSE: As an existing MRI service, existing policies regarding medical

necessity and medical appropriateness will be maintained.

CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, EXPANSION & REPLACEMENT OF
HEALTH CARE INSTITUTIONS

1. Any project that includes the addition of beds, services, or medical equipment will be
reviewed under the standards for those specific activities.

RESPONSE: MTI acknowledges this statement and has provided responses to the MRI
standards.

2. Forrelocation or replacement of an existing licensed health care institution:

a. The applicant should provide plans which include costs for both renovation and
relocation, demonstrating the strengths and weaknesses of each alternative.

b. The applicant should demonstrate that there is an acceptable existing or
projected future demand for the proposed project.

RESPONSE: Not applicable. The MTI project does not include the relocation or
replacement of an existing licensed health care institution.

3. For renovation or expansions of an existing licensed health care institution:

a. The applicant should demonstrate that there is an acceptable existing demand
for the proposed project.

RESPONSE: As documented above, MRI services are available just three weekdays per
week plus Saturdays at MTI's Clarksville location. MTI's existing mobile MRI unit can no
longer accommodate patient demand. Due to commitments at other mobile locations,
MTI cannot expand mobile service in Clarksville. Replacing the mobile service with a
fixed MRI unit is the next logical step to meet patient demand.

b. The applicant should demonstrate that the existing physical plant's condition
warrants major renovation or expansion.

RESPONSE: MT!'s Clarksville leased space is currently designed to accommodate a
mobile MRI unit that is located outside the facility in a trailer. MTI will reconfigure its
existing space (i.e., no expansion beyond the existing exterior walls) to locate a fixed
MRI unit inside the facility.
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MAGNETIC RESONANCE IMAGING (MRI)

1. Utilization Standards for non-Specialty MRI Units.

a. An applicant proposing a new non-Specialty stationary MRI service should project a
minimum of at least 2160 MRI procedures in the first year of service, building to a
minimum of 2520 procedures per year by the second year of service, and building to a
minimum of 2880 procedures per year by the third year of service and for every year
thereafter.

RESPONSE: As stated above, this project essentially will replace a mobile MRI unit with a
non-Specialty fixed MRI unit though a new ODC will be created upon approval. MTI has
conservatively presented projections of 2,817 procedures in year one, 2,873 procedures
in year two and 2,931 procedures in year three. Historical and projected MRI utilization
is provided in Exhibit 1, above. MTI complies with this requirement for a new non-
Specialty stationary MRI service even though it is only requesting the replacement of a
mobile MRI unit.

b. Providers proposing a new non-Specialty mobile MRI service should project a minimum
of at least 360 mobile MRI procedures in the first year of service per day of operation
per week, building to an annual minimum of 420 procedures per day of operation per
week by the second year of service, and building to a minimum of 480 procedures per
day of operation per week by the third year of service and for every year thereafter.

RESPONSE: Not applicable. This project essentially will replace a non-Specialty mobile
MRI unit with a non-Specialty fixed MRI unit though a new ODC will be created upon
approval.

c. An exception to the standard number of procedures may occur as new or improved
technology and equipment or new diagnostic applications for MRI units are developed.
An applicant must demonstrate that the proposed unit offers a unique and necessary
technology for the provision of health care services in the Service Area.

RESPONSE: Not applicable. MTI is not seeking an exception.

d. Mobile MRI units shall not be subject to the need standard in paragraph 1 b if fewer than
150 days of service per year are provided at a given location. However, the applicant
must demonstrate that existing services in the applicant's Service Area are not adequate
and/or that there are special circumstances that require these additional services.

RESPONSE: Not applicable. MTI is proposing a replacement non-Specialty fixed MRI
unit.

e. Hybrid MRI Units. The HSDA may evaluate a CON application for an MRI “hybrid” Unit
(an MRI Unit that is combined/utilized with another medical equipment such as a
megavoltage radiation therapy unit or a positron emission tomography unit) based on
the primary purposes of the Unit.

RESPONSE: Not applicable. MTI is proposing a replacement non-Specialty fixed MRI

unit.
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2. Access to MRI Units. All applicants for any proposed new MRI Unit should document that
the proposed location is accessible to approximately 75% of the Service Area’s population.
Applications that include non-Tennessee counties in their proposed Service Areas should
provide evidence of the number of existing MRI units that service the non-Tennessee
counties and the impact on MRI unit utilization in the non-Tennessee counties, including
the specific location of those units located in the non-Tennessee counties, their utilization
rates, and their capacity (if that data are available).

RESPONSE: Based on the operation of MTI's existing mobile MRI unit, approximately 89.2%
of the projected patients will reside within the defined primary and secondary service areas.

MTI's secondary service area includes four Kentucky counties: Christian, Logan, Todd and
Trigg. According to the Kentucky Office of Health Policy, Certificate of Need, the following
2014 data was published June 2015.

¢ Christian County has one hospital-based and one freestanding MRI unit affiliated
with Jennie Stuart Medical Center. A total of 3,442 MRI procedures were
performed in 2014.

o Logan Memorial Hospital performed 604 MRI procedures on a single MRI unit in
2014.

¢ Todd County does not have a single MRI provider.

e Trigg County Hospital performed 262 MRI procedures on a single MRI unit in
2014.

As documented in the demographics section that follows, these Kentucky counties are
sparsely populated, with Todd and Trigg having less than 15,000 residents each in 2015.
Logan County had 26,987 residents. Not surprisingly, Christian County had both the
highest MRI utilization and population — 73,668 residents. Low overall MRI utilization rates
can be attributed to the simple reality that even small hospitals serving small populations
need access to basic MRI services. With used 1.5T MRI equipment available for $250,000,
versus Kentucky's CON equipment threshold of $3,023,673, fixed MRI services are
available 24/7 compared to part-time mobile services.

Regardless, MTl's transition from its mobile MRI unit to the proposed fixed MRI unit is not
expected to significantly affect service area providers, including those based in a hospital,
physician office or ODC setting, or those based in Kentucky.

3. Economic Efficiencies. All applicants for any proposed new MRI Unit should document that
alternate shared services and lower cost technology applications have been investigated
and found less advantageous in terms of accessibility, availability, continuity, cost, and
quality of care.

RESPONSE: At four days per week, MTI's Clarksville site has simply outgrown the capacity
of its current shared mobile MRI service. At a cost of only $250,000, MTI's proposed 1.5T
GE MRI unit represents very affordable and high quality technology.
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4. Need Standard for non-Specialty MRI Units.

A need likely exists for one additional non-Specialty MRI unit in a Service Area when the
combined average utilization of existing MRI service providers is at or above 80% of the
total capacity of 3600 procedures, or 2880 procedures, during the most recent twelve
month period reflected in the provider medical equipment report maintained by the HSDA.
The total capacity per MR! unit is based upon the following formula:

Stationary MRI Units: 1.20 procedures per hour x twelve hours per day x 5 days per week x
50 weeks per year = 3,600 procedures per year

Mobile MRI Units: Twelve (12) procedures per day x days per week in operation x 50
weeks per year. For each day of operation per week, the optimal efficiency is 480
procedures per year, or 80 percent of the total capacity of 600 procedures per year.

RESPONSE: As stated above, this project essentially will replace a mobile MRI unit with a
fixed MRI unit though a new ODC will be created upon approval.

The following analysis pertains to MRI utilization within the Tennessee portion of MTI’s
service area.

e MTI's Clarksville site performed 2,319 MRI procedures in 2015 based on operating
four days per week. At an adjusted capacity of 2,400 procedures per year,
utilization was 96.6%.

e Across all three MTI mobile sites, 2,609 procedures were performed in 2015 and
utilization (based on 3,600 procedures per year) was 72.5%.

e In Montgomery County, Clarksville Imaging Center performed 3,426 MRI
procedures in 2014 on a single MRI unit. Gateway Medical Center performed
4,617 MRI procedures in 2014 on two MRI units.

e Also in Montgomery County, Premier Medical Group and Tennessee Orthopaedic
Alliance each operate a single MRI unit but serve a restricted patient population.
They performed 1,453 and 1,976 MRI procedures in 2014, respectively.

e In Robertson County, Northcrest Medical Center performed 3,407 MRI procedures
in 2014 on a single MRI unit.

e Houston County Community Hospital stopped its MRI service in 2013.

¢ Stewart County does not have an MRI service.
Excluding MTI's mobile MRI, which is being replaced, and the physician-owned MRIs,
which serve a restricted patient population, the service area MRI providers operated at
79.51% utilization in 2014 (11,450 procedures + 14,400 capacity = 79.51%). With a

standard at or equal to 80% (versus 80.0% or 80.00%), this criterion is met.

Please see Tab 16 for a copy of Tennessee's 2015 Medical Equipment Registry. MRI
utilization within Montgomery County is presented below.
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UTiLizATION OF EXISTING MRI PROVIDERS LOCATED IN MONTGOMERY COUNTY

MRI | Type | Current | Distance 2012 Use by
Provider (PO, ODC, | # units from Residents of
Name Hospital, | (specify | Applicant Montgomery

HODC, if (in miles) County in
| RPO,H- mobile) ' 2014
_____llImaging) | ‘ Ll Rl R 2 |
Clarkesvill oDC 1 2.6 miles | 4,119 4,276 3,426 2,720
e Imaging
Center,
LLC
Tennova Hospital 2 0.5 miles 5,242 4,432 4,617 3,416
Healthcare
Clarksville
Mobile MRI RPO 1 N/A 1,129 1,404 65 40
Services, (mobile)
LLC -
Clarkesvill
e
Premier PO 1 0.4 miles 1,426 1,386 1,453 1,239
Medical
Group,
P.C.
Tennessee PO 1 6.9 miles 1,915 1,932 1,976 1,488
Orthopaed
ic Alliance
| Total 6 13,831 | 13,430 | 11,537 8,903
Sources: HSDA Alecia Craighead; Google Maps

5. Need Standards for Specialty MRI Units.

RESPONSE: Not applicable. This project does not involve any Specialty MRI Units.

6. Separate Inventories for Specialty MRI Units and non-Specialty MRI Units. If data
availability permits, Breast, Extremity, and Multi-position MRI Units shall not be counted in
the inventory of non-Specialty fixed or mobile MRI Units, and an inventory for each
category of Specialty MRI Unit shall be counted and maintained separately. None of the
Specialty MRI Units may be replaced with non-Specialty MRI fixed or mobile MRI Units and
a Certificate of Need granted for any of these Specialty MRI Units shall have included on its
face a statement to that effect. A non-Speciaity fixed or mobile MRI Unit for which a CON is
granted for Specialty MRI Unit purpose use-only shall be counted in the specific Specialty
MRI Unit inventory and shall also have stated on the face of its Certificate of Need that it
may not be used for non-Specialty MRI purposes.

REsPONSE: Historical MRI utilization is provided at Tab 16. HSDA data do not yet
distinguish between Specialty MRI Units and non-Specialty MRI Units.
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7. Patient Safety and Quality of Care. The applicant shall provide evidence that any proposed
MRI Unit is safe and effective for its proposed use.

a. The United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) must certify the proposed MRI
Unit for clinical use.

RESPONSE: Documentation of FDA approval for the GE 1.5T MRI unit is provided at
Tab 12.

b. The applicant should demonstrate that the proposed MRI Procedures will be offered in
a physical environment that conforms to applicable federal standards, manufacturer’s
specifications, and licensing agencies' requirements.

RESPONSE: Documentation from the architect confirming compliance with applicable
codes and licensing regulations is provided at Tab 13.

c. The applicant should demonstrate how emergencies within the MRI Unit facility will be
managed in conformity with accepted medical practice.

RESPONSE: A physician will be present whenever patients are receiving diagnostic
services and technologists will be trained to handle emergency situations. A crash cart,
stocked with appropriate emergency equipment and medications, will be maintained at
all times. Existing hospital transfer agreements will be maintained.

d. The applicant should establish protocols that assure that all MRI Procedures performed
are medically necessary and will not unnecessarily duplicate other services.

RESPONSE: As an existing MRI service, existing policies regarding medical necessity
and medical appropriateness will be maintained.

e. An applicant proposing to acquire any MR{ Unit or institute any MRI service, including
Dedicated Breast and Extremity MRI Units, shall demonstrate that it meets or is
prepared to meet the staffing recommendations and requirements set forth by the
American College of Radiology, including staff education and training programs.

RESPONSE: MTI's mobile MRI unit is accredited by the American College of Radiology.
MRI accreditation expires August 17, 2017. Accreditation shall be maintained after
replacement with the fixed MRI unit, including staffing recommendations and
requirements, and staff education and training programs.

f. All applicants shall commit to obtain accreditation from the Joint Commission, the
American College of Radiology, or a comparable accreditation authority for MRI within
two years following operation of the proposed MRI Unit.

RESPONSE: MTI's mobile MRI unit is accredited by the American College of Radiology.

MRI! accreditation expires August 17, 2017. Accreditation shall be maintained after
replacement with the fixed MRI unit.
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g. All applicants should seek and document emergency transfer agreements with local
area hospitals, as appropriate. An applicant’s arrangements with its physician medical
director must specify that said physician be an active member of the subject transfer
agreement hospital medical staff.

RESPONSE: Existing hospital transfer agreements will be maintained. A physician will
be present whenever patients are receiving diagnostic services and technologists will
be trained to handle emergency situations. A crash cart, stocked with appropriate
emergency equipment and medications, will be maintained at all times. Hospital
medical staff appointments are provided at Tab 14. The medical director will be an
active member of the subject transfer agreement hospital medical staff.

8. The applicant should provide assurances that it will submit data in a timely fashion as
requested by the HSDA to maintain the HSDA Equipment Registry.

RESPONSE: The applicant will continue to submit data in a timely fashion as requested by
the HSDA to maintain the HSDA Equipment Registry.

9. In light of Rule 0720-11.01, which lists the factors concerning need on which an application
may be evaluated, and Principle No. 2 in the State Health Plan, “Every citizen should have
reasonable access to health care,” the HSDA may decide to give special consideration to
an applicant:

RESPONSE: Though a new ODC will be created upon approval, this project essentially will
replace a mobile MRI unit with a fixed MRI unit. MTI will use the current leased space for
the fixed MRI unit with only minor renovations. Hours of operation will increase from four
days per week (including Saturdays) to five weekdays. The transition from the mobile MRI
unit to the proposed fixed MRI unit is not expected to significantly affect service area
providers, including those based in a hospital, physician office or ODC setting. This project
will improve access to and the quality of cost-effective outpatient imaging services for MTI's
existing patient base and referring physicians.

Describe the relationship of this project to the applicant facility's long-range development plans, if
any.

RESPONSE: MT!'s long-range plan is to assure the availability in Middle Tennessee of cost-effective
outpatient imaging services in patient-friendly, dedicated facilities. MTI believes that a network of
such facilities operated and managed in a coordinated fashion will result in the optimum use of
resources, and will be a key component in future models of health care that contemplate broad
provider integration.

This project is also consistent with the Five Principles for Achieving Better Health as articulated in
the State Health Plan.

1. Healthy Lives. This project will improve the health of Tennesseans by expanding access
to MR services when existing patient demand has outstripped mobile MRI availability.

2. Access to Care. This project will improve access to MRI services when existing patient
demand has outstripped mobile MRI availability.

3. Economic Efficiencies. At a cost of only $250,000, MT!'s proposed 1.5T GE MRI unit
represents very affordable and high quality technology.
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4. Quality of Care. MTl's proposed 1.5T GE MRI unit represents very affordable and high
quality technology.

5. Health Care Workforce. Though hours of operation will increase from four days per week
to five, the existing receptionist, MRI technologist and radiologists are not expected to
change.

Identify the proposed service area and justify the reasonableness of that proposed area. Submit a
county level map including the State of Tennessee clearly marked to reflect the service area.
Please submit the map on 8 1/2” x 11” sheet of white paper marked only with ink detectable
by a standard photocopier (i.e., no highlighters, pencils, etc.).

RESPONSE: Based on historical patient origin data, MTI's service area for this project is comprised
of eight counties. As reported in the mobile MRI's 2015 Joint Annual Report for ODCs, this eight
county area represents 89.2% of MTl's patients. Please see Attachment C, Need — 1 (Tab 11) for
a map and data related to the service area.

A. Describe the demographics of the population to be served by this proposal.

RESPONSE: MTI's primary service area is comprised of Montgomery County. The secondary
service area includes the surrounding Tennessee and Kentucky counties: Houston County,
Robertson County, Stewart County, Christian County (KY), Logan County (KY), Todd County (KY)
and Trigg County (KY).

Between 2015 and 2020, the population of the service area is projected to increase by 3.4%, or by
13,557 residents. This represents an annual growth rate of 0.7% and is similar to the projected
growth rate of the state as a whole within that same five-year period, which is 0.7% annually or
3.5% total growth. Please see EXHIBIT 2, which illustrates the projected changes in population of
the service area between 2015 and 2020, the state of Tennessee, and the United States.

Certificate of Need Application May 2016
Premier Radiology (Clarksville) Page 25

28



Primary Service Area

EXHIBIT 2

TOTAL POPULATION PROJECTIONS

Total Population

2020

Abs Chg Ann % Chg

Total % Chg

Montgomery 187,213 198,331 11,118 1.2% 5.9%
Total PSA 187,213 198,331 11,118 1.2% 5.9%

Secondary Service Area
Christian, KY 73,668 73,417 -251 -0.1% -0.3%
Houston 8,191 8,074 =117 -0.3% -1.4%
Logan, KY 26,987 27,353 366 0.3% 1.4%
Robertson 68,004 70,201 2,197 0.6% 3.2%
Stewart 13,401 13,624 223 0.3% 1.7%
Todd, KY 12,443 12,436 -7 0.0% -0.1%
Trigg, KY 14,261 14,289 28 0.0% 0.2%
Total SSA 216,955 219,394 2,439 0.2% 1.1%
Total SA 404,168 417,725 13,557 0.7% 3.4%
Tennessee 6,562,534 6,794,943 232,409 0.7% 3.5%
United States 319,459,991| 330,689,365 11,229,374 0.7% 3.5%

SOURCE: NIELSEN, INC,
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The anticipated growth in the 65 and older population within the service area is much greater,
more than three times that of the total growth. Between 2015 and 2020, the elderly population is
expected to increase 17.5%, or by 8,357 residents. For Tennessee, the total five-year growth
within this age cohort is projected to be 18.6%, for the United States, 17.7%. Because the elderly
are among the highest users of healthcare services, such an explosive growth rate foretells the
need for MTI to anticipate increasing demand for services as result of this growth as well as that of

the general population. Please see EXHIBIT 3.

EXHIBIT 3

65 AND OLDER POPULATION PROJECTIONS

) 020 AD O 0 . 0 .
Primary Service Area

Montgomery 16,460 20,328 3,868 4.3% 23.5%
Total PSA 16,460 20,328 3,868 4.3% 23.5%

Secondary Service Area
Christian, KY 8,128 8,941 813 1.9% 10.0%
Houston 1,624 1,805 181 2.1% 11.1%
Logan, KY 4,743 5,399 656 2.6% 13.8%
[Robertson 9,303 11,215 1,912 3.8% 20.6%
Stewart 2,553 2,965 412 3.0% 16.1%
Todd, KY 1,918 2,074 156 1.6% 8.1%
Trigg, KY 2,999 3,358 359 2.3% 12.0%
Total SSA 31,268 35,757 4,489 2.7% 14.4%
Total SA 47,728 56,085 8,357 3.3% 17.5%
Tennessee 1,003,750 1,190,490 186,740 3.5% 18.6%
United States 46,876,971 55,154,921 8,277,950 3.3% 17.7%

SOURCE: NIELSEN, INC,

B. Describe the special needs of the service area population, including health disparities, the
accessibility to consumers, particularly the elderly, women, racial and ethnic minorities, and low-
income groups. Document how the business plans of the facility will take into consideration the
special needs of the service area population.

RESPONSE: MTI provides services without regard to gender, race, socio-economic status, or ability
to pay, and participates in the Medicare and TennCare programs.

In 2015, the 65 and older population accounted for 15.3% of the total population in the service
area. As a major demographic subgroup of MTI's patient base, the elderly will continue to expect
of MTI the same level of service while becoming an increasingly larger segment of the total service
area population, with 2020 projections placing the 65 and older population at 17.5% of the total
service area population.
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The female population will represent 51.1% of the total population in the service area by 2020. As
shown in ExHIBIT 4, the female population is expected to grow at the same annual rate as both
sexes in service area, 0.7% per year.

EXHIBIT 4

FEMALE POPULATION PROJECTIONS

Female Population

2015 2020 Abs Chg Ann % Chg Total % Chg
Primary Service Area
Montgomery 94,275 99,877 5,602 1.2% 5.9%
Total PSA 94,275 99,877 5,602 1.2% 5.9%
Secondary Service Area
Christian, KY 35,528 35,338 -190 -0.1% -0.5%
Houston 4,111 4,056 -55 -0.3% -1.3%
Logan, KY 13,746 13,928 182 0.3% 1.3%
Robertson 34,573 35,721 1,148 0.7% 3.3%
Stewart 6,715 6,833 118 0.3% 1.8%
Todd, KY 6,314 6,306 -8 0.0% -0.1%
Trigg, KY 7,267 7,281 14 0.0% 0.2%
Total SSA 108,254 109,463 1,209 0.2% 1.1%
Total SA 202,529 209,340 6,811 0.7% 3.4%
Tennessee 3,359,663 3,474,771 115,108 0.7% 3.4%
United States 162,189,127| 167,778,768 5,589,641 0.7% 3.4%
SOURCE: NIELSEN
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Exhibits 5-7 illustrate the racial composition of the MTI service area.

population will account for 17.2% and other races, 7.4%.

ExHIBIT 5

WHITE POPULATION PROJECTIONS

White Population

By 2020, the white
population will comprise 75.4% of the total population of the service area, while the black

2015 2020 Abs Chg  Ann % Chg Total % Chg
Primary Service Area
Montgomery 130,910 136,433 5,523 0.8% 4.2%
Total PSA 130,910 136,433 5,623 0.8% 4.2%
Secondary Service Area
Christian, KY 51,628 50,335 -1,293 -0.5% -2.5%
Houston 7,606 7,306 -300 -0.8% -3.9%
Logan, KY 23,980 23,938 -42 0.0% -0.2%
Robertson 58,826 60,078 1,252 0.4% 2.1%
Stewart 12,394 12,296 -98 -0.2% -0.8%
Todd, KY 10,937 10,782 -155 0.3% -1.4%
Trigg, KY 12,659 12,628 -31 0.0% -0.2%
Total SSA 178,030 177,363 -667 -0.1% -0.4%
Total SA 308,940 313,796 4,856 0.3% 1.6%
Tennessee 5,020,639 5,124,731 104,092 0.4% 2.1%
United States 227,016,950| 230,375,288 3,358,338 0.3% 1.5%
SOURCE: NIELSEN
EXHIBIT 6

BLACK POPULATION PROJECTIONS

Black Population

2015 2020 Abs Chg' Ann % Chg Total % Chg
Primary Service Area
Montgomery 35,651 37,560 1,909 1.0% 5.4%
Total PSA 35,651 37,560 1,909 1.0% 5.4%
Secondary Service Area
Christian, KY 15,446 15,181 -265 -0.3% -1.7%
Houston 285 381 96 6.0% 33.7%
Logan, KY 1,960 2,181 221 2.2% 11.3%
Robertson 5,264 5,653 389 1.4% 7.4%
Stewart 374 577 203 9.1% 54.3%
Todd, KY 1,052 1,111 59 1.1% 5.6%
Trigg, KY 1,110 1,053 -57 -1.0% -5.1%
Total SSA 25,491 26,137 646 0.5% 2.5%
Total SA 61,142 63,697 2,555 0.8% 4.2%
Tennessee 1,110,044 1,167,103 57,059 1.0% 5.1%
United States 40,652,866| 42,502,785 1,849,919 0.9% 4,6%
SOURCE: NIELSEN
Certificate of Need Application May 2016
Premier Radiology (Clarksville) Page 29

32




ExHIBIT 7

“OTHER” POPULATION PROJECTIONS

"Other” Population

2015 2020 Abs Chg Ann % Chg Total % Chg
Primary Service Area
Montgomery 20,652 24,338 3,686 3.3% 17.8%
Total PSA 20,652 24,338 3,686 3.3% 17.8%
Secondary Service Area
Christian, KY 6,594 7,901 1,307 3.7% 19.8%
Houston 300 387 87 5.2% 29.0%
Logan, KY 1,047 1,234 187 3.3% 17.9%
Robertson 3,914 4,470 556 2.7% 14.2%
Stewart 633 751 118 3.5% 18.6%
Todd, KY 454 543 89 3.6% 19.6%
Trigg, KY 492 608 116 4.3% 23.6%
Total SSA 13,434 15,894 2,460 3.4%) 18.3%
Total SA 34,086 40,232 6,146 3.4% 18.0%
Tennessee 431,851 503,109 71,258 3.1% 16.5%
United States 51,790,175 57,811,292 6,021,117 2.2% 11.6%
SOURCE: NIELSEN
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The service area counties as a whole have a Median Household Income comparable to that of the state
of Tennessee, and lower than the United States as a whole. The annual growth in median household
income in the service area is larger than the state and U.S. overall—1.6% versus 1.3%, 1.3%. Please
see EXHIBIT 8.

EXHIBIT 8
SERVICE AREA MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME

Median Household Income

2015 2020 Abs Chg' Ann % Chg Total % Chg
Primary Service Area

Montgomery $50,250 $56,188 $5,938 2.3% 11.8%
Total PSA $50,250 $56,188 $5,938 2.3% 11.8%

Secondary Service Area
Christian, KY $38,184 $40,196 $2,012 1.0% 5.3%
Houston $37,989 $42,243 $4,254 2.1% 11.2%
Logan, KY $38,886 $42,855 $3,969 2.0% 10.2%
Robertson $58,792 $65,240 $6,448 2.1% 11.0%
Stewart $45,551 $49,468 $3,917 1.7% 8.6%
Todd, KY $40,870 $42,417 $1,547 0.7% 3.8%
Trigg, KY $44,822 $46,446 $1,624 0.7% 3.6%
Total SSA $43,5685 $46,981 $3,396 1.5% 7.8%
Total SA $44,418 $48,132 $3,714 1.6% 8.4%
Tennessee $45,247 $48,199 $2,952 1.3% 6.5%
United States $53,706 $57,294 $3,588 1.3% 6.7%

SOURCE: NIELSEN

In terms of the TennCare population, 19.1% of the service area population is enrolled compared
to 22.6% for the state overall. Please see Attachment C, Need — 4 (Tab 15).

5. Describe the existing or certified services, including approved but unimplemented CONs, of similar
institutions in the service area. Include utilization and/or occupancy trends for each of the most
recent three years of data available for this type of project. Be certain to list each institution and its
utilization and/or occupancy individually. Inpatient bed projects must include the following data:
admissions or discharges, patient days, and occupancy. Other projects should use the most
appropriate measures, e.g., cases, procedures, visits, admissions, etc.

RESPONSE: As stated previously, this project essentially will replace a mobile MRI unit with a fixed
MRI unit though a new ODC will be created upon approval. Individual facility data are found in
Attachment C, Need - 5 (Tab 16).

The following analysis pertains to MRI utilization within the Tennessee portion of MTI’s service area.

e MTI's Clarksville site performed 2,319 MRI procedures in 2015 based on operating four days
per week. At an adjusted capacity of 2,400 procedures per year, utilization was 96.6%.

e Across all three MTI mobile sites, 2,609 procedures were performed in 2015 and utilization
(based on 3,600 procedures per year) was 72.5%.
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e In Montgomery County, Clarksville Imaging Center performed 3,426 MRI procedures in 2014
on a single MRI unit. Gateway Medical Center performed 4,617 MRI procedures in 2014 on
two MRI units.

e Also in Montgomery County, Premier Medical Group and Tennessee Orthopaedic Alliance
each operate a single MRI unit but serve a restricted patient population. They performed
1,453 and 1,976 MRI procedures in 2014, respectively.

¢ In Robertson County, Northcrest Medical Center performed 3,407 MRI procedures in 2014 on
a single MRI unit.

e Houston County Community Hospital stopped its MRI service in 2013.
o Stewart County does not have an MRI service.

Excluding MTI's mobile MRI, which is being replaced, and the physician-owned MRIs, which serve a
restricted patient population, the service area MRI providers operated at 79.51% utilization in 2014
(11,450 procedures + 14,400 capacity = 79.51%). With a standard at or equal to 80% (versus 80.0%
or 80.00%), this criterion is met.

Provide applicable utilization and/or occupancy statistics for your institution for each of the past three
(3) years and the projected annual utilization for each of the two (2) years following completion of the
project. Additionally, provide the details regarding the methodology used to project utilization. The
methodology must include detailed calculations or documentation from referral sources, and
identification of all assumptions.

RESPONSE: Please see EXHIBIT 1, presented previously, for MTI's historical and projected volumes
for MRI services. MTI acquired the existing mobile MRI service in September 2014 and, after the
transition, began operating it in December 2014. Assumptions are provided in the accompanying
text.
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ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

1. Provide the cost of the project by completing the Project Costs Chart on the following page. Justify
the cost of the project.

» All projects should have a project cost of at least $3,000 on Line F. (Minimum CON Filing Fee).
CON filing fee should be calculated from Line D. (See Application Instructions for Filing Fee)

¢ The cost of any lease (building, land and/or equipment) should be based on fair market value
or the total amount of the lease payments over the initial term of the lease, whichever is
greater. NOTE: This applies to all equipment leases including by procedure or “per click”
arrangements. The methodology used to determine the total lease cost for a "per click”
arrangement must include, at a minimum, the projected procedures, the “per click” rate and the
term of the lease.

e The cost for fixed and moveable equipment includes, but is not necessarily limited to,
maintenance agreements covering the expected useful life of the equipment; federal, state,
and local taxes and other government assessments; and installation charges, excluding capital
expenditures for physical plant renovation or in-wall shieiding, which should be included under
construction costs or incorporated in a facility lease.

e For projects that include new construction, madification, and/or renovation; documentation
must be provided from a contractor and/or architect that support the estimated construction
costs.

RESPONSE: Though a new ODC will be created upon approval, this project essentially will replace
a mobile MR} unit with a fixed MRI unit. At a cost of only $250,000, MTI's proposed 1.5T GE MRI
unit represents very affordable and high quality technology. The replacement equipment will be
purchased used, as opposed to new. There are no service contract costs anticipated. Per MTI
policy, all maintenance required will be funded through operations as needed.

Please see the vendor quotations for the equipment to be purchased in Attachment B, II.E.3 (Tab
7). All prices are before sales tax.

The cost of the replacement MRI fixed unit is $250,000 plus approximately $23,125 for taxes, for a
total of approximately $273,123. This increase does not affect the CON filing fee for the project.

Please see Attachment C, Need — 1 (Tab 13) for a letter from the architect supporting the
construction costs.
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SUPPLEMENTAL #1

PROJECT COSTS CHART
° June 21, 2016

A. Construction and equipment acquired by purchase: 11:06 am
1. Architectural and Engineering Fees $ 31,191.00
2. Legal, Administrative (Excluding CON Filing Fee), $ 50,000.00

Consultant Fees

3. Acquisition of Site

4, Preparation of Site

5. Construction Costs $ 509,919.00
6. Contingency Fund $ 25,992.00
7. Fixed Equipment (Not included in Construction Contract) $  250,000.00
8. Moveable Equipment (List all equipment over $50,000)

9. Other (Other FF&E) $ 25,000.00

B. Acquisition by gift, donation, or lease:

1. Facility (inclusive of building and land) $ 46,546.00
2. Building only

3. Land only

4, Equipment (Specify)

5. Other (Specify)

C. Financing Costs and Fees:

1. Interim Financing

2. Underwriting Costs

3. Reserve for One Year's Debt Service

4. Other (Specify)

D. Estimated Project Cost $ 938,648.00
(A+B+C)

E. CON Filing Fee $ 3,000.00

F. Total Estimated Project Cost $ 941,648.00
(D+E)

TOTAL $ 941,648.00
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Identify the funding sources for this project.

Please check the applicable item(s) below and briefly summarize how the project will be financed.
(Documentation for the type of funding MUST be inserted at the end of the application, in
the correct alpha/numeric order and identified as Attachment C, Economic Feasibility-2.)

A. Commercial loan--Letter from lending institution or guarantor stating favorable initial
contact, proposed loan amount, expected interest rates, anticipated term of the loan, and any
restrictions or conditions;

B. Tax-exempt bonds--Copy of preliminary resolution or a letter from the issuing authority
stating favorable initial contact and a conditional agreement from an underwriter or investment
banker to proceed with the issuance;

C. General obligation bonds—Copy of resolution from issuing authority or minutes from the
appropriate meeting.

D. Grants--Notification of intent form for grant application or notice of grant award; or

X E. Cash Reserves (Tab 17) The parent company (Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC — d/b/a
Premier Radiology) is the applicant. No transfer of funds between entities will be required.

F. Other—Identify and document funding from all other sources.

Discuss and document the reasonableness of the proposed project costs. If applicable, compare the
cost per square foot of construction to similar projects recently approved by the Health Services and
Development Agency.

RESPONSE: The HSDA construction cost tables do not report ranges for ODCs, “Due to insufficient
sample size.” Regardless, the $242.46 per square foot proposed by MTI for renovations is midway
between the hospital median of $192.46 per square foot and the hospital 3" quartile of $297.82 per
square foot for all Tennessee hospital renovation projects reported from 2012 to 2014. Therefore, the
MTI cost per square foot projections are not unreasonable.
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Complete Historical and Projected Data Charts on the following two pages--Do _not modify the
Charts provided or submit Chart substitutions! Historical Data Chart represents revenue and
expense information for the last three (3) years for which complete data is available for the institution.
Projected Data Chart requests information for the two (2) years following the completion of this
proposal. Projected Data Chart should reflect revenue and expense projections for the Proposal
Only (i.e., if the application is for additional beds, include anticipated revenue from the proposed beds
only, not from all beds in the facility).

RESPONSE: Please refer to the completed charts on the following pages. Please note that the mobile
MRI was purchased by MTI in September 2014 and, after the transition, became operational in
December 2014. Therefore, prior year historical information does not exist.

The Projected Data Chart reflects operations for the fixed MRI unit only.

Nine unduplicated charity care patients received MRI procedures at no charge in 2015 along with 190
patients who had their balances written off due to non-payment. Thirty-five charity care patients are
expected in Year 1 along with an estimated number of 225 patients who will have their balances
written off due to non-payment

0.5 full time equivalent (FTE) radiologists were reflected in physician compensation (Section D, Item
2) in 2015. 0.5 are budgeted again for Year 1 to provide coverage for the proposed fixed MRI unit
and the increase to the facility’s hours/days of operation.

Regarding the Fees to Affiliates (Line D.8.a), these represent the Management Fees paid to PhyData,
LLC, under the Amended Administrative Services Agreement provided here in Tab 4. PhyData is
paid 2.25% of Net Technical Only collections (Year 1 Example — Net Revenue of $1,303,018 minus
the physician portion of $364,845 = $938,173 x 2.25% = $21,109).

PhyData, LLC (in addition to the Administrative Services Agreement) also has a separate Billing
Services Agreement with MTI. PhyData is paid 4.5% of Net Global Coliections (Year 1 Example —
Net Revenue of $1,303,018 x 4.5% = $58,636). This amount is included in the Other Expenses on
page 39 of the Application along with an additional $10,000 paid for Pre-Certification software
services for a total Billing Expense of $68,636.

PhyData, LLC is the only Billing Service utilized. There is not a second outsourced Collection Agency
referenced. We realize the description may have been somewhat misleading.

Please identify the project's average gross charge, average deduction from operating revenue, and
average net charge.

RESPONSE: Average gross patient charge per unit of service, as reported in the Projected Data Chart
and based on Year 2 projections (2018), is $1,843. The average deduction from gross patient
charges, based on contractual allowances only and excluding allowances for charity care and bad
debt, is $1,318, resulting in an average net charge per unit of service of $525.
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HISTORICAL DATA CHART

Give information for the last three (3) years for which complete data are available for the facility

or agency. The fiscal year begins in January.

A. Ultilization Data (Specify unit of measure -Procedures)
B. Revenue from Services to Patients

1. Inpatient Services

2. Outpatient Services

3. Emergency Services

4. Other Operating Revenue (Specify) N/A.

Gross Operating Revenue

C. Deductions from Gross Operating Revenue
1. Contractual Adjustments
2. Provision for Charity Care
3. Provisions for Bad Debt

Total Deductions

NET OPERATING REVENUE

D. Operating Expenses

Salaries and Wages

Physician's Salaries and Wages
Supplies

Taxes

Depreciation

Rent

Interest, other than Capital
Management Fees:

a. Fees to Affiliates

b. Fees to Non-Affiliates

9. Other Expenses (Specify) IT. Ins. Equip Repair. Billing, ete.

O N RN

Total Operating Expenses
E. Other Revenue (Expenses) — Net (Specify)
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
F. Capital Expenditures

1. Retirement of Principal
2. Interest

Total Capital Expenditures

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Certificate of Need Application
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2015 Year____ Year
2,538
$ 0 $ $
4,677,152
0
0
$4,677,152 $__ $
$3,580,703 $ $
28,063
130,960
$3,739,726 $ $
$ 937426 $ $
$ 181,525 § 3
267,113
22,901
10,000
60,408
37,908
0
15,622
0
218,987
$ 814,464 $_ $
$ 0 § $
$ 122962 § $
$ 0 $ $
$ $ ]
$ 122,962 $ $
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Other Expense Type/Detail 2015

Insurance $ 6,794

RIS/PACS Services (IT) 6,490

Billing & Collection Agency Fees 44,432

Other Purchased Services 799

Telecommunications 1,097

Transportation, Meals, & Entertainment 2,395

Repairs & Maintenance (Equipment) 116,609

Other Operating Expenses (Ultilities, etc.) 40,371
Total Other Expenses $ 218,987
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PROJECTED DATA CHART

Give information for the two (2) years following the completion of this proposal. The fiscal year

begins in January.

2017 2018
A. Utilization Data (Specify unit of measure-Procedures) 2,817 2,873
B. Revenue from Services to Patients
1. Inpatient Services $ 0 $ 0
2. Outpatient Services 5,191,308 5,294,508
3. Emergency Services 0 0
4. Other Operating Revenue (Specify) n/a 0 0
Gross Operating Revenue $5,191,308 $5,294,508
C. Deductions from Gross Operating Revenue
1. Contractual Adjustments $3,711,785 $3,785,573
2. Provision for Charity Care 31,148 31,767
3. Provisions for Bad Debt 145,357 148,246
Total Deductions $3,888,290 $3,965,586
NET OPERATING REVENUE $1,303,018 $1,328,922
D. Operating Expenses
1. Salaries and Wages $ 200,000 $ 205,000
2. Physician’s Salaries and Wages 364,845 372,098
3. Supplies 28,000 29,800
4. Taxes 10,000 10,500
5. Depreciation 137,000 137,000
6. Rent 40,000 44,000
7. Interest, other than Capital 0 0
8. Management Fees:
a. Fees to Affiliates 21,109 21,529
b. Fees to Non-Affiliates 0 0
9. Other Expenses: IT, Biling Fee, Ins, Repairs & Maintenance, etc. 265,823 272,276
Total Operating Expenses $1,066,777 $1,092,203
E. Other Revenue (Expenses) -- Net (Specify) $ 0 $ 0
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 236,241 $ 236,719
F. Capital Expenditures
1. Retirement of Principal $ 0 $ 0
2. Interest 0 0
Total Capital Expenditures $ 0 $ 0
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $_236,241 $_236,719
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Other Expense Type/Detail
Insurance
RIS/PACS Services (IT)
Billing & Collection Agency Fees
Other Purchased Services
Telecommunications
Transportation, Meals, & Entertainment
Repairs & Maintenance (Equipment)

Other Operating Expenses (Utilities, etc.)

Total Other Expenses

Certificate of Need Application
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2017 2018

$ 8,000 8,500

7,888 8,044

68,636 69,801

2,000 2,200

1,500 1,650

2,800 3,080

125,000 127,000

50,000 52,000

$ 265,823 272,276
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6.

A. Please provide the current and proposed charge schedules for the proposal. Discuss any
adjustment to current charges that will result from the implementation of the proposal. Additionally,
describe the anticipated revenue from the proposed project and the impact on existing patient
charges.

RESPONSE: The charges for services in the proposed ODC facility will be the same as the current
charges. There is no increase anticipated for year one of the project. The net operating income
from the project in the first and second year is expected to be $236,241 and $236,719,
respectively. Representative charges for the highest volume CPT codes at this facility are as
follows:

CPT Code Procedure Charge Medicare
Reimbursement

RI

72148 Lumbar Spine w/o $1,697 $444
72141 Neck or Spine $1,693 $444
73721 Joint of Lower Extremity $1,862 $472

B. Compare the proposed charges to those of similar facilities in the service area/adjoining service
areas, or to proposed charges of projects recently approved by the Health Services and
Development Agency. If applicable, compare the proposed charges of the project to the current
Medicare allowable fee schedule by common procedure terminology (CPT) code(s).

RESPONSE: A comparison of the average gross charges for MRI scans, compared with other
facilities in Montgomery and Robertson counties, is shown in the table below. A comparison of the
applicant’s proposed charges with the Medicare allowable reimbursement is included in the table
above.

EXHIBIT 9
MRI CHARGE COMPARISON

Applicant — current and proposed $1,843

Clarksville Imaging Center $1,853
Gateway Medical Center $5,469
Premier Medical Group $1,285
Tennessee Orthopaedic Alliance $1,615
Northcrest Medical Center $1,963

Source: 2014 HSDA Equipment Registry

For the most part, professional fees for MRI interpretation services by MTI's radiologists will be
reimbursed by the applicant because most studies will be globally billed by MTI. In cases where
it is required by law or contract that the professional services are billed separately, the
radiologists will bill for their own services and MTI will bill for the technical component of the MRI
study only. In cases where split billing is performed, the professional services agreement
requires that the radiology group participate with all insurance plans that MT| accepts.
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7. Discuss how projected utilization rates will be sufficient to maintain cost-effectiveness.

RESPONSE: MTI's services proposed in this project are already in place and financially feasible. As
indicated in the Projected Data Chart, projected utilization will be sufficient to continue to allow MTI
to operate efficiently and effectively.

8. Discuss how financial viability will be ensured within two years; and demonstrate the availability of
sufficient cash flow until financial viability is achieved.

RESPONSE: As indicated in the Projected Data Chart, projected cash flow will ensure financial
viability within two years and over the long-term.

9, Discuss the project's participation in state and federal revenue programs including a description of
the extent to which Medicare, TennCare/Medicaid, and medically indigent patients will be served by
the project. In addition, report the estimated dollar amount of revenue and percentage of total
project revenue anticipated from each of TennCare, Medicare, or other state and federal sources
for the proposal's first year of operation.

RESPONSE: MTI's mobile MRI service, like its fixed facilities, currently participates in all TennCare
MCOs operating in Middle Tennessee and has a history of providing care regardless of payor
source. In 2015, MTI's mobile MRI service provided $11,467 in care to charity/medically indigent
patients (accounting for 0.2% of gross patient charges of $4,682,460). During the first year of
operation, 2017, MTI's fixed MRI facility’s projected payor mix is presented in the following table.
Please note that MRI is the only imaging service to be provided at the proposed ODC.

APPLICANT’S PROJECTED MRI SERVICE PAYOR MiX, YEAR 1

Payor Source

Gross Revenue As a % of total Average Gross

Year 1 Gross Revenue | Charge per MRI

:I | Year 1 Procedure

Medicare $882,303 17.0% $1.842.85
TennCare | $1117233|  215% |  $1,842.85
Managed care $1,612089 | ~ 311% |  $1,842.85
Commercial $L219,615 ______-_23_-5_%.. - _$_1_,8_42.§5__
SelffPay |  $28784 0.6% $1,842.85
Other | $331,285 _ 6.4% $1,842.85
~ Total $5,191,308 100.0%

Source: Internal records, 2015, adjusted for service area trends
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10.

11.

Provide copies of the balance sheet and income statement from the most recent reporting period of
the institution and the most recent audited financial statements with accompanying notes, if
applicable. For new projects, provide financial information for the corporation, partnership, or
principal parties involved with the project. Copies must be inserted at the end of the application, in
the correct alpha-numeric order and labeled as Attachment C, Economic Feasibility-10.

RESPONSE: Please see Attachment C, Economic Feasibility — 10 (Tab 18).

Describe all alternatives to this project which were considered and discuss the advantages and
disadvantages of each alternative including but not limited to:

a.

A discussion regarding the availability of less costly, more effective, and/or more efficient
alternative methods of providing the benefits intended by the proposal. If development of
such alternatives is not practicable, the applicant shouid justify why not; including reasons as
to why they were rejected.

RESPONSE: MRI services are available just three weekdays per week plus Saturdays at
MTI's Clarksville location. MTI's existing mobile MRI unit can no longer accommodate
patient demand. Due to commitments at other mobile locations, MTI cannot expand mobile
service in Clarksville. Replacing the mobile service with a fixed MRI unit is the next logical
step to meet patient demand. Furthermore, at a cost of only $250,000, MTI's proposed
previously-owned 1.5T GE MRI unit represents very affordable and high quality technology.
This project is necessary to improve access to and the quality of cost-effective outpatient
imaging services. This project essentially will replace a mobile MRI unit with a fixed MRI unit
though a new ODC will be created upon approval.

The applicant should document that consideration has been given to alternatives to new
construction, e.g., modernization or sharing arrangements. It should be documented that
superior alternatives have been implemented to the maximum extent practicable.

RESPONSE: MTI's Clarksville leased space is currently designed to accommodate a mobile
MRI unit that is located putside the facility in a trailer. MTI will reconfigure its existing space
(i.e., no expansion beyond the existing exterior walls) to locate a fixed MRI unit inside the
facility.

Moving to a new site, either in owned or leased space, was rejected as this would still
require MTI to make lease payments on the existing space. Additional costs would be
incurred to change the address for referral and billing purposes.
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CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF HEALTH CARE

1. List all existing health care providers (e.g., hospitals, nursing homes, home care organizations,
etc.), managed care organizations, alliances, and/or networks with which the applicant currently
has or plans to have contractual and/or working relationships, e.g., transfer agreements,
contractual agreements for health services.

RESPONSE: MTI has many active managed care contracts in place to provide for seamless care of
its patients, including:

o Aetna

¢ Americhoice TennCare

e Amerigroup TennCare

e Beech Street

e Bluegrass Family Health Plan

e Blue Cross Blue Shield = TN - Ntwk P & S
e BlueCare/TennCare Select

e Bridgestone Firestone — WC arrangement
o Center Care Network

¢ Cigna HMO, POS, & PPO / Med Solutions
o Corvel

e Coventry / First Health

¢ Health Payors Organizations (HPO)

e HealthSpring HMO / Medicare Advantage
e Humana - Military — Tricare Prime

¢ Humana - all products

e Nissan — Work Comp arrangement

e Orchid Medical - Work Comp

e Prime Health

¢ Multiplan / Private Healthcare Systems

¢ Novanet — all products

e Signature Health Alliance — access through Bluegrass
e United Healthcare — all products

« USA Managed Care

¢ Windsor Health Plan of TN — MEDICARE EXTRA

2, Describe the positive and/or negative effects of the proposal on the health care system. Please be
sure to discuss any instances of duplication or competition arising from your proposal including a
description of the effect the proposal will have on the utilization rates of existing providers in the
service area of the project.

RESPONSE: Though a new ODC will be created upon approval, this project essentially will replace a
mobile MRI unit with a fixed MRI unit. MTI will use the current leased space for the fixed MRI unit
with only minor renovations. Hours of operation will increase from four days per week (including
Saturdays) to five weekdays. The transition from the mobile MRI unit to the proposed fixed MRI
unit is not expected to significantly affect service area providers. This project will improve access
to and the quality of cost-effective outpatient imaging services for MTI's existing patient base and
referring physicians.
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Provide the current and/or anticipated staffing pattern for all employees providing patient care for
the project. This can be reported using FTEs for these positions. Additionally, please compare the
clinical staff salaries in the proposal to prevailing wage patterns in the service area as published by
the Tennessee Department of Labor & Workforce Development and/or other documented sources.

RESPONSE: Though hours of operation will increase from four days per week to five, the existing
receptionist, MRI technologist and radiologists are not expected to change. Regardless, MT} will
utilize a number of channels to replace needed staff, if and when necessary, including in-house
listings of available positions, advertisements in local and regional newspapers, advertisements in
professional publications, and recruiting firms. MTI has a history of successfully recruiting
professional and administrative staff because it provides competitive benefits, compensation, and
is committed to the retention of existing personnel.

Exhibit 10, below, illustrates current and proposed staffing levels of the proposed project. The
radiologists are reimbursed based on a percentage of collections (CMS RBRVS split). 0.5 FTEs

are budgeted for both Year 1 and Year 2.

ExHIBIT10
CURRENT AND PROPOSED STAFFING LEVELS
(FuLL TIME EQUIVALENTS)
Position Current Proposed FTE Variance
MRI Tech 1.0 1.0 0.0
Med Assist/Ofc 1.0 1.0 0.0
Total FTEs 2.0 2.0 0.0

Clarksville (Montgomery County) part of the Clarksville, TN-KY MSA. Exhibit 11 profiles
comparable positions and salaries for the MSA. MTlI's salaries and wages are competitive with
the market. Proposed hourly salaries for the positions are presented below.

EXHIBIT 11
CLARKSVILLE, TN-KY MSA
MAY 2014 HOURLY WAGE RATES

MRI Tech $36.00 $19.33 $23.42 $22.71 $28.02
Med Assist/Ofc $11.75 $10.11 $13.77 $12.69 $16.48

Sources: MTI internal data; US Bureau of Labor Statistics

* The benchmark categories in the BLS information is “Radiologic Technologists” and “Healthcare Support Occupations”

Discuss the availability of and accessibility to human resources required by the proposal, including
adequate professional staff, as per the Department of Health, the Department of Mental Health and
Developmental Disabilities, and/or the Division of Mental Retardation Services licensing

requirements.

ReEsPoNSE: Though hours of operation will increase from four days per week to five, the existing
receptionist, MRI technologist and radiologists are not expected to change. A number of channeis
are utilized to maintain staffing, including in-house listings of available positions, advertisements in
local and regional newspapers, advertisements in professional publications, and recruiting firms.
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MT! has a history of successfully recruiting professional and administrative staff. It provides
competitive benefits, compensation, and is committed to the retention of existing personnel.

Verify that the applicant has reviewed and understands all licensing certification as required by the
State of Tennessee for medical/clinical staff. These include, without limitation, regulations
concerning physician supervision, credentialing, admission privileges, quality assurance policies
and programs, utilization review policies and programs, record keeping, and staff education.

RESPONSE: MTI has reviewed and understands the licensure and certification requirements for
medical and clinical staff. As an existing licensed and ACR-accredited provider, MTI has
administrative policies and procedures in place to ensure that licensure and certification
requirements are followed. Furthermore, MTI maintains quality standards that are focused on
continual improvement.

Discuss your heaith care institution's participation in the training of students in the areas of
medicine, nursing, social work, etc. (e.g., internships, residencies, etc.).

RESPONSE: The applicant is not currently involved in any training programs, but is willing to
consider this under the auspices of an appropriate educated institution.

(a) Please verify, as applicable, that the applicant has reviewed and understands the licensure
requirements of the Department of Health, the Department of Mental Health and Developmental
Disabilities, the Division of Mental Retardation Services, and/or any applicable Medicare
requirements.

RESPONSE: MTI is licensed by the Tennessee Department of Health. The current license for
mobile MRI expires July 15, 2016. MTI has reviewed and understands the licensure requirements.

There has been no change of ownership in the holder of the ODC License #58 since 2011. It has
been and remains Mobile MRI Medical Services, LLC. Mobile MRI Medical Services, LLC has
been in contact with the Department of Health since the applicant's acquisition of this entity for
purposes of various filings required in connection with ownership of an ODC.

(b) Provide the name of the entity from which the applicant has received or will receive licensure,
certification, and/or accreditation.

RESPONSE: Licensure: Board of Licensing Health Care Facilities, State of Tennessee, Department
of Health. The current license for the mobile MRI expires July 15, 2016. Please see Attachment
C, Contribution to the Orderly Development of Health Care — 7.(b) (Tab 19).

Accreditation: MTI is accredited by the American College of Radiology. Mobile MRI accreditation
expires August 17, 2017.
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10.

(c) If an existing institution, please describe the current standing with any licensing, certifying, or
accrediting agency. Provide a copy of the current license of the facility.

RESPONSE: Please see Attachment C, Contribution to the Orderly Development of Health
Care — 7.(b) (Tab 19). The current mobile MRI license is valid until July 15, 2016.

(d) For existing licensed providers, document that all deficiencies (if any) cited in the last licensure
certification and inspection have been addressed through an approved plan of correction. Please
include a copy of the most recent licensure/certification inspection with an approved plan of
correction.

RESPONSE: There are no outstanding deficiencies.

Document and explain any final orders or judgments entered in any state or country by a licensing
agency or court against professional licenses held by the applicant or any entities or persons with
more than a 5% ownership interest in the applicant. Such information is to be provided for licenses
regardless of whether such license is currently held.

RESPONSE: There have been no final orders or judgments placed against MTI or any entity or
person with more than 5% ownership.

Identify and explain any final civil or criminal judgments for fraud or theft against any person or
entity with more than a 5% ownership interest in the project

RESPONSE: There have been no civil or criminal judgments against MT| or any entity or person
with more than 5% ownership.

If the proposal is approved, please discuss whether the applicant will provide the Tennessee
Health Services and Development Agency and/or the reviewing agency information concerning the
number of patients treated, the number, and type of procedures performed, and other data as
required.

RESPONSE: Yes, MTI will provide the Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency and/or
the reviewing agency information concerning the number of patients treated, the number, and type
of procedures performed, and other data as required. Additionally, MTl submits a Joint Annual
Report (JAR) to the Department of Health and will continue to do so.
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PROOF OF PUBLICATION

Attach the full page of the newspaper in which the notice of intent appeared with the mast and
dateline intact or submit a publication affidavit from the newspaper as proof of the publication of
the letter of intent.

RESPONSE: Please see Attachment D — Proof of Publication (Tabs 20-21).

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

Tennessee Code Annotated §68-11-1609(c) provides that a Certificate of Need is valid for a period
not to exceed three (3) years (for hospital projects) or two (2) years (for all other projects) from the
date of its issuance and after such time shall expire; provided, that the Agency may, in granting
the Certificate of Need, allow longer periods of validity for Certificates of Need for good cause
shown. Subsequent to granting the Certificate of Need, the Agency may extend a Certificate of
Need for a period upon application and good cause shown, accompanied by a non-refundable
reasonable filing fee, as prescribed by rule. A Certificate of Need which has been extended shall
expire at the end of the extended time period. The decision whether to grant such an extension is
within the sole discretion of the Agency, and is not subject to review, reconsideration, or appeal.

1. Please complete the Project Completion Forecast Chart on the next page. If the project
will be completed in multiple phases, please identify the anticipated completion date for
each phase.

2, If the response to the preceding question indicates that the applicant does not anticipate

completing the project within the period of validity as defined in the preceding paragraph,
please state below any request for an extended schedule and document the “good cause”
for such an extension.

RESPONSE: Please see the project forecast completion chart below.

Form HF0004
Revised 02/01/06
Previous Forms are obsolete
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PROJECT FORECAST COMPLETION CHART

SUPPLEMENTAL #1
June 21, 2016
11:06 am

Enter the Agency projected Initial Decision date, as published in T.C.A. § 68-11-1609( ¢ ): August 2016

Assuming the CON approval becomes the final agency action on that date; indicate the number of days
from the above agency decision date to each phase of the completion forecast.

10.

1.

12.

13.

. Architectural and engineering contract signed

. Construction documents approved by the Tennessee

Department of Health

. Construction contract signed

. Building permit secured

. Site preparation completed

. Building construction commenced
. Construction 40% complete

. Construction 80% complete

. Construction 100% complete (approved for occupancy)

*Issuance of license
*Initiation of service
Final Architectural Certification of Payment

Final Project Report Form (HF0055)

DAYS Anticipated Date

REQUIRED (MONTH/YEAR)
5 Sep-16
20 Sep-16
30 Sep-16
60 Oct-16
60 Nov-16
90 Nov-16
120 Dec-16
150 Jan-17
180 Feb-17
210 Mar-17
210 Mar-17
240 Apr-17
270 May-17

For projects that do NOT involve construction or renovation: Please complete items

10 and 11 only.

Note: If litigation occurs, the completion forecast will be adjusted at the time of the final

determination to reflect the actual issue date.
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AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF _ Tennessee

COUNTYOF __ PAviDsend

Ryan D. Brown being first duly sworn, says that he/she is the applicant named in

this application or his/her lawful agent, that this project will be completed in accordance with the
application, that the applicant has read the directions to this application, the Health Services and
Development Agency, and T.CA § 68-11-1601, et seq., and that the responses to this

application or any other questions deemed appropriate by the Health Services and Development
Agency are true and complete.

8 L7
‘r’ > g 9840,

Sworn to and subscribed before me this L;? day of ﬂ la., ..373{( a Notary "f, Q," ----- w,f\
zMontrg (Year] %17, 080N GO

.,/’

Public in and for the County/State of fSine sSt e

C_j Lc,:\_' W) h@( ¢

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires \X\JLU\ g . 90 | \7

(Month/Pay) J Year '
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Organizational/Ownership Chart
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Related Healthcare Institutions
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Middle Tennessee Imaging, LL.C

Related Healthcare Institutions

Premier Radiology Edmondson Pike
Premier Radiology Hermitage

Premier Radiology Cool Springs

Middle Tennessee Imaging Smyrna

Premier Radiology Nashville

Middle Tennessee Imaging Murfreesboro
Premier Radiology Chattanooga

Premier Radiology Pain Management Center
Premier Radiology Hendersonville

. Premier Radiology Briarville

. Premier Radiology Baptist

. Premier Radiology Mt. Juliet

. Premier Radiology Belle Meade

. Saint Thomas Outpatient Imaging Mt. Juliet

. Saint Thomas Outpatient Imaging Hermitage

. Saint Thomas Outpatient Imaging Nashville

. Saint Thomas Outpatient Imaging Chattanooga
. Saint Thomas Outpatient Imaging Smyrna

. Saint Thomas Outpatient Imaging Southern Hills
. Saint Thomas Outpatient Imaging Cool Springs
. Saint Thomas Outpatient Imaging Belle Meade
. Saint Thomas Outpatient Imaging
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MCO/BHO Participation
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Saint Thomas Health Imaging — Managed Care Contracts

e Aetna

e Americhoice TennCare

¢ Amerigroup TennCare

e Beech Street

e Bluegrass Family Health Plan

e Blue Cross Blue Shield = TN —Ntwk P & S
e BlueCare/TennCare Select

e Bridgestone Firestone — WC arrangement
e Center Care Network

¢ Cigna HMO, POS, & PPO / Med Solutions
o Corvel

e Coventry / First Health

e Health Payors Organizations (HPO)

¢ HealthSpring HMO / Medicare Advantage
e Humana - Military — Tricare Prime

e Humana — all products

e Nissan — Work Comp arrangement

e Orchid Medical — Work Comp

s Prime Health

e Multiplan / Private Healthcare Systems

» Novanet — all products

¢ Signature Health Alliance — access through Bluegrass
¢ United Healthcare — all products

¢ USA Managed Care

e Windsor Health Plan of TN - MEDICARE EXTRA
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Attachment B, Ill.(A)

Plot Plan
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980 Professional Park Dr - Google Maps https://www.google.com/maps/place/980+Professional+Park+Dr,+Clarks...

Google Maps 980 Professional Park Dr

Imagery ©2016 Google, Map data ©2016 Google 100 ft

980 Professional Park Dr
Clarksville, TN 37040

1 of3 3/11/2016 7:07 AM



980 Professional Park Dr - Google Maps

20f3

At this location

Bone & Joint Group: Schmidt Tamikka MD
Doctor - Professional Park Dr

Center for Neurological Treatment & Research

Neurologist - Professional Park Dr
Opens at 8:30 AM

Eye Health Partners & VisionAmerica

Eye Care Center - Professional Park Dr
Opens at 9:00 AM

John L. Stanton, MD

Orthopedic Surgeon - Professional Park Dr
Open until 5:00 PM

Keith D. Starkweather, MD
Orthopedic Surgeon - Professional Park Dr

PainMD Pain and Wellness Clinics
3.9 @)
Medical Clinic - Professional Park Dr

Premier Radiology - Clarkville
Medical Diagnostic Imaging Center - Professional Park Dr

Select Physical Therapy - Clarksville Professional Park
Physical Therapy Clinic - Professional Park Dr
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980 Professional Park Dr - Google Maps https://www.google.com/maps/place/980+Professional+Park+Dr,+Clarks...

Smart Kelly M
Doctor - Professional Park Dr

The Bone & Joint Group

Medical Clinic - Professional Park Dr
Opens at 8:00 AM

Google Maps
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Attachment B, Ill.(B).1

Service Area Access
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Tab 10
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Attachment B, IV

Schematics
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Attachment C

Service Area Map and Patient Origin Data
FDA Documentation
Construction Costs Verification Letter
Radiologist CVs
Service Area TennCare Population
Historical MRI Utilization
Verification of Funding
Balance Sheet and Income Statement
FacilityLicense, ACR Accreditation
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Attachment C
Need -1

Service Area Map and Patient Origin Data
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Mobile MRI Medical Services
2015 Patient Origin

Stewart 143 7.4% 74.6%

State of KY 130 6.7% 81.3%

Robertson 87 4.5% 85.8%

Houston 66 3.4% 89.2%
Sutotal 1,723 89.2%

Other 208 10.8% 100.0%
Total 1,931 100.0%

Source: 2015 ODC JAR
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Attachment C
Need -1

Construction Costs Verification Letter
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1)
[

POWELL

BROMITECTURE » BUAQING .Il
STUDID)

Revision: Original

Powell Construction Studio, LLC

Clarksville MRI
Clarksville
Clarksville, TN 37206

904 Main Street, Suite A-1
Nashville, TN 37206
P: 6153205000 « F:

Printed On: 3/1/16

Please find enclosed industry standard sectional Division pricing breakdown on the above referenced project as you

requested.

Division Total
01 General Conditions $21,950.20
02 Site Work $4,155.00
03 Concrete $6,030.00
04 Masonry $4,522.50
05 Steel $1,507.50
06 Carpentry $2,513.51
07 Moisture & Thermal Protection $3,517.50
08 Doors, Windows & Glass $1,152.38
09 Finishes $36,183.02
10 Specialities $0.00
12 Furnishings $10,050.00
15 Mechanical $128,137.50
16 Electrical $40,199.99
Total $259,919.10

Cost/Sq. Foot (Sq Ft): 1,072 $242.46

We appreciate the opportunity to be included in this project, if you have any questions, please feel free to call,

Thank you,
Marc Dail
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LEE International %™,

L gt
Y

8125 Elderwood, Shreveport, LA 71107
Phone (318) 347-3198 Fax (318) 929-1719

Michael Moreland
Premier Imaging

28 White Bridge Pike
Suite #111
Nashville, TN 37205

Construction Estimate
Project in Clarksville TN 37040

Build an MRI Room as follows:
e Supply and install an RF Shield including all penetrations and door.
e Test RF Shield at completion.
e Provide Power, HVAC and Plumbing as requwed
e Provide Cryogen Exhaust Piping.
e Provide finished floor, painted walls and hung ceiling.
e Secure Building Permit.

Total Cost = $250,000.00

Dwight Scheible
VP Lee International LLC
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Attachment C
Need - 1

Radiologist CVs and Transfer Agreements
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PERSONAL

PRESENT
POSITION

EDUCATION

MEDICAL
LICENSES

SPECIALTY
CERTIFICATION

PROFESSIONAL
MEMBERSHIPS
PROFESSIONAL
EXPERIENCE

MEDICAL STAFF
APPOINTMENTS

REFERENCES

Stephen Paul Humphrey

Curriculum Vitae

Date of Birth May 1,1948 Maryville, Tennessee
Married Kaye
Residence 106 Bluegrass Circle, Hendersonville, Tennessee 37075

(615) 822-4346

Radiologist, Advanced Diagnostic inaging, P.C. 3024 Business Park Circle
Goodlettsville, TN 37072 Phone: (615) 851-6033 Fax: (615) 851-2018

Undergraduate  Univ. of Tennessee — Knoxville, BS 1970

Medical School  Univ, of Tennessee — Memphis, MD 1975

Internship Univ. of Tennessee Medical Center — Knoxville 1975-1976
Residency Univ, of Tennessee ~ Memphis Radiology 1979-1982

Teonessee # MD9329 Issued: August 1975 — Current
Kentucky # 30080 Issued: February 1999 - Current
Alabama #SP.13  Issued: October 2007 — Current

Board Certification — Radiology, Diagnostic
The American Board of Radiology  June, 1982
Tennessee Medical Association
Tennessee Radiological Association
Radiological Society of North America

Medical Officer US Public Health Service Blackfeet Indian Reservation

Browning, Mt, 1976-1977
Emergency Room Physician  Blount Memorial Hospital Maryville, Tn.
1977-1979

Radiologist Advanced Diagnostic Imaging P.C. (formerly Hill Rediology
Associates) Goodlettsville, TN 1982 - Current

Skyline Medical Center, Nashville, TN (Active)
Hendersonville Medical Center, Hendersonville, TN (Active)
Williamson County Medical Center, Franklin, TN {Courtesy)
Portland Medical Center, Portland, TN (Active)

Horizon Medicel Center, Dickson, TN (Provisional Associate)
University Medical Center, Lébanon, TN (Associate)

Donald Crumbo, M.D,
5651 Frist Blvd, Suite 603
Hermitage, TN 37076 {615) 889-1968
Robert Webb, M.D,

107 Glenoak Blvd, Suite 100

Hendersonville, TN 37075 (615) 822-9336
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Daniel J. Wunder, M.D.

ADDRESS:

E-MAIL ADDRESS:
TELEPHONE:
BIRTHDATE:
BIRTHPLACE:
EDUCATION:

High School

Undergraduate School

Medical School

Honors

Residency

Fellowship

: "

110 Meadowpointe East
Hendersonville, TN 37075-5917

dwunder@comcast.net
Home (615) 822-0302 / Cell (615) 289-5280
September 18, 1964

Wiright-Patterson AFB, Falrborn, Ohio

Mobridge High School
Mobridge, South Dakota 57601

University of South Dakota

414 East Clark St.

Vermillion, SD 57069

August 1982 - May 1986

Degree: B.S, - Chemistry, University Scholar

Universlty of South Dakota
School of Mediclne

414 East Clark St.
Vermillion, SD 57069
August 1986 - May 1990
Degree: M.D.

Phi Eta Sigma, Phl Beta Kappa, Unlversity Scholar,
Magna Cum Laude, Member of John Hopkins 1990
Medical Expedition to Nepal

Diagnostic Radiology

University of Tennessee, Memphis
800 Madison Avenue

Memphls, TN 38163

July 1980 - June 1884

Chief Resldent 1993 - 1894

Vascular Interventional Radiology
Unlversity of Tennessee, Memphis
800 Madison Avenue

Memphls, TN 38163

July 19894 - June 1995
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BOARD CERTIFICATION:

MEDICAL LICENSES:

SOCIETY MEMBERSHIPS:

APPOINTMENTS:

Clinlcal Instructor of Radlology
University of Tennesses, Memphis
Department of Radlology

July 1904 - June 1995

Visiting Professor of Radiology
University of Tenneseee, Memphis
Department of Radiology

July 1995 — December 1696

Standards of Practice Committee

Soclety of Cardiovasculer Interventional Radiology

July 1986 - July 2002

Medlcal Director, Department of Radlology
Mesthodist Haalthcare -~ McNairy Hoepltal
December 1, 1997 — November 1, 1989

Medical Directory, Interventional Radlology Section
Northcrest Medical Canter-Springfield TN

August 1, 2000 = March 30, 2002

Credentials Committee
Skyline Medical Center
Nashvlille, TN

Aug 2001-March 2003, March 2005-Present

Endovascuisr Committea, Chairman
Summit Medical Center
May 2002-March 2004

Opereting Room Committee
Skyline Madical Center
July 2002 - Present

Stroke Committee
Skyllne Madical Center
May 2002-Present

NeuroScience Commlttea

Diplomate NBME - July 1091
Diplomate American Boand of Radiology - June 1954

CAQ In Interventiona! Radlology - Novembar 1986, Jan 2007

Tennessee (MD22132] - December 1881 - Present
South Dakota {3832] - July 1884 - Present
Kenltucky [366877] = June 2000 ~ Prasent

Alebama [SP.14] — October 2007-Presant

Redlologleal Soclety of North America, 1890 - Present
A.Enarlcnn\Roantgan Ray Soclety, 1990 - Present
AYCRY, 1993 ~ 1094

Sodlety of intervantional Radlology, 1994 — Present
Amarican College of Radlology, 1998 - Present

AMA Member 2008-Present

AHA Radlology Councll Member, 1988 -2003

Radiology Business Managers Assactation, 1996 - 2007

Soclety of Radlologlsts In Ultresound, 1999 -2004
Tennesses Radlologlcal Society, 1998 — Present
CIRREF Contributor

IR 2000 Contributor

RSNA Research Conlributor

AAPC 2002 -2004

Skyline Medical Center
November 2008 - Present

ADI Exacutive Committee

Secretary

Managing Board AD|, NOL & Phydata
Advanced Diagnostic Imaging PC
January 31, 2002 - Present

Distal Protectlon Carotld Stent Trial
Boston Scientlfic

Co Investigator

July 2002 - Jen 2004

Protocol Committes, Chair
ADI
July 1, 2002 - 2004

Education Director’
ADI
July 1, 2002 - 2004

Deparntment Chairman
Skyline Medlcal Center
Nashvlile, TN

March 2003-2005
Bept 2007-Present

Depariment Vice Chairman
Skyline Medlcal Center
Nashvllle, TN

March 2005-Sept 2007t
Hospital Liason

ADI

Feb 15, 2007- Present
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CURRENT PRACTICE: Advanced Dlagnostic Imaging, PC
3024 Business Park Circle
PO Box 249
Goodletisville, TN 37072-3132
January 31, 2000 - Present

Previous Employment: Advanced Rediology, LLP
387 Hospltal Bivd
P.O. Box 3310
Jackson, TN 38303-0310
October 1, 1986 = December 31, 1889

Mitchell Radlology Assoclates, P.C.
2200 N. Kimbal

Sulte 950

P.O. Box 1332

Mitchell, SO 57301

July 4, 1095 —~ August 31, 18908

PUBLICATIONS:

"Measurements within the Diffusion Layer Uslng @ Microslactrode Probe.” Engstrom, R.C., Weber, M., Wunder, D.J. Anal Chem).
1086(54), 844-8.

"Quality Improvement Guldellines for Central Venous Access.” Standarde of Practice Committes, JVIR. 1997(8)3, 476-9.

“Quallty Improvement Guidelines for Percutaneous Transhepatic Cholanglography and Blllary Dralnage.” Standards of Practica
Committee. JVIR. 1997(8)4, 677-80,

"Quality Impraovement Gulidalines for Percutaneous Transcatheter Embolization,”" Standards of Practice Committes. JVIR.
1907(8)5, 889-84.

"Quallly Improvement Guidelines for Percutanaous Management of the Thromboesed or Dysfunctionat Dialysls Access.”
Standards of Practice Committes. JVIR, 1989(10)4, 491-8,

. David Zleleke, MD, Danle! J Wunder, MD, Ruth E. Broek, MBA

ABSTRACTS PRESENTED:

Evaluation of Varlous Knee Prosthesis In an Orthopaedic Practice. Prasented to the Amarlcan Assoclation of Bone and Joint
Surgeons by H. Phil Gross, MD, spring 1988,

Carotid Injury - Evaluation with arterlography. Spectrum of Findings, Poster Board Presentation at RSNA 1996, Selected for
future publication In Radiographics,

Selactive High-Dose intraarterial Cloplatin Infusion for Treatment of Stage IIf and IV SCCA Tumors of the Head and Neck with
Concomitent Radletlon Therspy. Presented at SCVIR, March 1898 by Pamela Flick, MD.

Preclinical and Clinical Evaluation of a Percutaneous Stalnless Stee} Greenfie!d Fliter. Presented at SCVIR, March 1896 by K.J.
Cho.

PRESENTATIONS:

1) CPT Ceding Workshop, Presentation Health System, Feb 13, 1996, Mitchell, SD

2} vascular Interventional Radiology, South Dakota State Radlologic Techneclogist Conventlon, May 4, 1996, Mitchell, SD.
3} ZHealth Coding Workshop, 2001 and 2002

4} Endovescular Repalir of Abdominal Aortlc Aneurysmes — Grand Rounds, Skyline Medical Center March 2003
6} Radiofrequency Ablation of Liver Tumors — Grand Rounds, Skyllne Med!cal Center August 19, 2003

8} Stervotactic breast biopsy — Skyline Medical Center Fall 2003

7} ABC's of Medical Imaging-Hendersonville Medical Center Spring 2004

8) Anatomy relevant to acute Stroke, Skyllne Medical Center Fall 2008

9} TIPS, Skyline Medical Center Tenn Soc Gastrointestinal Nurses Assoc Sept 2006

10} CTA for the cardlologist Skyline MedIical Center Jen 25, 2007

11) EVAR- Current status. TN Surgical Technologists and Asslstants, Nashville, TN March 2, 2007

12} Anatomy relevant to acute Stroke, Skyline Medical Canter, Nov 27, 2007

13] Stereotactic breast blopsy -~ Skyline Medical Center Madison Campus Fall 2007

RESEARCH:

Phase Ifl lodixanol Contrast Study, VAMC Memphis, TN, 1992,
Clinical Trlals: Steinlass Stesl Over the Wire Greenfleid Filter, Unlv, of TN, Memphls, 1995,
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Co Investigator Boston Sclentlflc Distal Protectlon Carotld Stent Trail, Nashvlile TN 2002-2004
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INTERESTS:

Flyfishing, hunting, landscaping, volieyball, rafting, tinkering and construction
REFERENCES:

James King, MD, ADI 3024 Business Park Circle, Goodlsttsville, TN 37072

Mike Friday, MD, ADI 3024 Business Park Circle, Goodlettsville, TN 37072
Lees Lancaster, MD Suite 400 Skyline MOB, Nashville TN 37207
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MEETINGS/CME:

RSNA, November 1989, Chicago, IL.

RSNA, November 1991, Chicago, IL. (12.25 Category 1 hours)

Radlology: Musculoskeletal and Abdominal MRI, Feb, 23-24, 1691, Memphls, TN.

Radiology: Memmography Update, Feb, 29 - Mar t, 1092, Memphls, TN.

AFIP: July 7 - August 14, 1882, Weshington, OC.

Neuro & Musculoskeletal MR, Jan 10-15, 1893, Kona, Hawall, (22.3 Categery 1 hours)

Radiology: Update in CT & Nuclear Cardlology, Feb. 20-21, 1993, Memphls, TN.

Acugon Imaging Seminar, Apri) 14, 1683, Memphis, TN (5. 25 Category 1 hours)

13th Annual San Disgo Radlology Review Course, April 18-23, 1903, San Dlego, CA. (41 Category 1 hours)
Spring Intarventional Radlology Couraa Ap:il 24, 1893, San Dlego, CA. (8 Category 1 hours) ,

American University Radiologlsts - A 'CR?, May 18-23, 1993, Cincinnat], OH.

RSNA, November 1883, Chicago, IL

Musculoskeletal MR!, Jan 12-14, 1B§4 Naples, FL. (19.5 Category 1 hours)

American Unlversity Hadlobglsta A’CR?, May 4-7, 1894, Boston, MA, (19,5 Category 1 hours)

Memphis Radlology Meeting, May 27-30, 1994 Msmphis, TN. (14.50 Category 1 hours)

Interventlonal Vascular Radlology Course, Nov, 18-18, 1865, Toronto, Ontarlo, Canada.

Society of Cardiovascular & Interventional Radiology, March 25-30, 1995, Ft. Leuderdale, FL, (37 Category 1 hours)
Soclety of Cardiovascular & Interventional Radlology, March 2-7, 1088, Seattle, WA. (35.5 Category 1 hours)
Mid South Symposium on Vascular Disease, April 26-27, 1986, Memphis, TN. (10.75 Category 1 hours)
Breast Imaging CME Vldeo Progsam, Aprll 16, 1986, Wastern Pennsylvania Hospital. (17 Category 1 hours)
SCVIR Syllabua Series, Oct. 1998 — Jan. 1887, (70 Catsgory 1 hours)

ACR Managed Care Symposium, April 5-8, 1987, Chicago, IL. (8.5 Cstegory 1 hours)

1997 General Risk Management Seminar, April 23, 1897 Jackson, TN {2 Category 1 hours)

Far.tors Affacting Thrombolysis, Discovery International, September 10, 1997, (2 Category 1 hours)

8™ Annual Conference on Advanced Peripheral Tachniques‘ Sapternber 17- 20, 1987, (21 Ceingory 1 houre)
New Developments In Vasc. Diseases, Vol 1, #1, Chicago Prilzker SOM, September 22, 1867, (3 Catsgory 1 hours)
Thrombolysis & PTA a8 Combination Thornpy for Chronlke lllac Occlunlon. Anmenberg Centsr. October 10, 1997 (1
Category 1 hour)

Thrombolysis of Venous Catheters, Discovery Intematlonal, December 8, 1997 (Z Category 1 hours)

1984 Duke Radlology Summer Postgraduate Course (video course viewed 1897) (20 Category 1 hours {2 of
Mammagrephy})

Cardlac Arrest Resuscitatlon Exercise, February 20, 1998 (8 Category 1 hours)

198988 General Rlsk Management Seminar, April 22, 1998 (2 Category 1 hours)

Local Cerebral Thrombeolysls, Med Educational Resources Inc., June 26-28, 1998 (17.5 Category 1 hours)
MRJ 1890, Harvard Medical School, February 15 - 18, 1988 (25 Category 1 hours)

1968 General Risk Managsment Seminar, April 28, 1696 (2 Catagory 1 hours)

New Developmants in Centrsl Venous Access, May 19, 1909 (3 Category 1 hours)

Comprehensive Breast Imaging CME Video Program, July 28, 1898 Wastern Pennsylvanla Hospital (25 Category 1
hours)

Contemporary Dlagnostic Radiology, August 25, 1999 Fennsylvanla Hospltal (3 Category 1 hours)
Contemperary Diagnostic Radlology. QOclober 8, 1898 Pennsylvania Hospltal (3 Category 1 hours)

Soc. Radlologlats In US — 9™ Annual Meeting, October 8-10, 1688 Chicego, IL (20.5 Catagory 1 hours)
Contemporary Diagnostic Radlology, Dacember 10, 1969 Pennsylvania Hospltal (3 Category 1 hours)
Contemporary Dlagnostic Radlology, January 12, 2000 Pennsylvanla Hospltal (3 Category 1 hours)

Hiv Disease, February 28, 2000, Westem Baptlst Hospital, (2 Category 1 hours)

Next Generation Thrombotytics, Feb 29, 2000, Institute of CHE, Phlladeiphla (1 Category 1 hour)

Peripherlal Arterlal Occlusion, March 9 2000, U of Pittsburgh, (1 Category 1 hour)

Contemporary Diagnostic Radlology March 31 2000 Pennsylvanla Hospital (3 Category 1 houm—2mammo 1U8)
Contemporary Diagnastic Radlology, May 2, 2000 Pennsyivania Hospltal (3 Category 1 hours)

New Directions Phammacologlc Management of PVOD, May 12, 2000, Institute of CHE, Philadelphia (1 Category 1
hour)

New Phamacologlc Theraples In Treatment of PVD, Meay 2000, Institute of CHE, Philadelphia, (0.5 Category 4 hour)
Contemporary Diagnostic Radiology, Junae 28, 2000 Pennsylvania Hosapital (3 Category 1 hours)

SCVIR Syllabus Ssries (Thoracle, Visceral & GU Interventions), June 2000, (20 Category 1 hours)
Contemporary Dlagnostic Radlology, July 21, 2000 Pennsylvanla Hospltal (3 Category 1 hours)
Contemporery Dlagnostic Radlology, Aug 11, 2000 Pennayivania Hospttal (3 Category 1 hours)

Summit Tumor Conference Aug 12,2000 AMA (1 Category 1 hour)

Hands On Carotid Stant Meeting, Sth 7-10, 2000 Johne Hopking {16.5 Category 1 houra)

Summit Tumor Conference Sept 27, 2000, AMA (1 Category 1 hour)

Risk Management Polnters, Oct 3, 2000 Pennsylvania Med Soclety (8 Category 1 hours)

SCVIR Syllabua Serles Nonlvaslve Vasc Imaglng, Oct 2000. (20 Category 1 hours)

Contemporary Diagnostic Radiology, Oct 27, 2000 Pennsyivanla Hospital (3 Category 1 hours)

SCVIR Catheter Directed Thrombolysls and Cath Clearance, Oct 2000, {1 Category 1 hour)

Contemporary Diagnostic Radiclogy, Nov 15, 2000 Pennsylvania Hospital (3 Category 1 hours)
Contemporary Diagnostic Radlology, Dec 22, 2000 Pennaylvanla Hospitsl (3 Category 1 hours)

SCVIR Cybersession Antlplatelet Therapy, Nov 2000 (1.8 Category 1 hours)

2001 Radlology Coding Alert: CCI Edits, CPT, ICD-8, HCPCS and RVU's (1 hour CEU credit)

SCVIR Cybarsession Coding and Bliling, Jan 2001(4.5 Gategory 1 hours)

Medleam 2001 interventional Coding Meeting , Jan 18-1@, 2001(16 CEU Credlb}

SCVIR Annual Meeting Mar 3-7, 2001 {10.5 Category 1 hours)

Right Ventricular Dysfunction ACR CME, Mar 8, 2001 (2 Category 1 hours)

Baptlst Stereotactic Breast Blopay, April 20, 2001 Nashvllle (6 Category 1 hours)
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ACR Knowledge Challenge, Juns 2 2001 Hip Dysplasia (2 Category 1 hours)

ACR Knowledge Challenge, July 30, 2001 Pet Imaging (2 Category 1 hours)

ACR Knowledge Challenge, Sept 28, 2001 Malpractice lssusa (2 Category 1 hours)

Optimize Pay-Up for Facet Jolnt Injections and RF, Nov.'5, 2001 The Coding Institute (1CEU CredH)

Use of TPA In Catheter Malfunction, Nov. 11, 2001, Postgraduate Institute of Med, (1 Category 1 Credit)
New Davelopments In Vascular Diseases, Nov. 11, 2001, Univ of Chicago (4 Catagory 1 Credits}
Ultrasound Quarterly Volume 17, #2 June 6, 2001 Lippincott, Williams & Wiikine (4 Category 1 Credits-US)
New Pharm Txt for PVD, Center for HCE, Oct 18, 2001, (1.6 Category 1 hours)

RSNA hours, Chicago, L, Nov 26, 2001, (3.5 Category 1 houre)

Considerations of Multidetector Scanners in CTA, Postgrad. Institute Med, Oct. 24, 2001 (1 Category 1 hour)
Risk Management Rounds, Verelon 1.5, SVMIC, Oct 26, 2001 (5 Category 1 hours)

AneuRx Stent Graft Course, Dec 10-11, 2001 Texas Heart Institute (no CME)

Use of TPA for cathetar malfunction, Dec 5, 2001, Postgraduate Institute Med (1 Category 1 hour)
Contamporary Diagnostic Radiology, Dec 2001 Pennsylvania Hospital (31 Category 1 hours- 2 in Mammo, 5 InUS, 3
In MR) '

New Era of Thrombolytice: State of Art Strategies, Jan 2002, SCVIR Syllabus (1Category 1 hour)

RBMA Coding Seminar Serles, Jan 2002, Las Vegas (7 CEU hours)

New Developments in Vaac Dz Vol 2 #1, Jan 7, 2002, Unlv Chicago, (4 Category 1 hours)

Renal Preservation Strategies for High Risk Pts, Jan 7, 2002, Unlv Chicago, (4 Category 1 hours)
Utirseound Quarterly Vol 17, #3, Dec 13, 2001, (5 Categdry 1 hours)

New Developments in Vascular Diseases, Vol 2, #1, Feb §, 2002, Unlv of Chicago (4 Category 1 hours)
New Developments [n Vascular Diseases, Vol 2, #2, Feb 5, 2002, Unlv of Chicago (4 Category 1 hours)
Intro to RF Thermal Abletion of Liver Laslon, Austin, TX, Feb 8, 2002, (8 Category 1 hours)

SCVIR Cybersession Coding and Billing, Jan 2002 (8 Category 1 hours)

ACR Knowledge Challenge, Apri! 17, 2002 Left Ventricular Aneurysm (2 Category 1 hours)

Contemporary Dlagnostic Radiology, Mar 2002 Penneyivania Hospita! (& Category 1 hours)

Risk Management Essentiale, June 28, 2002, Med Risk Inc, (5 Category 1 hours)

Vascular Centers 2002, May 10-11, 2002, Soc. Interventional Radlology (11.75 Category 1 hours)

Human Particlpant Protection Ed for Research Teams, July 2002, Cine-Med (2 Category 1 hours)

ACR Knowledge Challenge, August 12, 2002 Anomalous Coronary Arterles (2 Category 1 hours)

New Developments In Vascular Diseases, Vol 3, #1, August 20, 2002, Unlv of Chicago (4 Cetegory 1 hours)
MR Spactroscopy, Dlagnostic Imaging, CMP Healthcare Group, August 12, 2002, (| Category 1 hour)
BreastImaging, USCF Intersctive Serles, September 8, 2002 (25 Category 1 hours)

Differentlating factors of Thrombolytics, Sefety Profile, Sapt 11, 2002 (1.5 Category 1 hours)

Multilice CT Imaging of carotid stenosis, Oct 18, 2002 (1 Category 1 hour)

Contemporary Diagnostic Radlology, July-Sept 2002 Pennsylvanie Hospltal (8 Category 1 hours)

Acuts Stroke Imaging, HCA CME, Sept 24, 2002 (1 Category 1 hour)

Speech Recegnition, Diagnostic Imaging, CMP Healthcare Group, Nov 11, 2002 (1 Category 1 hour)
CAD-Breast imaging, Dlagnostic Imaging, CMP Healthcare Group, Nov 17, 2002 (1 Category 1 hour)
Uterine Fibrold Embeotization, HCA CME, Nov 24, 2002(1 Category 1 hour)

Thrombolytic Therapy: Re Emergence as Standard, Univ of Wiscensin, Jan, 8, 2003 (1.5 CEUs)

Risk mangagement esseniiala for physiclans part 2, May 30, 2003, Medrlek, Inc, (5 category 1 hours)
Contemporary Diagnostic Radiology, June 30, 2003, Pennsylvania Hospital (7.5 Category 1 hours)
Clearing the Way: Reperfuston with Thrombolytics, Untv or Wisconsin, July 2, 2003, (1 Category 1 hour)
BLS Certificatlon, Skyline Medical Canter, Sapt 8, 2003, (No Category 1 hours)

ACLS Certificetion Skyline Medical Center, Sept 13, 2003, (5.1 Category 1 hours)

Adding PET to your practice: Business end Clinical I1ssues, Dlagnostic Imaging, CMP Healthoare Group, Sept 14,
2003, (1 Category 1 hour)

Comparative Analysls of Qutcomes and Costs of Fibinotytic agents for PVD, Johns Hapkina SOM, Nov 7, 2003, (2
Category 1 hours)

Contemporary Diagnostic Radlology, August 1, 2003, Pennsylvania Hospltal (7.5 Category 1 hours)
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Curriculum Vitae

Robert Stanley Burcham, MD
General Information:
Boro: Corinth, Mississippi
Birthdate: 14 Septernber 1968
Married: Wife, Rebecca
Education:
High School; Corinth High School, Corinth, MS, 1987

Undergraduate: Mississippi State University, Starkville, MS 1987-1992
; Bachelor of Science, Aorospace Engineering
Minor, Mathematics
Cooperative Education Progmm

Post-Baccalaureate; Georgia State University, Atlanta, GA, 1994-1996
Non-degree, Post Baccalaureate Studies

Medical School: Medical College of Georgia, Angusta, GA, 1996-2000
Doctor of Madicine

Post-Graduate Training:

Intemshiyp: Internal Medicino
Medical College of Georgia, Augnsta, GA
July 2000-}une 2001

Residency: Diagnostic Radiology,

Vandecbift University Medical Center, Nashville, TN
June 2001 -July 2005

Board Certification;

American Board of Radiotogy: June 2005

Licensure:

Licensed Doctor of Medicine in Tennessee, Mississippi
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Aerospace Engineering Experience: 1 0gc ¢ 5 P 3

Co-operative Engineer, January 1989 - May 1990

Martin Marietta Manned Space Systems, New Orleans, LA
*Participatod in development of unmnnned spacecraft including acoustic & dynemic
loads analysis, thermal analysis, and stetic stress analysis
+Developed FORTRAN program to perform buckling emalysis of skin/stringer panels
*Adapted Space Shuttle External Tank structural algorithms to rid evaluation of

advanced space vehicle design

Acrospace Engineer, May 1992 - March 1996
Lockheed Aeronautical Systems Company, Marietta, GA
*Performed structurnl analysis of F-22 graphite-boneycomb composite horizontal &

vertical stabilizers
*Developed & analyzed flect-wide repairs for USAF C-5 fleet horizontal stabilizer,

flap tracks, & engine pylons
*Provided computer support for military trainer aircraft propossl! working ecross

PC’s, UNIX, & IBM Mainframe computer systems

Acrospace Engineer, March 1996 - August 1996; May 1997 — August 1997
Gulfstream Aerospace, Savannah, GA
*Performed structural analysis, developed repairs, end provided analysis for FAA
certification of G-5 business jet
*Performed static and acoustic analysis of graphite-honeycomb composite rudder and
static analysis of metallic main wing drag beam

Aerospace Engineer, March 2000 - May 2000

The Aerostructures Corporation, Nashville, TN '
*Performed structural analysis of V-22 graphite-honeycomb composite and metallic

empennage
Research Experience:

Engineering Research Center, Mississippi State University, January 1991 - July

1991
 eHelped develop software to generate 3-D grids about gecometrically complex objects
*Produced grids nsed for finite-difference solutions to Navier-Stokes equations

Raspet Flight Research Laboratory, Mississippi State University, May 1991 -

May 1992
*Analyzed graphite-epoxy fuselage test structure using finite-element methods
*Fabricated test specimens and experimentally obtained composite materis} properties

.*Conducted full-scale structural tests on graphite-epoxy fuselage’

160

59



Research Experience (Cont’d):

=Correlated results from structural tests, finite-element model, & theoretical solutions

Radiologic Society of North America, Chicago, IL, December 2002
«Completed one-week Introduction to Research Program at RSNA annual meeting
*Focused on clinical and basic science research in diagnostic radiology

Presentations & Publications:

“Analysis & Testing of a Load-Carrying Window in a Fuselage Test Structure”
Paper presented at American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics Southeast Conference

Meeting, Atlanta, GA, Aprii, 1992

“Analysis & Testing of a Window and Window Frame in a Pressurized Graphite-Epoxy
Sandwich Shell Fuselage Test Structure,” McWhorter, JC, Moore, T, and Burcham, RS,
Engineering & Industrial Research Station Report, Mississippi State University, 1992

“Left Atrial Appendage Imaging Using CT, MRI, and TEE with Radiologic Manifestation of
Thrombus and its Clinical Relevance for Patients with Atrial Fibrillation", Burcham, RS,
Datta, J, Arildsen, RA, et al, Radielogic Society of North America, Educational Exhibit,
Chicago, 1L, December 2002

Honors and Awards:

Four-year Academic Scholarship, Mississippi State University, 1987-1992
Sigma Gamma Tau, Aerospace Engineering Honor Society, MSU, 1992
Four-year Academic Scholarship, Medical College of Georgia, 1996-2000
Alpha Omega Alpha, Alpha Chapter of Georgia, 1999

Interests/Hobbies:;

Hiking, Camping, Running, Cycling, and Kayaking
My Dogs (Pete, Sputnik, Dobie, and Ruby)

Music

Computers, especially Apple

Astronomy and matheraatics

Jan-06
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Education

(ntemship

Resldency Training

Followshlp Training

Board Certification

Current Positlon

98 Qovernors Way Phone (615) 776-5724
Brentwood, TN 37027 clealend@hotmail.com

Chad L. Calendine, MD

1994 1o 1998 University of Tennessee Memphis, TN
Doctor of Medicine

e Class Rank: 1 of 162

o Swumnma Cum Laude (GPA 4.0)

Faculty Meda] Award

Alpha Omega Alpha Honors Society (Inducted 1997)

L ]

1991 to 1994 Freed-Hardeman University Henderson, TN
Bachelor of Sclence In Blofogy :
e Summa Cum Laude (GPA 4.0)

o Chancellor’s Scholar Award

e Alpha Chi Honors Society (Inducted 1993)

1998 to 1999 Msthodist Hospital Memphis, TN
Transitional Intemship

¢ Clinical experience in emergency medicine, internal medicine, general surgery,
pediatrics, gastroenterology, and infectious disease

1999 to 2003 . Emory University Hospital Atlants, GA
Dlagnostic Radlology Residency

e Chief Resident 2002-2003

* Roentgen Resident/Fellow Research Award 2003

¢ Graduate Medical Education Advisory Committee 2001-2002

e Qutstanding Teaching Resident Award 2001

2003 to 2004 Emory University Hospital Atlanta, GA
Musculoskeletal Radlology Fellowship
e Experience in MR Imaging, Sports Medicine, Ncoplasms, Rheumatic Dlscases,

Metebolic Bone Diseases, Spinal Disorders, end Interveational Procedures

American Board of Radiology June 2003

Musculoskeletz] Radiologlst
2004 to Present Advanced Diagnostic lmaging, PC Nashville, TN

2007 to Present President
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Research

Publications

Interests and actlvities

References

Chad L. Calendine, MD
2 pee IS5 p

Page 2 ¥ 3 5),

“Contrast media extravasation during CT: Evaluation of the use of the E-Z EM
extravasation detection accessory."” Research completed in June 2001 at Emory
University Hospita) with Paul D'Angelo, MD and William Torres, MD, Abstract
presented at ARRS 2002,

“Need for traditional radiographic Jumbar spine series following an abdomen/pelvis
CT in trauma patients which revealed no spinal treuma.” Research completed in June
2003 at Emory University Hospital with Williamy Fajman, MD and Soheil Henne, MD.
Abstract presented ASER 2003, ,

“In vivo testing on the role of hydroxyurea on replication, latency, and the infectious
cycle of Murine Herpes Virus - 68, Research completed in August 1997 at 5t, Jude's
Children's Research Hospital under the direction of Petor Doherty, Ph.D, (Nobel
Laureate),

“Need for traditional radiographic thoracic spine series following a chest CT in
travrna patients which revealed no spinal trauma.” Research completed in November
2001 et Emory University Hospital with William Fajman, MD, Soheil Hanse, MD,
end Stephan Tigges, MD. Abstract presented at ASER 2002, Publfshed in Emergency
Radivlogy November 2002 Vol 9 Num 5: 254-256. .

“Optic Pathway Gliomas and Neurofibromatosis-1.” American College of Radiology,
Revision of the Brain Neoplasia Section of the ACR Teaching File, 2002,

Basketball, Golf, Target shooting, Fly fishing, Movies

Personel and professional references provided upon request.
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Kevin Patrick Conneely, M.D.
1614 S. Mertha Court

Brentwood, TN 37027
(615)-370-5145
keunneely@gmail.com
Education
2006-2007 Unlversity of Utah Hospital - Salt Lake City, Utah
Musculoskeletal Fellowship, to be completed June 2007.
2002-2006 University of Utah Hosplital — Sait Lake City, Utah
Diagnostic Radiology Residency
Chiof Resident 2005-2006.
2001-2002 LDS Hospital — Salt Lake City, Utah
Transitiong] Internship.
1997-2001 University of Texas Health Sclence Center at San Antonlo
M.D., May 2001,
1993.1996 University of Texas at Austin
B.A., Biology.
State Licensure: Utah, 2001-current
Tennsssee, 2007-Current
Alabama, 2007-Current
Kentucky, Arkansas, Georgis, Missouri; Pending
Board Certification: American Board of Radiology; 6/2006.
Work Experience

2007-Present

2006-2007

2005-2007

2003-2006

Advanced Diagnostic Imaging-Nashville, Tenunessoe. Sta{f Radiologist. In
addition to general diagnostic rediology, I interpret cross-sectional MSK, neuro
and body imaging. Additional duties include musculoskeletal and spine
interventions including; arthrography, myelography, epidursl spine injections,
facet injections and small joint Injections for both diagnostic and therapeutic
purposes. :

University of Utah Hospital-Salt Lake City, Utah. Clinical Instructor,
department of Radiology. Perticipated in ths gencral call pool and served as the
in-house ataff radiologist approximately once a week, Responsibilities included
gupervision of 1-2 residents and interpretation of studies performed at the
University of Utah hospital and outlying clinics, Hunstman Cancer hospital and
the VA medical center,

Ulnta Basin Medical Cenfer-Roosevelt, Utah. Diagnostic Rediologist for one
week every 3 months in a full service rurel hospital, Duties included primary
intecpretation of all CT, MR, Nuclear medicine, ultrasound, fluoroscopic and
plain film studies.

Project Reality-Salt Lake City, Utah. Physician coordinator/supervisor of a

methadone treatment program providing medical care to patients with opiate
addiction,
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Honors & Awards

2001

1994

Extracurricular

Merck Manual Award-UT Health Sclence Center at San Antonlo
For outstanding performance in the clinical sciences during the third and fourth
year of medical school,

Summer Research Grant
Awarded by Department of Zoology, UT Austin

Spring 2001

Spring 2001

Research

Gross Anatomy TA/Tutor-UT Heelth Sclence Center at San Antenlo

Medical Microbiology TA-UT Health Science Center &t San Antonlo

1993-1994

Research Assistant, G.D, Bittner, PhD, University of Texas Department of
Zoology. Dutiea included micro dissection of Mauthner axons, development of
electron micrographs, running and development of SDS-PAGE gels, and
development of a protoco! to isolate a unique region of a 235kD neurofilasnent
in giant Mauthner axons.

Publications/Presentations

Cunneely K, Crim J, *High Incidence of Missed Diagnosis of 8 Common Ankle
Fracture.” Presented at tho 92* Annual RSNA Scientific Assembly and Annual
meeting, November 27® 2006,

Godell CM, Raabe T, Mochienbruck J, Cunneely K, and Bittner GD. *235 kD
Neurofilament Protein in Survival of Anucleate Axons,” Transactions of the
American Society for Neurochemistry, March 1994, Vol. 25, No, 1, Abstract
162,

Professional Memberships

American College of Radiology, Radiologic Sosiety of North America, Association Of University
Radiologists, Roentgen Ray Society.
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Enrique Romo Arevalos, MD

PERSONAL

DATA
Date of Birth

Marital Status
Citizenship
Resideace

Primary Office

Telephone Numbers

EDUCATION

Undergruduate

Southern Methodist University
Dallas, TX

BA

Medical School
Southwestem Medical School
Dellas, TX

MD

Internship
Baptist Memor{al Hospital
Momphis, TN

Restdency

Curricﬁlum Vitae

03/09/1953
San Antonio, TX, USA

Married

USA

5205 Heathrow Hills Drive
Brentwood, TN 37027

Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, PC
3024 Business Park Circle
QGoodlettsville, TN 37072

(615) 851-6033 (Office)
(615) 851-2018 (Fax)

University of Texas Health Sciences Center at San Antonio

San Antonio, TX
Fellowship

Medical College of Wisconsin
Milwaukee, W1

EMPLOYMENT
HISTORY

Adveanced Dlagnostic Imeging, P.C,

3024 Business Park Circle P,O, Box 249

Goodlettsville, TN 37072

Premier Radiology
28 White Bridge Rd Suite 111
Nashvlile, TN 37205
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08/01/1971

08/01/1976

07/01/1980
Surgery

07/01/1981
Radiology

07/01/1984

Radiology

10/01/2003

10/01/2003

06/30/1975

06/07/1980

06/30/1981
06/30/1984

06/30/1985

Prosont

Prosent



E. H. Himmelfarb
PO Box 681708
Franklin, TN 37068

San Bernardino Diagnostic
San Bemardino, CA

HOSPITAL
AFFILIATIONS

Active
Hendersonville Medical Center
Hendersonville, TN

Courtesy
Skyline Medical Center
Nashvlille, TN

Actlve
Williamson Medical Center
Franklln, TN

MEDICAL LICENSURE
™ 23804

DEA

INFORMATION
DEA AA9715458

SPECIALTIES
Board Certifled
American Board of Radiology Rediology, Diagnostic

ASSOCIATIONS &

AFFILIATIONS
ACR Member.
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08/01/1992 09/30/2003

07/01/1985 - 07/31/1992

08/02/2005 - Present
07/19/2005 - Present

08/27/1992 - Present

07/20/1992 - Present

06/02/2003 - Present

06/01/1984 - Present



Jonathan Paul Gordon, M.D., Ph.D.

505 Seaton Park Place, Franklin, Tenncssce 37069
(615) 595-8524 (H); (615) 440-6575 (Mobile)

jgTxrad@gmail.com

Professional Experience

2007-present: Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, Nashville, Tennessee; Neuroradiologist

Education
MD.

PhD.

BS.

Post Graduate T1aining
Internship

Residency

Fellowship

Board Certification

Virginia Commonwealth Univetsity/Medical College of Virginia
Richmond, Vitginia :
May 2000

Vitginia Commonwealth University/Medical College of Virginia
Richmond, Virginia

1995

Major: Anatomy/Neutosciences

Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University, Blacksburg,
Virginia

1990

Majot: Biology

Minor: Chemistry

Univessity of Virginia School of Medicine, Roanoke-Salem Program
in Internal Medicine, Carilion Roanoke Memotial Hospital and
Veterans Affairs Medical Center

Roanoke, Virginia

7/1/00-6/30/01

Department of Radiology, University of Virginia Health System
Charlottesville, Virginia
7/1/01 - 6/30/05

Neuroradiology, Department of Radiology, University of Vizginia
Health System

Charlottesville, Virginia

7/1/05-6/30/07

American Board of Radiology — Diagnostic Radiology
Pasged — Written Examination — September 2004
Passed — Oral Examination —~ June 2005
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Jonathan P. Gordon, M.D., Ph.D. Curdculum Vitae 3ofl

Neatonal Board of Medical Examiners - 2003

Medical Licensure

Virginia, Alabama, Tennessee, Washington, Kentucky(pending)

Honors, Awards and Fellowships

Fellow, ACR James M. Moorefield Economics Fellowship, August 2005

27 Place, Resident-in-Training Research Presentation, Association of Univessity
Radiologists Annual Meeting, 2004

Resident Representative for Virginia State Chapter of ACR, ACR National Meeting
and Leadership conference, 2004, 2005

A D. Willlams Summer Research Fellowship, 1997

Jack Denning Burke Award for Bxcellence in Cell Biology, Dept. of Anatomy,
1995

Research Experience

Publications

Laboratory Technician, Department of Anatomy, VCU/MCV, 1991
Graduate Student, Department of Anatomy, VCU/MCV, 1991-1995
Post-Doctoral Fellow, Department of Anatomy, VCU/MCV, 1996
Student Worker, Department of Neurosurgesy, VCU/MCV, 1998

Gordon J: BEffects of moderate traumatic brain injury on the cytoskeleton of the mt
hippocampus: a study of the CAl1 and dentate gyrus subregions, Doctorl
Dissertation, Virginia Commonwealth University/Medical College of Virginia,
Departmeant of Anatomy, 1995

Di X, Gotdon J, Bullock R. Fluid percussion brain injuty exacerbates glutamate-
induced focal damage in the rat. [ Nrwrorrauma. 1999 Mar; 16(3): 195-201.

Gordon J, Shaffer H, Levine P, de Lange B, Strictures of the cervical esophagus
following laryngectomy: Efficacy of treatement with fluoroscopically guided balloon
dilation. (working paper)

GordonJ. Book Review: ACR Syllabus: Gastrointestinal Disease VI, [ACR. 2005
June; 2(6):552-553

Gordon J, Gay SB, et al B:llmg and Rexmburscment in Medxcal Imaging (web-based

Coordinator and Author, Weekly radiologic clinical quiz, Appked R.ad.r’o!ag Onlins,
2003-2005, ovet 40 cases submitted, pww.ghplisdradiology.com

Chapter 52, “Imaging of Epidural Spinal Cord Compression.” (with Lubdha Shah, C.
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Jonathan P, Gordon, MD,, Ph.D, Curdculum Vitae 3of3
Douglas Phillips and David Schiff) in Handbook of Newro-Oncology Neurvimaging (Elsevier,
2007).

Abgtracta/Posters
Gotdon JP, Belardo ET, Black RT, Phillips LL: Elevation of calmodulin levels in CA1

and the dentate gyrus following traumatic brain injury. Newrotrusma Soc. Abstr. 1993,

Phillips, LL, Belardo, ET, Gordon, JP, Black, RT and Lyeth, BG: Expression of c-fos
oncoprotein during long-tetm postinjury phases of fluid percussion traumatic brain
injury. Nesrvirauma Soc. Abstr., 1993.

Gordon, JP, Belardo, ET, Lyeth, BG, Leichnetz, GR, Phillips, LL: MAP2 protein levels
in CAl and the dentate gyrus following modemte traumatic brain injury, JSos for
Newrosdi. Abstr., ] Neurotrauma, 20:426, 1994,

Gordon, JP, Belardo, ET, Lyeth, BG, Reeves, TM and Phillips, LL: Traumatic
Brain injury induces change in hippocampal microtubule-associated protein
MAP1A, 3¢ Internat, Neutotrauma Symposium, | Newrotrasma. 1995: 12(3):
477.

Gordon JP, Shah LM, Brown MD, Ham JK and Phillips CD: Another Hole in your
Head? Review of Basal Cephaloceles, Postet presentation, American Society of
Head and Neck Radiology Annual Meeting, 2006.

Professional Memberships
American College of Radiology, 2000 - present
RSNA, 2000- present
ASNR, 2005-ptesent
ARRS, 2000-present
Southeastern Neuroradiological Socisty, 2007-present

Extracurricular Activities /Personal Interests

Sports — Football, Basketball, Histoty — Christianity, The Civil
War, World War IT Aircraft; family, gardening, computers
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Curriculum Vita
Iantha Lucille Harmey, MD, DABR
9426 Highwood Hill Road Brentwood, TN 37027
email: | i
phone: (615) 371-4228

Place of birth Oklahoma City, OK
US Citizen
Education
December 1995 B.S. Chemical Engineering, Oklahoma State University
May 2000 Doctor of Medicine, University of Oklahoma

July 2000 to June 2001 Internal Medicine, University of Oklahoma
July 2001 to June 2005 Diagnostic Radiology, University of Kansas in Wichita
June 2004 to June 2005 Chief Resident
July 2005 to June 2006 Musculoskeletal Radiology Fellowship, University of
' Virginia

Licenisure and Certification ABR Physics 2002, 96" percentile
ABR Written Exam 2004, 97" percentile
ABR Oral Exam, passed June 2005
USMLE Step 1, 2, &3: passed
Kansas Medical License, 2003 to 2005
Oklahoma Medical License, 2003 to 2005
Alabama Medical License
Colorado Medical License
Georgia Medical License
Kentucky Medical License
Tennessee Medical License
Virginia Medical License
Washington Medical License
Advanced Cardiac Life Support, 1998 to current

Work Experience Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, 2006 to present
Mixture of inpatient and outpatient work.

College Honors and Awards National Merit Scholar 1991
Tau Beta Pi Engineering Honor Society:
Golden Key National Honor Society, Vice President
Scholar’s Enrichment Program OSU Engineering
Omega Chi Epsilon Chem Eng Hon Soc, Secretary
Alpha Epsilon Delta Pre-health Hon Soc, Reporter

Professlonal Societies Radiologic Societies of North America, current
American Roentgen Ray Society, current

Amer. Medical Women’s Assoc., Fundreising Chair
American Medical Student Association

lantha Harney, MD Curriculum Vitse Paget of 3
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Oklahoma State Medical Association
American Inst of Chemical Engineers
Society of Women Engincers, Chapter Treasurer

Public Service

January 1995 to December 1995 I created a computer databasc of patients,

Stillwater Clinic screened patients for eligibility, and worked |
as receptionist during clinic.

July 1998 to May 2000 I helped create a not for profit foundation

Foundation 2000 designed to benefit Oklahoma children with
serious and life threatening illnesses,

1992 to present I have repeatedly been a guest speaker at OKC
Public schools events, recruitment, and outreach.

Teaching experience

July 2000 to June 2001 Intenship ~ Medical student teaching with lectures and

clinical practicum
July 2001 to present Residency = Medical student, nursing student, and intern

teaching with lectures and clinical practicum
July 2005 to July 2006 Fellowship  Teaching residents

Research Experience
Summers of 1992, 1993, and 1994  St. Francis(W.K.Warren) Medical Research Inst.

During my first summer I studied uptake and clearance kinetics of technetium
based radiopharmaceuticals including Sestamibi. I brought our laboratory into OSHA
compliance when it became part of the University of Oklahoma. I was also responsible
for radiation safety and monitoring, as well as NRC compliance

Summer 1995 Oklahoma State Univ. College of Vet. Medicine
I ordered equipment and created a laboratory for the investigation of computer

controlled anesthesia. I worked with a consultant to create a custom interface for data

collection and use by a program specializing in fuzzy logic decision making,

Summers of 1996 and 1997 Thomas N, Lynn Institute for Healthcare Research

I utilized spectral analysis to study heart rate variability during obstructive sleep
apnea, REM sleep, and episodes of GERD. I presented my project on OSA at a national
meeting as an oral presentation, I also presented my project on heart rate variability
during REM a9 a poster presentation. -

Iahtha Hamey, MD Curriculum Vitas Page2 of 3
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Papers and Presentations

1. Robert D. Okada MD, Kiem Nguyen, J. Michael Lauinger, Iantha Allton, Kristy
Sprietzer, Delia Beju, and Gerald Johnson III PhD, “Effects of No Flow and Reperfusion
on Kinetics of 99mTcQ12, a New Myocardial Imaging Agent”, Journal of Nuclear
Mediciune, 01/1995, Volume 36, Pages 2103-2109

2. Gerald Johnson III PhD, lantha L. Allton, Kiem N, Nguyen, J. Michael Lauinger,
Delia Beju, Roberto Pasqualini, Adriano Duatti, R, “Clearance of 99m Tc-N-Noet in
Normal, Ischemic-reperfused, and Membrane-Disrupted Rat Myocardium”, Journal of
Nuclear Cardiology, 01/1995, Vol:3:1, Pages 42-54

3. Robert D. Okada MD, Kiem N, Nguyen, Michael Lauinger, Iantha L. Allton, Gerald
Johnson Il PhD, “Technetium 99m-Q12 kinetics in perfused rat myocardjum:Effects of
hypoxia and low flow”, American Heart Journal, 01/1996, Volume:132:1, Pages 108-115

4, Jie Liang, B. Lin, lantha L. Harney, J. Chen, W. C. Orr PhD, “Spectral Analysis of
Heart Rate Variability During Obstructive Sleep Apnea”, Associated Professional Sleep
Societies 11" Annual Meeting, 06/1997

5. lantha L. Harney, J. Chen, J. Liang, W, C, Orr, “A Novel Measure of Cardiac

Instability During REM Sleep"”, Associated Professional Sleep Societies 11 Annual
Mecting, 06/1997

lantha Hamey, MD Curriculum Vitas Paged of 3
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Byard Edwards
285 Mosher Way
Palo Alto, CA 94304
(650) 498-8462
bedwards@stanford.edu

EDUCATION

e MD, Vanderbilt University School of Medicine, Nashville, TN, May 2001
o PhD, Physics, Cornell University, Ithaca, NY, August 1997
° BS in Physics with high honors, University of Texas—Austin, TX, December

1990
POSTDOCTORAL TRAINING
) NCI Body Imaging Fellow, Stanford University, July 1, 2006 through June 30,
° 2R%2?dent, Rediology, Stanford University Medical Center, July 1, 2002 through
June 30, 2006

° Intern, Internal Medicine—Preliminary, Carilion Roanoke Memorial Hospital,
Roanoke, VA, July 1, 2001 through June 30 2002

CURRENT RESEARCH INTERESTS

e  Diffusion-weighted MRI of the kidneys; co-investigators F.G, Sommer, R.
Bammer, B. Myers, B, Ho

o CT of traumatic diaphragmatic injury; co-investigators R. B. Jeffrey, T. Desser
MRI of appendicitis; co-investigators R.B. Jeffrey, L. Shin

® Intravenous contrast dynamics in MRJ; co-investigators D. Fleischmann, R.
Bammer
©° Individualized molecular imaging of cancer; co-investigator S. Gambhir

LICENSURE AND CERTIFICATION

® Licensed in California, Michigan, North Carolina, and South Carolina
° Board Certified by the American Board of Radiology, June 2006

EMPLOYMENT

e . Radiologist (part-time), Vision Radiology (teleradiology), Pittsburgh, PA
November 2006- present
. Research Assistant, Department of Cell Biology, Vanderbilt University School of
Medicine, summer 1998
] Regearch Fellow, Bell Laboratories, Murray Hill, NJ, summer 1995
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Resgearch Associate in Physics, Semiconductor Research Corporation, Ithaca, NY,
1993 to 1994

Teaching Assistant, Department of Physics, Cornell University, 1991 to 1993
Research Assistant, Applied Research Laboratories, Austin, TX, 1991

Research Assistant, Department of Plasma Physics, University of Texas--Austin,
1988 to 1990

HONORS AND AWARDS

. Roentgen Resident/Fellow Research Award, RSNA, 2006

° Microbes and Defense Society, 1997

o Outstanding Presentation, "New Phase Transitions in Dense Hydrogen", Gordon

Research Conference on Physics at High Pressure, 1996

Bell Laboratories Fellowship in Physics, 1994 to 1997

Melvin J. Reiger Scholership in Physics, University of Texas, 1988 to 1990
University Scholar, University of Texas, 1988-1990

University Merit Scholarship, University of Texas, 1986-1990

PUBLICATIONS and PRESENTATIONS

Papers and Invited Presentatlons

B. Edwards, G, Sommer, L. Chow, R. Bammer, B. Ho, B. Meyer, ‘“Diffusion
Weighted MRI of the Kidneys”, Society of Uroradiology, Abdominal Radiology
Course 2006, February 2006, Kauai, HI

B. Edwards & N.W. Ashcroft, “Order in Dense Hydrogen at Low Temperatures”,
Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences, 101, 4013-4018 (2004)

T. Oyama, M. Dikoy., P. Cheng, T. Takahashi, K, Takahashi, T. Sepetavec, B.
Edwards, Y. Adachi, S, Nadaf, T, Danieel, D. Gabrilovich, D, Carbone, “Vascular
Endothelial Growth Factor Effects on NF-xB Activation in Hematopoietic
Progenitor Cells”, Cancer Research, 61, 2015-2021 (2001)

D. Muller, B. Edwards, E. Kirkland, J. Silcox, “Simulation of Thermal Diffuse
Scattering Including a Detailed Phonon Dispersion Curve”, Ultramicroscopy, 86,
371-380 (2001)

B. Edwards & N.W, Ashcroft, ‘‘Spontaneous Polarization in Dense Hydrogen"”,
Nature, 388, 652-655 (1997) (featured in *News and Views" and listed on the

cover) '
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T.J. Lenosky, J.D. Kress, 1. Kwon, A.F. Voter, B. Edwards, D.F. Richerds, S.
Yang, J.B. Adams, *“Highly Optimized Tight-Binding Model of Silicon”,
Physical Review B, 55, 1528-1544 (1997)

B. Edwards, N.W, Ashcroft, T.J. Lenosky, T.J, “Layering Transitions and the
Structure of Dense Hydrogen”, Europhysics Letters, 34, 519-524 (1996)

Abstracts

B. Edwards, L.K. Shin, G. Sommer, B. Ho, B, Myers, R. Bammer, L. Chow,
“Evaluation of Renal Function with Diffusion Weighted MRI of the Kidneys”,
Proceedings of the ISMRM, Mey 2007, Berlin, Germany

LK. Shin, B. Edwards, B, Hargreaves, R.B. Jeffrey, A. Thompson, A.C Brau, R,
Busse, P.J. Beatty, R.J. Herfkens, ‘Evaluation of Accelerated Single Shot Fast
Spin Echo (SSFSE) for Imaging of the Appendix”, Proceedings of the ISMRM,
May 2007, Berlin, Germany

B. Ho, B. Myers, S. Busque, B. Edwards, G. Sommer, J. Ten, “Determinants of
Adaptive Hyperfiltration after Nephrectomy in Living Kidney Donors”, American
Society of Nephrology Renal Week, San Diego, CA, November 14, 2006

B. Ho, B. Bdwards, G. Sommer, B, Myers, J. Tan, “Diffusion weighted imaging
of the kidneys as a measure of GFR", World Transplant Conference, Boston, MA,

July 22, 2006

References available upon request
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Jeffrey Huggett, MD

Graduste Madlcal Musculoskeletal Radiology Fellowship July, 2002 — June, 2003

Education

Education

Professlional
experience

Board
Certification

Professional
Licensure

University of Virginla
Charlottesville, VA

Diagnostic Radlology Reeldency July, 1888 —June, 2002
University of Virginla

Charlottesville, VA

Chlef resident 2001-2002

Transitional Internship July, 1687 — June, 1808
Oakwood Hospital
Deerborn, Ml

Wayne State University School of Mediclne
Detroit, MI
M.D. May, 1987

Michigan State University -
Eeast Lansing , Ml
B.S. In Medical Technelogy with Honors May, 1993

Advanced Diagnostic imaging/Premler Radiclogy
Nashvllle, TN July 2003- Present
Musculoskeletal Radiologist

ABR Oral examination . June 2002

ABR Written examination September, 2001
ABR Physics examinetion September, 2000
USMLE 1,11, &Il

Aclive medical licensss’ in Tennessee, Virginia, Kentucky, Colorado,

Georgla, Idaho, Loulislana, Washington, Maine
Teleradiology license In Texas
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Profeasional
memberships

interests and
activities

References

American College of Radlology
Rediological Society of North America
Internatlonal Skeletal Soolety

Soclety of Skeletal Radiology

Spending time with famlly, Golf, Fishing, Travel

Avallable upon request
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Post-grad Traintog:

Certifications:

State Licensure:

Education:

Honors:

Memberships:

Employment;

Vineet Sharma
1112 Frances Ave
Nashville, TN 37204
vsharma23@gmail.com

as Cardiac MR/CT,.

Unlversity of Utah, Department of Radlology, Salt Lake City, UT

Resident, (2001-2005);

Good Samaritan Hospital, Phoenix, AZ
. Transitional Year Intern, completed 2001

American Board of Radlotogy, Certified June 2005.

Level 3 ceritification in Cardiac CTA and Cardlac MRI, Junc 2006 (SCCT, SCMR and

ACR crititerla). University of Utah Dept. of Radiology:

Unlversity of Utah, Department of Radlology, Salt Lake City, UT
MRI Fellowship, Subspeciality training to include MSK, Body, and Neuro, as well

Utsh Tssued 2001 Active

Tennessee Jasued 2006 Active

Louisiana Issued 2007 Active
Georgia Issued 2007 Active

Kentucky Tssued 2007 Acti ve
Washington Issued 2007 Active
Colorado Issued 2006 Active
Idaho Issued 2007 Active
Maino Issued 2006 Active
Alabama Issued 2007 Active

University of Tennessee College of Mediclne, Memphis TN
Medical Doctorate, June 2000
GPA 3.60 USMLEB Stzp 1: 235 (§9th %ile)

USMLE Steps 2 and 3: pass

University of Momphls, Memphis, TN
Bachelor of Arts in English Literature; May 1996
GPA 3.89 Summa Cum Laude

Unlversity of Memphls, Memphis, TN
Bachelor of Science in Biology, May 1995
GPA 3.45 Magna Cum Laude

Dean's List 1991-1996, University of Memphis
English Scholar of the Year, 1996, University of Memphis
Nucor-Yamato Merit Scholar, 1992-1995

RSNA, ARRS, ACR

Advence Disgnostic Imaging

3024 Business Park Circle

Goodlettsville, TN 37072

Diegnositic Radiologist, with subspeciality skills in CT/MRI
Current
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Uintah Basin Medical Center, Roosevelt UT

Diagnostic Radlologist - all modalitics

Interpretation 6F about 80 studies per day including MR/CT/US
One week, every other month since Feb 2005 (moonlighting)

Hospital Affiliations:

Publication:

i’enonal:

[

Horizon Medical Center, Dickson, TN

Parkway Rogional Hogpital Fulton, KY

Southemn TN Medical Center Winchester, TN

University Medical Center Lebanon, TN

Eastern Maine Medical Center Bangot, ME

Premier Radiology Pain Management Center Nashville, TN
Williamson Medical Center Franklin, TN

Hendersonville Medical Center Hendersonville, TN
Skyline Medical Center, Nashville, TN

Sharma et al, The Radiological Spectrum of Small Airweys Discase, Seminars in Ultrasound,
CT and MRI; Vo123, No 4, Auguet 2002. pp 339-351.

1 have & broad renge of literary pursuits from writing poetry and short stories to reading
olassical and postmodem literature, T enjoy sn aftemoon lounging on the golf course with
friends, as well as cutthroat competition on the basketball or tennis court, Passionate about
traveling, wine, and college football,,
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Curriculum Vitae

Michael J. Spellman, Jr.
Home: Work:
946 Yeerling Way Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, P.C.
Nashville, Tennessee 37221 3024 Business Park Circle

(615) 373-9103

P.O. Box 249
Goodlettsville, Tennessee 37070-0249
(615) 851-6033

EDUCATION and TRAINING:

Undergraduate Degree

‘Washington and Lee University
Lexington, Virginia

B.A., Chemistry, cum laude
June, 1985 :

Medical Degree

Saint Louis University School of Medicine
St. Louis, Missouri

M.D.

May, 1994

Postgraduate Trainfug and Experience

Saint Louis University School of Medicine

Surgery Intem
July 1994 through June 1995

Saint Louis University School of Medicine
Surgery/Urology Resident
July 1995 through June 1997

University of Virginia Health System
Radiology Resident
July 1997 through June 2001

University of Virginia Health System

Chief Resident, Radiology
April 1999 through March 2000
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University of Virginia Health System
Neuroradiology Fellow

July 2001 through June 2003
Clinical Instructor

Department of Radiology

University of Virginia Health System
July 2002 through June 2003

CURRENT POSITION:

Neuroradiologist, Private Practice
Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, P.C.
Nashville, Tennessee

June 2003 to present

STATE MEDICAL LICENSES:

Colorado:
Active Physician License #44948
Issued June 1, 2007
Expires May 31, 2009

Missouri:
Medical Physician and Surgeon License #105683
Issued 1996
Expires January 31, 2008

Virginia:
Intern and Resident License #0116008678
Issued 1997
Expired June 30, 2002
Medicine and Surgery License #0101231861
Issued October 5, 2001
Expires September 30, 2008

Tennessee: \
Medicat Doctor License #37553
Issued May 13, 2003
Expires September 30, 2009
Kentucky:

Board of Medical Licensure License #39255
Issued March 17, 2005
BExpires March 1, 2008
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Texas:
License #TM00115
Issued August 24, 2007
Expires May 31, 2009

Washington:

Physicien and Surgeon License #MD00047262

Issued October 31, 2006
} Expires September 18, 2009

Virginia
License #0101231861
Issued October 05, 2001
Expires September 30, 2008

Gerogia:
License #060323
Issued December 7, 2007
Expires December 30, 2009

Maine;
License #017616
Issued October 26, 2007
Expires September 30, 2009

CERTIFICATION:

Diagnostic Radiology, The American Board of Radiology

PROFESSIONAL SOCIETIES:

American College of Radiology (ACR)

Radiological Society of North America (RSNA)

American Society of Neuroradiologists (ASNR), Senior Member

HONARY SOCIETIES, HONORS AND AWARDS:

Washington and Lee University:
Dean’s List
Honor Roll

Robert B, Lee Research Scholar, Chemistry

ALPHA EPSILON DELTA

3
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Michae!l J. Spellman, Jr.

Saint Louis University School of Medicine
Summer Research Fellowship
Resident Teacher Award, 1997

University of Virginia:
Introduction to Research Program, RSNA, 1998
Most Outstanding Fellow Award, 2003

ACTIVITIES:
Washington and Lee University: .
White Book (Honor Code) Revisions Committee
Secretary for Mock Convention - New York Sate Delegation

Saint Louis University School of Medicine
Freshman Orientation 1991
Support Group Leader - Advisor to incoming freshman
Course evaluator for Death and Dying and Neuroscience II
Honor Council Representative, 1990-1994

RESEARCH EXPERIENCE:

June 1983-August 1983 Comell University Medical College: one summer as a
Research Assistant, Project involved a bioassay and
radioimmunoassay to detect thromboxane synthesis from
hydronephrotic rabbit kidneys.

July 1985-June 1986 University of Califormnia, San Francisco:
Staff Research Associate for the Cancer Research Institute.
Projects involved looking at drug effects on various types of
cancer cells through cloning experiments and RNA preparations.

June 1986-July 1983 University of California, San Francisco:
Staff Research Associate for the Department of Ancsthesia.
Projects involved pharmacokinetics and pharmacodynamics
of various narcotics and muscle relaxants using both human
and ovine models, along with extensive computer analysis
of collected data and computer graphics.

July 1988-August 1990 University of California, San Francisco:
Staff Research Associate for the Department of Anesthesia.
Project involved respiratory physiology and the
performance of pulse oximeters at various hypotensive and

4
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Michae! J. Spellman, Jr.

Summer 1991

2001-2003

hypoxio states.

University of California, San Francisco:

Student in the Department of Anesthesia. Investigated
hypoxic ventilatory responses during acclimation to high
altitude.

University of Virgima:

Fellow in Department of Radiology. Development of
Magnetic Resonance Ventilation/Perfusion Scan and
Virtuel Colonoscopy using hyperpolarized nobel gases;
high resolution carotid artery magnetic resonance
angiography and functional paranasal sinus iraging
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Michael J. Speltman, Jr. 201 DEC |5 P 3 54
BIBLIOGRAPHY;

Papers published, in press, or accepted for publication In peer reviewed journals

1.

11

Gauntlett IS, Fisher DM, Hertzka RE, Kuhls E, Spellman MJ, Rudolph C:
Pharmacokinetics of fentanyl in neonatal humans and lambs: Effects of age.
Anesthesiology 69:683-687, 1988,

Hertzka RE, Gauntlett IS, Fisher DM, Speliman MJ: Fentanyl-induced ventilatory
depression: Bffects of age. Anesthesiology 70:213-218, 1989,

Kitts JB, Fisher DM, Canfell PC, Spellman MJ, Caldwell JE, Heier T, Pahey MR,
Miller RD: Pharmacokinetics and pharmacodynamics of atracurium in elderly.
Anesthesiology 72:272-275, 1990.

Fisher DM, Canfell PC, Spellman M, Miller RD: Pharmacokinetics and
Pharmacodynamics of atracurium in {nfants and children. Anesthesiology 73:33-
37, 1990,

Severinghaus JW, Speliman MJ: Pulse oximeter failure thresholds in hypotension
and ischemia, Anesthesiology 73:532-537, 1990,

Xu FD, Speliman MJ, Sato M, Baumgartner JE, Ciricillo SF, Severinghaus JW:
Anomalous hypoxic acidification of medullary ventrel surface. Joumal of
Applied Physiology 71:2211-2217, 1991, ,

Severinghaus JW, Xu FD, Speliman MI: Benzocaine and
methemoglobin:recommended FDA ection (letter to the editor). Anesthesiology
74:385-386, 1991,

Sato M, Severinghaus JW, Powell FL, Xu FD, Spellman MJ: Augmented hypoxic
ventilatory response in man at altitude, Journal of Applied Physiology 73:101-
107, 1992,

XuF, Sato M, Spellman MJ, Mitchell RA, Severinghaus JW: Topography of cat
medullary ventral surface hypoxic acidification. Journal of Applied Physiology
73:2631-2637, 1992,

Mugler I JP, Driehuys B, Hagspiel X, Ruppert K, Cates G, Altes T, Spellman M,
Munger T, Mata J, Brookeman J: Dissolved-Phase Xe-129 spectroscopy: impact
of polarization improvements. Accepted for publication in the joumal Buropean
Radiology, June 1999.
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12,

13.

14,

15.

16.

Hagspiel K, Altes T, Mugler ITl JP, Spellman M, Mata J, Tustison N, Rudy R,
Brookeman J: MR virtual colonoscopy and hysterosalpingography using hyperpolarized
helium-3 as an endoluminal contrast agent. Accepted for publication in the journal
Buropean Radiology, June 1999.

Hagspiel K, Mugler I JP, Altes T, De Lange E, Knight-Scott J, Munger T, Berr S, Mai
V, Danlel T, Spellman M, Mata J,Bogorad P, Drichuys B, Gentile T, Jones G, Thompson
A, Brookeman J: Static MR imaging of the airways using hyperpolarized He-3 and
Xe-129: The University of Virginia Experience. Accepted for publication in the journal

European Radiology, June 1999.

Hagspicl K, Spellman MJ, Altes T, Mugler J, Brookeman J: Magnetic Resonance
Colonography employing polarized nobel gases, a novel technique, Radiology
submitted for publication,

Spellman MJ: Deviation of the descending thoracic aorta as a sign left of atrial
enlargement. Submitted to Radiology.

Spellman MJ, Longo WE, Parra RO: Locally advanced rectal carcinoma involving
the urinary tract: Salvage treatment with pelvic exenteration and colon urinary
diversion. For submission to Journal of Pelvic Surgery.

ABSTRACTS:

1.

Hertzka RE, Fisher DM, Gauntlett IS, Spellman M: Are infants sensitive to respiratory
depression from fentanyl? Anesthesiology 67:A512, 1987.

Kitts JB, Fisher DM, Canfell PC, Spellman MJ, Cauldwell JE, Heier T, Fahey MR, Miller
RD: Pharmacokinetios of atracurium in elderly and young adults. Anesthesiology
69:A482, 1988.

Xu F, Severinghaus JW, Spellman MJ, Sato M: hypoxia uniquely acidifies medullary
ventral surface ECF. FASEB A4342, April 1991,

Ruppert K, Brookeman JR, Spellman MJ, Hagspiel KD, Drichuys B, Munger T, Mugler
JP: Temporal dynamics of hyperpolarized '*° Xenon in the dog chest during a breath-hold
period. ISMRM 319, May, 1999.

Wu RH, Kallmes DF, Speliman MJ, Marx W: Accuracy of contrast enhanced MR
Angiography in the model of carotid artery stenosis, ISMRM1916, May, 1999.
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Michael J. Spellman, Jr.

6. . WuRH, Kallmes DF, Spellman MIJ, Fujwara N, Christopher JM, Mugler JP: High
resolution contrast enhanced MR Angiography in the model of carotid artery.
RSNA198, November, 2000

PRESENTATIONS:

1. “Voiding dysfunction following proctectomy for malignant disease,”” The Americen
Society of Colon and Rectal Surgeons, Seattle, Washington, June 12, 1996

2. “MR Virtual colonoscopy using hyperpolarized helium-3 as en endoluminal contrast
agent,” International Society for Magnetic Resonance in Medicine, Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, May 27, 1999,

3. “Web-based system for faculty evaluations,” Association of University Radiologists,

Orlando, Florida, April, 8, 2000.
4, “Fluoroscopically-guided balloon dilations of the gastrointestinal tract strictures: Review

of primary complications.” RSNA, Chicago, Illinois, November, 29, 2000.
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Curriculum Vitae

Brett L. Thorstad, MD
PERSONAL
DATA
Date of Birth 07/15/1957
Montgomery, AL, USA
Marital Status Married
Citizenship Usa
Residence 2303 Golf Club Lano
Nashville, TN 37215
(615) 298-1289(Home)
Business Office Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, PC
3024 Business Park Circle
Goodlettsville, TN 37072
Telepkone Numbers (615) 851-6033 (Office)
(615) 851-2018 (Fax)
EDUCATION
Undergraduate
University of Alabame - Tuscaloosa 07/01/1975 - 05/31/1979
Tuscaloosa, AL
BS
Medical School 07/01/1982 - 06/30/1986
University of Alabama, School of Medicine
Birmingham, AL
MD
Restdency 07/01/1987 - 06/30/1991
Universfty of Alabama Hospital
Birmingham, AL Diagunostic Radiology
Restdency 07/01/1986 - 06/30/1987
University of Alabama Hospital
Bimmingham, AL Nuclear Medicine
Fellowship 07/01/1991 - 06/30/1993
University of Alabama Hospital
Birmingham, AL : Neuroradiology
EMPLOYMENT
HISTORY
Premier Radjology Pain Management Center 08/19/2005 - Present

28 White Bridge Rd Suite 104
Nashville, TN 37205

Premier Radiology 03/01/1994 - Present

28 White Bridge Rd Suite 111
Nashville, TN 37205

February 2008
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Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, P.C.
3024 Business Park Circle
Goodlettsvitle, TN 37072

University of Alabama Hosplitals
619 8 19th Street

Birmingham, AL 35233
HOSPITAL
AFFILIATIONS
Provisional Associate
Horizon Medical Center
Dickson, TN
Associate
University Medical Center
Lebanon, TN
Active
Premier Radiology Pain Management Center
Nashville, TN
Active
Williamson Medical Center
Franklin, TN
Active
Hendersonville Medical Center
Hendersonville, TN
Active
Skyline Medical Center
Naghville, TN
MEDICAL LICENSURE
Cco DR-45099
OK 20589
MA
KY 33667
X K4270
LA

. FL ME72892
NV
™ 25159
AL 13508
SPECIALTIES
Board Certified
American Board of Radiology

Radiology, Diagnostic

190

03/01/1994

07/01/1993

09/27/2007

06/13/2007

06/01/2005

05/27/1999

01/12/1999

03/16/1994

10/23/2006
03/26/1998
12/17/1997
12/17/1997
11/22/1997
09/17/1997
04/23/1997
04/18/1997
12/16/1993
06/30/1987

- Present

- 02/28/1994

09/26/2008

- Present

05/31/2008

- 06/30/2008

- 0173172008

06/30/2008

- 05/31/2009

- 03/01/2009

- 07/31/2009
- 12/31/2008

11/09/1992

February 2008



ASSOCIATIONS &

AFFILIATIONS

Amerlcan Soclety of Neuroradiology Member

RSNA Member

Soclety of Nuclear Medicine Member

PUBLICATIONS
Article

- Bilatoral fetal nephromegaly 01/01/1991
- Radionuclides in Ueo - and Nephrology 01/30/1989
- Kldney Imeging with TC-99km-MAG3 a technetium Jabeled analog of hippuran 01/01/1989
= Quantitation of renal function with TC-99m MAG3 01/30/1988
- Comparison of TC-99m-MAG3 with 1-131 Hlppuran by a simultaneous dual channel echnique 01/30/1988
- Abnormal captopril renogram with a technetium labeled hippuran analog 01/01/1988
= The perisholecystic hepatic activity sign in a normal DISIDA study 01/30/1987
- A rare cause of death form pancreatic carcinoma 01/01/1987

February 2008
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Jeffrey T. WilliamsyiMDis ry 3. sy

1911 Beechwood Ave.
Nashville, TN 37212

615-292-9147 H
615-483-1015 C

[twilliams1972@hotmall.com

Educatjon: Barrow Neurological Institute, Phoenix, AZ

Neuroradiology Fellowshlp
July 2003 ~ June 2005; ABR Subspeclalty Board Certificate: November, 2007

Unlversity of Tennessee, Memphls, TN

Diagnostic Radiology Resldency
June 1899 — June 2003: ABR Board Certificate; June 4, 2003

Universlty of Tennessee, Memphis, TN

Internal Medlcine Internshlp
June 1988 - June 1099

Unlverslty of Tennessee College of Medicine; Memphis, TN
1894-1888
* AMA MediCal Student Executive Councll Representative
(1096 -1687)
* IMHOTEP Soclety - In recognition of service and leadership
« Peer Counselor / Faculty Mentor Program — to serve as
catalyst in providing support for first year students
(1994 - 19908)
o USMLE: Step1 (1998), Step 2 (1997), Step 3 (1998)

David Llpscomb University; Nashville, TN
1990-1994; B8S in Applied Chemistry with Business Management Minor
* Alpha Chi National Honor Soclety — the top 10% (1904)
* Athletic and academic scholarships
¢ Director of University Orientation, “Quest" (1992 -1994)
* Honor Code Councll (1992 ~1984)
s Magna cum Laude (1884)
 University Senator (1080 ~1982), Chalr of the Academic
Committee

David Lipscomb High School; Nashville, TN
Graduated 1980

Professional Activitles:

Chief Fellow
Department of Neuroradlology: Barrow Neurological Institute

Chlef Resident
Department of Radlology; University of Tennessee
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Medical Education Committee
Department of Radiology; Unlversity of Tennessee

Representative to the GME Reslidents Assoclatlon
Department of Radlolegy; University of Tennessee

ACGME Resident Representative for Department of Radlology
University of Tennessee

Resident Resources Commlittee
Depariment of Radlology; Unlverslly of Tennessee

Awards: 2003 RSNA Roentgen Resldent/Fellow Research Award

Ettman Scholar, Department of Radlology, Unlv. of Tennessee
2002

Golden Appie Teaching Award for 1998-1999
Reciplent selected by the student body at the Unliversity of Tennessee
College of Medicine

Publications: "A New Unlversal Colostomy Tlp for Barlum Enemas of the Colon,”
Wiiltams J, Scott R; AJR 2003; 180:1330 -1331

Professional Organizations:

American Assoclation of Academic Chisf Residents In Radlology (2002~ 2003)
American College of Radiology

American Roentgen Ray Society

American Soclety of Neuroradlology, Senlor Member

Radiologlcal S8oclety of North America

Employment: Advanced Dlagnostic Imaging, P.C. Goodiettsville, TN
2005 - Present

Medical Student Extern, Methodist Hospital, Memphis, TN

1996 — 1998
Surgical Assistant, Southern Hllls Hospltal, Nashville, TN
1996 .

Interests: Fly fishing, reading, running,

skling, and travel -

References: Avallable on request
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Education

Current:

Fellowshlp:

Residency:

Internship:
Medicul School:
Undergraduate;

High School:

Mictiael R, Couden, M.D.
414-35-0164

1205 Taggartwood Drive

Brentwood, TN 37027

Coudenam@comcast.net

Interventiona) and Diagnostic Radiologist with Advanced Diagnostic
Imaging- Nashville, TN

Vascular and Interventional Radiology, MUSC 2001-2002
Certificate of Additional Qualification , 11/04

Medical Univeraity of South Carolina 1997-2001; Board-Certified in
Diagnostic Radiology, 6/01

University of Tennessee at Chattanooga, 7/1996 - 6/1997
University of Tennessee at Memphis, 8/1992 — 6/1996
Rhodes College, Memphis; B.S. in Biology, May 1992

Father Ryan High School, Nashville, TN Class Rank: 9/243

Honors and Extracurricular Actlvities

Resideney:

Medical School:

Undergraduate:

Research

Chief Regident 2000-2001
Resident Representative for MUSC House Staff 1999-2000
Representative at ACR Meeting — Washington, D.C., 1999;

New York, N.Y,, 2000
Distinguished Achievement ACR Inservice Exam- 2™ Year (>70%ile)
1" Place Award Proven Case Conferences- First Year Residents

Peer Counselor 1992-1993

Class Social Chairman 1992-1994
Intramural Soccer and Basketball 1992-1995
Completed Merophis Marathon 1995

Presidential Scholarship 1988-1992

Dean's List 1991-1992 (GPA=3.7)

Honor Roll  Fall 1992 (GPA=4.0)
Varsity Soccer Starter 1988-1992

Captain, Soccer Team 1992

Sigma Nu Freternity 1988-1992
Intrafraternity Council Representative 1991
Beta Beta Beta Biology Honor Society 1992

NIH Medical Student Grant, summer 1993
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PERSONAL DATA

Date of Birth
Place of Birth

Marital Status
Clitizenship
Residence

Primary and
Business Office

Telephone Numbers

EDUCATION

Undergraduate
Emory University
Atlanta, GA

BA

Medical School

Medical College of Georgia
Augusta, GA

MD

Internship
The Malden Hospital
Malden, MA

Residency

Bmory University
Atlanta, GA
Diagnostic Radiology

Fellowship

Vanderbilt Children’s Hospital
Naghville, TN
Neuroradiology

EMPLOYMENT
HISTORY

Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, P.C,

Curriculum Vitae
John Joseph Alarcon, MD

02/04/1961 .
Chicago, IL, USA
Married

USA

1220 Waterstone Blvd

Franklin, TN 37069
(613) 661-9065

Advanced Diggnostic Imaging, PC
3024 Business Park Circle
Goodlettsville, TN 37072

(615) 851-6033 (Office)
(615) 851-2018 (Fax)

09/01/1979

09/01/1982

07/01/1986

07/01/1987

07/01/1991

06/28/1999

3024 Business Park Circle P.O. Box 249

Goodlettsville, TN 37020

Premier Radiology
28 White Bridge Rd Suite 111}
Nashville, TN 37205

06/28/1999
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06/30/1982

06/30/1986

06/30/1987

06/30/1991

06/30/1992

Present

Present

February 2008



EMPLOYMENT
HISTORY CONTINUED

Scottish Rite Children's Medical Center
1001 Johnson Perry Rd. N.E.
Atlanta, GA 30342 '

HOSPITAL
AFFILIATIONS

Skyline Medical Center
Nashville, TN
Active

Horizon Medical Conter
Dickson, TN
Active

University Medical Center
Lebanon, TN
Courtesy

Premier Radiology Pain Management Center
Nashville, TN
Active

Hendetsonville Medical Center
Hendersonville, TN
Active

Williamson Medicel Center
Franklin, TN
Associate

Parkway Regional Hospital
Fulton, KY
Consulting/Telemedicine

Kindred Hospital
Franklin, TN
Active

Middle Tennessee Mental Health Institute
Nashville, TN
Courtesy

Bedford County Medical Center
Shelbyville, TN
Active

Tennessee Chrisitan Medical Center
Madison, TN
Inactive
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09/16/1993

12/21/1999

09/27/2007.

05/03/2007

06/01/2005

11/06/2001

02/22/2001

05/14/2008

05/02/2008

02/22/2001

08/21/2003

09/15/1999

05/28/1999

- Present

‘Present

Present
Present
Present
Pregent
Pregent
Present
Present
08/1'8I‘2004

09/10/2006

February 2008



MEDICAL LICENSURE

AL Sp.10 10/24/2007 - Present
Cco 45463 03/28/2007 - Present
KY 36309 03/22/2001 - Present
TN 21658 07/02/1991 - Present
GA 032508 12/07/1989 - Present

SPECIALTIES

Board Certified
Americen Board of Radiology Neuroradiology 34842 11/01/1997 - 11/30/2007
American Board of Radiology Radiology, Diagnostic 34842 11/25/1991 - Present

ASSOCIATIONS &
AFFILIATIONS

ACR Member
American Society of Neuroradiology Member
RSNA Member

PUBLICATIONS
Article

- Creasy JL, Alarcon JJ: Magnetic Resonance Imaging of Neurocysticercosis. Topics in Magnetic Resonance Imaging
6(1): 59-68, 1994,

- Vassiliades VG, Foloy WD, Alarcon JJ, Lawson T, Erickson S, Knesland JB, Steinberg HV, Bermnardino ME; Hepatic
Metastases: CT Versus MR Imaging at 1.5T, Gastrointerstinal Radiology 16:159-163, 1991,

- Steinbert HV, Alarcon JJ, Bernardino ME: Focal Hepatic Lesions; Comparitive MR Imaging at 0.5 and 1.5T, Radiology
174; 153-156, 1990,

Pebruary 2008

197



Curriculum Vitae
Steven Michael Blount, MD

PERSONAL
DATA
Date of Birth 06/26/1961
Oceanslde, CA, Camp Pendleton USA
Marital Status ’ Married
Citizenship USA
Residence 1434 Moran Road
Franklin, TN 37069
(615) 309-0161 (Home)
Business Office Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, PC
3024 Business Park Clrcle
Goodlettsville, TN 37072
(615) 851-6033 (Office)
(615) 851-2018 (Fax)
EDUCATION
Undergraduate
University of Colorado 08/01/1980 - 12/01/1983
Boulder, CO
BA
Medical School 08/15/1985 - 05/06/1989
East Tennessee State University
Johnson City, TN
MD '
Residency 07/01/1989 - 06/01/1993
Vanderbilt Unlversity Medical Center
Nashville, TN Radiology
Fellowship 07/01/1993 - 06/01/1994
Vanderbilt University Medical Center
Nashville, TN Radiology, Interventional
EMPLOYMENT
HISTORY
Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, P.C. 03/01/1995 - Present
3024 Business Park Circle PO Box 249
Goodelettsville, TN 37072
Premier Radiology 03/01/1995 - Present
28 White Brldge Rd Suite 111
Naghville, TN 37205

February 2009
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Steven M Blount MD
2817 White Oak Drive
Nashville, TN 37205

St Judes Childrens Hospital
Memphis, TN

HOSPITAL
AFFILIATIONS

Active
Horizon Medical Center
Dickson, TN

Courtesy
University Medical Center
Lebanon, TN

Active
Premier Radiology Pain Management Center
Nashville, TN

Associate
Williamson Medical Center
Franklin, TN

Active
Hendersonville Medical Center
Hendersonville, TN

Active

Skyline Medical Center

Nashville, TN

Courtegy
" Middle Tennessee Mental Health Institute
Nashville, TN

Consulting

Parkway Regional Hospital
Nashville, TN

Active

Kindred Hospital

Nashville, TN

MEDICAL LICENSURE
AL 20495

co DR-45092

KY 33781

TN 21964
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07/01/1993

01/01/1984

09/20/2007

06/13/2007

07/25/2005

02/25/1999

01/12/1999

12/18/1995

03/14/2008

04/23/2008

05/02/2008

02/26/2008
10/16/2006
03/19/1998
10/23/1991

- 07/01/1996

- 02/28/1985

-

1

Pregent

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Pregent

Present

Present

Present
Present
Present
Present

February 2009



SPECIALTIES

Board Certifled
American Board of Radiology Radiology, Diagnostic 06/10/1993

February 2009
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Curriculum Vitae

Jack Michael Friday, MD
PERSONAL DIDEC |5 py 5 e
DATA 359
Date of Birth 11/16/1961
Gastonia, NC, USA
Marital Statas Marrled
Citizenship Usa
Residence 1159 Geteway Lane
Nashville, TN 37220
Primary Office Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, PC
3024 Business Park Circle
Goodlettsville, TN 37072
Telephone Number (615) 373-0626 (Home)
Business Office Advanced Diagnostlc Imaging, PC
3024 Business Park Circlo
Goodlettaville, TN 37072
Telephone Numbers (615) B51-6033 (Office)
(615) 851-2018 (Fax)
UPIN F44380
EDUCATION
Undergraduate
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill 08/15/1980 - 05/10/1984
Chapel Hil), NC
BA
Medical School 08/01/1984 - 05/30/1988
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill
Chapel Hill, NC
MD
Clinical Medicine Rotation and Student Heatlh Alliance.Clinic
Internship 07/01/1988 - 06/01/1989
University of Florida
QGainesvills, FL Interna) Medicine
Residency - 07/01/1989 - 06/30/1990
Tulane University Hospital
Now Orleans, LA Radiology
Residency 07/01/1990 - 06/01/1993
Unlversity of Virginia
Charlottesville, VA Radlology
Fellowshlp 07/01/1993 - 06/30/1594

Unlversity of Florida, College of Mediclna
Qainesville, FL
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EMPLOYMENT

HISTORY

Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, P.C.
3024 Business Park Circle PO Box 249
Goodlettsville, TN 37072

Premier Radiology
28 White Bridge Rd Suite 111
Nashvlile, TN 37205

Hill Radlology Associates, P.C,
3024 Business Park Circle
Goodlettaville, TN 37072 .

HOSPITAL

AFFILIATIONS
Actlve

Horlzon Medica! Center
Dickson, TN

Assoclato

University Medlcal Center
Lebanon, TN

Consulting

Bedford County Medical Center
Shelbyville, TN

Assoclate

Williamson Medical Center
Franklin, TN

Actlve

Skyline Medical Center
Nashville, TN

Actlve

Hendersonville Medlical Center
Hendersonvillo, TN

Courtesy

Summit Medical Center

Hermitage, TN

Active

Tennessee Christian Medical Center

Madison, TN

MEDICAL LICENSURE

AL SP.19

™ 25800

KY 29216

VA 0101046771

NC 38262

DEA

INFORMATION

DEA ' BF2883002
SPECIALTIES

Board Certifled

American Board of Radlology Radiology, Diagnostio
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10/01/1999

10/01/1999

08/01/1994

09/27/2007

05/03/2007

08/21/2003

11/18/1999

11/21/1994

11/01/1994

11/01/1994

10/25/1994

11/09/2007
07/01/1994
11/06/1992
07/01/1991
08/19/1989

10/14/1994

06/10/1993

- Present

- Present

- 09/30/1999

- Present

- Present

- 08/18/2004

- Present

- Present

- Present

- 06/1272007

~ 11/23/2008

« Prosent
« Present
- Present
- Present
- 1171672004

= Present

- Present



ASSOCIATIONS &

AFFILIATIONS
VIR Member
RSNA . Moember
PUBLICATIONS

‘Artlcle

~  Oblique projections in aortography following blunt trauma -
Speech

-~ Spurious ST segmant depression due to atrial repolarization and further charecterization of the Ta wave
«  Use of Captaln for control of Sarcophaga Bullata through chitin synthesis inhibition

< Reactlvity of dlabetic rat hearts and aortac to various neurotransmitters

- Synthesis of candldate anti-cancer compounds for NCI tumor panel
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06/01/1989

01/01/1987
01/01/1983
01/01/1983

01/01/1982



Home Address

Business Office

Education

Work Experience

Facllity Affiliations

License &
Reglstrations

Specialties

Society Memberships

Publications

Michael S. Metzman, M.D.

928 Overton Lea
Nashville, TN 37220
(615) 288-3660

mick 0l .ne

Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, PC

3024 Business Park Circle

Goodlettsvllle, TN 37072

Phone (616) 851-8033; Fax (815) 851-2018

Institution Dates Degree

University of Pennsylvania 1974-1978 BA - Biology

Hahnemenn University College of Medicine 1978-1982 M.D.

Qood Samaritan Hospltal - Intemship 1882-1083 Internal Medicine

Emory University Hospltal - Residency 1883-1087 Radiology,
Diagnostic

Emory University Hospftal - Fellowship 1987-1988 Neuroradiology

Advanced Dlagnostic Imaging, PC, Radiologlst, April 1, 1891 to present
NOL, LLC d/b/e Premier Radiology, Radlologist, April 1, 1891 to present
DeKalb Medical Center, Radiologist, July 1, 1988 to March 31, 1991

Willlamson Medical Center

Skyline Medicel Center

Hendersonville Medical Center

RADS of America, LLC d/b/a Premier Radiology Paln Management Center
Universlty Medical Center

Horizon Medical Center

Middie TN Mentat Health Institute

Kindred Hospital

Baptist Women's Health Center, LLC d/b/a The Center for Spinal Surgery

State License # Issue Date

TN 21291 February 13, 1981
KY 36851 November 6, 2001
AL SP.23 November 28, 2007
co 45081 October 6, 2006

WA 00047255 October 28, 2006
American Board of Radiology Radiology, Diagnostic December 1687

Amaericen College of Radiology
Radiological Sodety of North America
American Medical Association
Medicel Assoclation of Tennessee

MRI in the Diagnosis of Lesions of the Head and Neck November 1889
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Home Address

Business Office

Education

Work Experience

Facllity Afflllations

License &
Registrations

Board Certlfication

Socisty Memberships

Paul C. Nau, M.D.

9101 Brentmeade Blvd .
Brentwood, TN 37027-8525
(615) 373-2178

.ne

Advenced Dlagnostic Imaging, PC

3024 Businesa Park Circle

Goodleltsville, TN 37072

Phone (615) 851-6033; Fax (615) 8651-2018

Institution Dates Degree

Bellarmine College 1973-1976 BA

University of Louisville Medical Scheol 1976-1980 M.D.

University of Loulsvllle, School of Medicine 1980-183 Radiology,
Diagnostic

Saint Louls University Hospitals 1983-1984 CT/Uitrasound

Vandaerbllt University Medicai Center 1992-1993 Neuroradlology

Advanced Diagnostic imaging, PC, Radiologist July 1, 1888 to present

NOL, LLC d/b/a Premier Radiclogy, Radlologist July 1, 1688 (o present

Medical Center at Bowling Green, KY, Radlologlst June 1, 18684 —June 30, 1088

Williameon Medical Center

Skyline Medical Center

Hendersonville Medical Center

RADS of America, LLC d/b/a Premier Radiology Pain Management Center
Unlversity Medical Center

Horlzon Medical Center

Middle TN Menta! Health Institute

Kindred Hoapital

Baptist Women's Health Center, LLC d/b/a The Center for Spinal Surgery

State License # Issue Date

TN 19205 November 1, 1988
KY 21615 August 6, 1881

AL SP.18 October 24, 2007
CcO 45560 April 24, 2007

WA 00047626 November 14, 2006

American Board of Radiology Radiology, Diagnostic June 1964

American College of Radlology

Radlological Society of North America

American Society of Neuroradlology Senlor Member
American Roentgen Ray Soclety

International Spine Intervention Soclety
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Personal

Present Position:

Previous Positions:

Curriculum Vitae

Name: Marc Gregory Soble, M.D.

Address; 9610 Lineberger Court
Brentwood, TN 37027

Home Phone: (615) 776-7327

Cell Phone:  (615) 653-1023

Email: i

Date of Birth; November 6, 1958

Place of Birth; Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania

Marital Statug: Married

12/02-Present Partner, Advanced Diagnostic Imaging
3024 Business Park Circle
Goodlettsville, Tn.

12/02- Present Partner, Premier Radlology
- Nashville, Tn.

8/01-12/02 Chief Radiologist-Wellscreen Screening CT
Centers-Baltimore, Md.,

7/91-12/02 Partner- Quantum Imaging and Therapeutic
Associates- Lewisberry, Pa.

1/97-12/01 Director and Secretary- Board of Directors-
Quantum Imaging and Therapeutic Associates-
Lewsiberry, Pa.

6/05- 7/07 Chief of Radiology, Skyline Medical Center

3441 Dickerson Pike- Nashville, TN

Prior Post Graduate Education

Fellowship

7/90-6/91 CT/US/MRI
University of Michigan
Department of Radiology
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Residency  7/86-6/90

Internship  7/85-6/86

Education
Medical School 8/81-5/85

Undergraduate 9/77-5/79
9/80-5/81

8/79-5/80

Research Positions
7/79-8/80

University of Michigan Medical Center
University Hospital

1500 E. Medical Center Drive

Ann Arbor, MI 48109

(313) 935-4491

Diagnostic Radiology
Bridgeport Hospital
Department of Radiology
267 Grant Street/Box 50000
Bridgeport, CT 06610

(203) 384-3169

Internal Medicine

. St. Vincent Hospital

Worcester, MA

Georgetown University M.D.

Lafayette College

B.A. Chemistry

Cum Laude ‘

Freshman Chemistry Achievement Award

Georgetown. University
Visiting Student

National Institute of Mental Health

Assisted with development of radioimmunoassay of endogenous apioids in human

plasma.

Assisted with investigation of relationship of endogenous plasma levels to psychiatric

illness.

Original Research:; Investigation of relationship of endogenous opioid plasma levels to

acute ethanol intoxication.

Medical License

™™ 11/02 - Present
KY 11/03 - Present
ME  12/06 - Present

ID 01/07 - Present
GA  02/07 - Present
AL 10/07 - Present
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Specialty Certification

Certified by American Board of Radiology-6/90
Radiology Written Examination 10/89 (Physics 92%/ Diagnostic 80%)

Soclety Memberships

RSNA
ACR
SCCT

Publications and Research

Soble, M., Kaye, A., Guay, R. Rotator Cuff Tear: Clinical Experience with Sonographic
Detection. Radiology 1989: 173; 319-321.

Cardi, P., Soble, M., Heller, C. Atypical Presentation of Testicular Carcinoma. AJR
1988:151; 200.

Naber, D., Soble, M., Pickar, D. Ethanol Increases Opioid Activity in Normal Volunteers.
Pharmacopsychiatria 1981:1:160-191,

Naber, D., Pickar, D, Dione, B., Bowie, D., Ewels, B., Moody, S., Soble, M., Pert, C.
Assay of Endogenous Opiate Receptor Ligands in Human CSF and Plasma, Sub, Alch,
Actions/Misuse. 1980:1; 83-91,

Oral Presentation

Sonographic Detection of Rotator Cuff Tear: Clinical Experience. RSNA, 11/88,
Chicago, IL.

Sonographic Examination of Rotator Cuff, Bridgeport Hospital Scientific Symposium,
3/89, Bridgeport, CT.

Patents

Skills

Device to Aid in Interpretation Mammograms-utility patent 7/99.

General Radiology (CT/US)

MRI (Neuro/MSK/Body/Breast)
Meammography

PET

Computed Tomography Angiography (CTA)
Level 1I- Cardiac CCTA October 2007
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NAME:
ADDRESS;:

Residence:

Business,

PERSONAL INFORMATION:

Birthplace and Date:

Citizenship:

Muarlial Status:

EDUCATION:

Revised December 2007

CURRICULUM VITAE

James Centre King 111, M.D,

4004 Iroquois Avenue
Nashville, TN 37205
Phone: (615) 665-7071

Advanced Diagnostic Imaging
3024 Business Park Circle
Goodlettsvills, TN 37072

Nashville, Tenncssee
December 29, 1960

United States of America
Married

Vanderbilt University

Nashville, Tennesses

B.A. Molecular Biology
(summa cum Jaude)

Vanderbilt University
School of Medicine
Nashvllle, Tennessee
M.D.

209
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011 DEC 15 P 3: 54

James C. King lll, M.D,
Cunlculum Vitae
Page 2

POSTDOCTORAL TRAINING:

Residency: Vanderbllt University ; 1987-1988
School of Medicine
Nashville, Tennesset
(Intemal Medlcine)

Vanderbilt University 1988-1992
School of Medlcine

Nashville, Tennessee

(Diagnostio Radlology)

Chief Resident . 1991-1992

Fellowship: Bowman Gray School of Medicine 1992-1994
Winston-Salem, North Caroflna
(Neuroradlology)

UNIFORMED SERVICE: Tonnessee Alr Natlonal Guard 1988-1993
Flight surgeon, 118th Tactical Hospits!
Highest Rank Attained: Major

Honor graduate 1990
U.S.A.F. Acrospace Medicine
Primary Course
CERTIFICATION: Amecrican Board of Radlology June 1992
Natlonal Board of Medical ExamlIners July 1988
Certificats of Added Qualification 1995 ~ 2005
Neuroradiology 2007 -2017
PROFESSIONAL LICENSURE: Tennessco (¥MD019019) 7/8/1988~  present
Kentucky (#27053) 2/15/1990 - present
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James C. Xing I, M.D.

Curriculum Vitae

Page 8
Colorado (DR-44823) 7/6/2006 - present
Washington (MD00D46988)  8/11/2006~ - present
Georgla (058976) 2/2/2007 - - present
Idsho (M9784) 1/2/2007 - prosent
Malne (017311) 12/6/2006 — present
Loulslana 3i1fsoc8 - present
Alabama \W[3a[ze0r1 - presed
Arkansas Pending
North Carolina (35947) aftafaz - (re(a

EMPLOYMENT; Radiologlat 1994 - present

Excoutive Committee Momber " 2000 - present

Advanoed Diagnostic Imaging, PC
Goodlettsville, Tonnessoe

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS:
Radiological Society of North America 1992 ~ present

American College of Radiology 1992 — present

Amerlcan Roentgen Ray Society 1992 — present

Amoerican Soclety of Neuroradiology 1994 — present
(Senlor member)

Middle Tennessee Radiological Soojety 1994 —2000
President, May 1998 — Aprli 1999

GRANTS!: Berlex Laboratories
February 1, 1993 - June 30, 1994
$36,576
Sublnvestigetor
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James C, King I}, M.D.
Currculum Vitee
Page 4

"The Evaluation of the Safety and Efficacy of Intravenous
Gadopentetate Dimeglumine at 0.3 mmolkg Body Weight in
Adult Patients with Known Primary Caroinoma Who Have a
Deflnite or Suspected Metastatic Lesion(s) of the Central Nervous

System."
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James C, King Iil, M,D.
Curriculum Vitae
Page §

LECTURES, SPEECHES & PRESENTATIONS:

2.

King JC, Mathews VP, Williams DW, Ginsberg LE, Koyes JW Jr, Greven KM, CT and PET
features of large metastatic lymph nodes of the neck. Presented at the 31st Annual Meeting of
the American Soolety of Neuroradiology, Vancouver, British Columbia, May 16, 1993,

King JC. Imaging evaluation of cerebral ischemia, Presented to the North Carolina Society of
Radiologic Technologists, High Point, North Carolina, September 18, 1993,

King JC, Mathews VP, Elster AD, Hamilton CA, Strottmann JM, Cranla] MR imaging using
magnetization transfer contrast: appearance of normal structures before and after gadolinlum.
Presented at the 79th Scientific Assembly and Annual Meeting of the Radiological Society of
North Americe, Chicago, lllinois, December t, 1993,

Mathews VP, King JC, Elster AD, Hamilton CA, Strottmann JM, Magnetization transfer and
high-dose gadolinium {n MR of ecute cercbral Infarction. Presented by VP Mathews at the 79th
Scientiflo Assembly and Annual Meeting of the Radiologlcal Soclety of North America, Chicago,
Winols, Deoember 2, 1993,

Gingberg LE, Stump DA, King JC, Deal DD, Moody DM. In vitro sonographic air emboll
detection: glass versus plastic syringes and implications for neuroanglography, Presented by LE
Ginsberg at the 79th Soientiflc Assembly end Annuel Meeting of tho Radiological Society of
North America, Chicago, lllinois, December 1, 1993,

Ulmer JL, Elster AD, Mathews VP, King JC. The "wide canal sign™ evaluation of a method for
distinguishing degeneratlve and isthmic spondylolisthesis on sagittal MR images. Presented by
JL Uimer at the annual mecting of the American’ Roentgen Ray Society, New Orleans, Louisiana,
April 24 - 29, 1994,

Mathews VP, Ulmer JL, Hamilton CA, King JC, Reboussin DM, Elster AD. Combined effects
of magnetization transfer and gadolinlum on intracranial MR angiography. Presented by VP
Mathews at tho 32nd Annua! Meeting of the American Society of Neuroradiology, Nashville,
Tennessee, May 3 - 7, 1994.
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James C. King i, M.D.
Curriculum Vitae
Page 6

LECTURES, SPEECHES & PRESENTATIONS (continned):

9.

10.

11

12,

Maethews VP, Ulmer JL,, Hamilton CA, Reboussin DM, King JC, Elster AD, Intracranial vessel

visualization with MR angiography: synergism of magnetization transfer and gadolinlum
Presented by VP Mathows at the B0th Sclentific Assembly and Annual Meeting of the

Radiological Society of Nosth America, Chicago, lllinois, November 27 - December 2, 1994,

McLean FM, Mathews VP, King JC, Moody DM. Bilateral hemispheric enhancement of MR
after seizure, Presented by FM McLean at the 80th Scientific Assembly and Annual Meeting of
the Radiological Society of North America, Chicago, Illinols, November 27 - December 2, 1994,

Ulmer JL, Mathews VP, Elster AD, King JC. Lumber spondylolysis: ancillary observations on
MR imaging, Presented by JL. Ulmer at the 80th Scientific Assembly and Annual Meeting of the
Radlological Society of North America, Chlcago, Tllinols, November 27 - December 2, 1994,

Ulmer JL, Mathews VP, Elster AD, King JC. Lumbar spondylolysis without spondylolisthesis:
recognition of isolated posterior element subluxation on sagittal MR imaging. Presented by JL
Ulmer at the 80th Scientiflc Assembly and Annual Mecting of the Radlological Society of North
America, Chicago, llinols, November 27 - December 2, 1994,

King JC. Imaging manifestations of stroke, Presented by JC King at the Nashville Memorial
Hospital Brain Attack Seminar, Nashville, Tennessee April 29, 1995,
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James C. King lll, M.D,
Curriculum Vhae
Page 7

SCIENTIFIC EXHIBITS:

L

Holbrook JT, King JC, Creasy J, Kessler R, Kerner T. Perspective coronal view of the base of
the skull and temporal bone. The 76th Scientific Assembly of the Radiclogical Society of North
America, November 24 - 30, 1990.

Holbrook JT, King JC, Creasy J, Kessler R, Wood R. Perspective coronal CT and MR view of
the base of the skull and temporal bone. The 77th Scientific Assembly of the Radiological
Soclety of North America, December 1 - 6, 1991,

Mathews VP, King JC, Elster AD, Ulmer JL, Hamilton CA. Combined effects of magnetization
transfer and gadolinium in MR imaging. The 79th Scientific Assembly and Annual Meeting of
the Radiological Society of North America, Chicago, Ilinols, November 28 - December 3, 1993.

Received the Cum Laude Award,

Mathews VP, King JC, Elster AD, Ulmer JL, Hamilton CA. Combined effects of magnetization
transfer and gadolinium in MR Imaging, The annual meeting of the American Roentgen Ray
Society, New Orleans, Loulsiana, April 24 - 29, 1994,

Received Gold Medal Award as the best sclentific exhibit,

Mathews VP, King JC, Elster AD, Ulmer JL, Hamilton CA, Combined effects of magnetization
transfer and gadolinium in MR Imaging. The 32nd Annual Mecting of the American Society of
Neuroradiology, Nashville, Tennesses, May 3 - 7, 1994,

Received the Summa Cum Laude Award,

McLean FM, Mathews VP, King JC, Bilateral hemispheric blood-brain barrler breakdown on
cnhanced MR sfler seizure. The 32nd Annual Meeting of the American Socicty of
Neuroradiology, Nashville, Tennessee, May 1994,
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James C. King Ill, M.D,
Curriculum Vitae
Page 8

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Joumal Articles:

1.

6'

7.

Carroll FE, Parker RE, Loyd JE, Holbum GE, King JC, Roos CF, Erikson J, Inexpensive, alr-
driven ventricular asalst or replacement device for use in MR research, Invest Radiol 1990;
25:579-582.

Kwon TK, King JC, Jeanty J. Acrania: review of 14 cases. The Fetus 1991; 1(1).

Elster AD, King JC, Mathews VP, Hamilton CA, Strottmann JM, Cranial MR imaging with
magnetization transfer contrast: appearance of normal structures beforo and after
administretion of gadolinium. Rediology 1993; 189(P):241

Mathews VP, King JC, Elster AD, Hamilton CA. Cercbral infarction; offects of dose and
magnetization transfer saturation at gedolinium-enhanced MR imaging. Radiology 1994;
190:547-552,

Elster AD, King JC, Mathews VP, Hamilton CA. Cranial tissues: appearance at gadolinium-
enhanced and nonenhanced MR imaging with magnetization transfer contrast. Radiology
1994; 190:541-546,

Eister AD, Mathews VP, King JC, Hamllton CA. Improved detectlon of gadolinium
enhancement using magnetization transfer imaging, Neuroimaging Clinics of North America
1994; 4(1):185-192.

Qinsberg LE, Stump DA, King JC, Deal DD, Moody DM, Air embolus risk with glass versus
plastic syringes: in vitro study and implications for neuroangiography. Radiology 1994;
191:813-816.

Ulmer JL, Elster AD, Mathews VP, King JC. The "wide canal sign™: evaluation of a method
for distinguishing degenerative and isthmic spondylolisthesis on sagittal MR images. AJR (in
pross).
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James C, King lfl, M.D,
Currfeulum Vitae
Page 9

Abstracts:

1.

King JC, Mathews VP, Willlams DW, Ginsberg LE, Keyes JW Jr, Greven KM, CT and PET
features of large metastatic lymph nodes of the neck. Proceedings of the 31st Annual Meeting of
the American Soclety of Neuroradiology, Vancouver, 1993 May 16-20:52,

King JC, Mathews VP, Elster AD, Hamilton CA, Strottmann JM. Cranial MR imeging with
magnetization transfer contrast: appearance of normal structures before and after administration
of gadolinium, Radiology 1993; 189(PXSuppl): 241,

Methews VP, King JC, Elster AD, Hamilton CA, Strottmann JM. Combined effects of
magnetization transfer and gadolinlum in MR imaging. Radiology 1993; 18%(P)(Suppl):394,

Mathews VP, King JC, Elster AD, Hamilton CA, Strottmann JM, Magnetization transfer and
high-dos¢ gadollnium in MR imaging of acute cerebral infarction, Radiology 1993;
189(P)(Suppl):294.

Ginsberg LE, Stump DA, Kiug JC, Deal DD, Moody DM, In vitro sonographic alr emboli
detection: glass versus plastic syringes end implications for neuroangiography, Radiology 1993;
189(P)(Suppl):248,

COMMITTEES:

Member, Credentials Committee, Summit Medical Center May 1996 - April 1997
Chairman, Credentials Committee, Surnmit Medical Center May 1997 - April 1998
Chairman, Department of Radiology, Summit Medical Center May 1998 - April 1999

Executive Commlttee, Advanced Diegnostic Imaging, P.C. January 2000 - 2006
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Curriculum Vitae

Himmelfarb, Elllot H (MD)
PERSONAL DATA
Date of Birth 11/20/1942
Brooklyn, NY
Marital Status Married
Cltizenship US(\
Soclal Securlty # 069-34-2255
Residence 802 Franklin Rd
Brentwood, TN 37027
Priomry Office Advanced Dlagnostic Imaging, PC
3024 Business Park Circle
Goodlettsville, TN 37072
Telephone Numbers {615)370-3605 (Home)
(615)851-6033
(615)851-2018
Federal Tax ID 620874168
UPIN B02860
NPI 1710932017
EDUCATION
Undergraduate 09/01/1959 06/30/1962
Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute
Troy, NY
Medlcal 09/01/1962 06/30/1966
State University of New York
Brooklyn, NY
MD
Summa Cum Laude
Internship; 07/01/1966 06/30/1967
Veterans Administration Hospital
Brooklyn, NY
Residency? 07/01/1967 06/30/1969
Kings County Hospital
Brooklyn, NY
Residency: General 07/01/1969 06/30/1970
Brooklyn Cumberland Medical Center
Brooklyn, NY
Teaching Appointments: Instructor, Radlolegy - 7/1/70 to 6/30/71 07/01/1970 06/30/1971
State University of New York
Brooklyn, NY
8/13/2011 Thla report was croated using OneApp Pra ‘Page 1
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Teaching Appointments: Asst Rad Prof - 8/1/73 to 6/30/74
State University of New York
Brooklyn, NY

Teaching Appointments: Instructor, Radlology 7/1/70 to 6/30/71
Kings County Hospital

Brooklyn, NY

MILITARY EXPERIENCE

US Navy LT Commander

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Advanced Dlagnostlc Imaging, PC
3024 Business Park Circle
Goodlettaville, TN 37072

NOL, LLC d/b/a Premier Radiology
28 White Bridge Rd Suite 111
Neshville, TN 37205

Elliot H. Himmelfarb, MD

1234 West Main Street PO Box 681708
Pranklin, TN 370681709

Le Bonheur Children's Hospitel

50 North Dunlap Street
Memphis, TN 38103

City of Memphis Hospital; John Gaston Hospital; now known as "The Med"” Regfonel Medical Center

877 Jefferson Avenue
Memphis, TN 38103

Veterans Administration Medical Center
1030 Jefferson Avenue
Memphls, TN 38104

Nassau University (County) Medioal Center |
2201 Hempstead Tumplke
East Meadow, NY 11554

Long Beach Memorial Hospital
455 E Bay Drive
Long Beach, NY 11561

South Shore Hospltal (used to be St, Johns Eplscopal)

327 Beach 19th Street
Rockaway, NY 11691

HOSPITAL AFFILIATIONS

Afflliate
Skyline Medioal Center
Nashyille, TN

Actlve
Williamson Medical Center

07/01/1970

07/01/1970

10/01/2003

10/01/2003

09/01/1976

03/01/1975

08/01/1973

08/01/1973

01/01/1973

11/01/1971

11/01/1971

03/15/2011

10/15/1976

123171971

06/30/1971

Present

Present

09/30/2003

10/01/1976

10/01/1976
10/01/1976
08/01/1973
08/01/1973

08/01/1973

Present

Prosent

| ensizon This report was creatad using OneApp Pro |

- Page 2,
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Franklin, TN

Provislonal 11/17/2009 Presont
Willlamson Surgery Conter
Franklin, TN
Provisional Consulting 03/06/2011 Present
Hickman Community Hospital
Centerville, TN
Provislonal 02/08/2011 Present
Hendersonville Medical Center
Hendersonville, TN
Assoclate 01/27/2011 Prasent
Horizon Medical Cente
Dlckson, TN '
Provisional Courtesy 10/14/2010 Present
Unlversity Medical Center
Lebanon, TN

MEDICAL LICENSURE
TN 8191 07/09/1973 Present
CA G20172 04/07/1971 Prosant
MS 6828 07/09/1971 Present
NY 099241 07/14/1967 12/31/1988
DEA INFORMATION
Federal AHS631800 09/23/2009 Present
SPECIALTIES
Board Certified
American Board of Radiology Redlology 06/12/1971 Present
ASSOCIATIONS & AFFILIATIONS
AMA Member 08/01/1973
Tonnessee Medical Association Member 08/01/1973
ACR Member
PUBLICATIONS
Artlele
- Sonographlc Diagnosis of Seminal Vesical Cysts 03/01/1986
- Ento Arthrography 01/01/1979
- Radiologic Evaluation of Treatment of Advanced Carcinoma of the Prostate 03/01/1978
- The Redlologle Spectrum of Cardiopulmonasy Amyloldosis Chest 09/0111977

6/13/2011 ’ " This 'report was created using QneA‘pp, Pro . _P,a:ge 8.
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- fllght Colon Adhesions Radlology

07/01/1976

- Pathology Correlatvie Study of Neovasoularily 01/01/1976
- New Thoughts Concerning Xanthogranulomatous Pylelonephritis 09/01/1975
- Myelographic Appreance of Menigo Vascular Lymphoma Involving Cauda Equina 06/01/1975
- Roctngen Features of the Ask- Upmark Kidney 12/01/1974
- Unusual Roentgen Presentations of Multiple Myeloma 12/01/1974
= Unusual Bony Manifestations of Lymphoprollferative Disorder 09/01/1974
- Reduction of Inguinal Heenla "En Masse" 06/01/1974
- The Roentgen Features of Renal Carbuncle 12/01/1972
« Portacaval Shunt with Aterialization of the Hepatlc Portion of the Portal Veln 10/01/1972
- Post Traumatic Bronchopluera! Fistula 09/01/1972
- Renal Pelvic Carcinoma - An Ananglographic reevaluation 01/01/1972
- Measurement of Streaming Potentials of Mammalian Blood Vessels 01/01/1966
- Tennessee Medical Aasoclation Xray of the Mouth
~ The Whirl Sign: A CT finding in Yolvulus of the Large Bowel
Speech
- Studies of Streaming Potentlals in Largo Mammalian Blood Vessels [n Vivo 01/01/1965
511312011 o ' ’ "This relf)ort was cregted using OneApp Pro ok qu_é '
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- Curriculum Vitae

Alan 8. Ericksen, M.D.
PERSONAL DATA
Date of Birth 08/11/1958
Decatur, IL
Marital Stafus Marrled
Cidzenship USA
Soclal Securlty # 146-58-2488
Residence 1836 Old Natchez Trace
Franklin, TN 37069
Primary Office Advanced Diagnostic Imeging, PC
3024 Business Park Clrole
CGoodlettsvlile, TN 37072
Telephone Numbers (615)599-2524 (Home)

Business Office

Telephone Numbers

Federal Tax ID
UPIN
NPI

EDUCATION

Undergraduate
Houghton College
Houghton, NY

BS

Medical

(615)851-6033
(615)851-2018

Advanced Diagnostic maging, PC
3024 Business Park Circle
Qoodlettsville, TN 37072

(615)851-6033 (Offlce)
(615)851-2018 (Pax)
62-0874165

F37821

1164477154

University of Medicine & Dentistry of New Jersey

Newark, NJ
MD

Residency
Robert Wood Johnson Medical School
Plscataway, NJ

Residency
Robert Wood Jobnson Medlce! School
Piscataway, NJ ’

Fellowshlp
Robert Wood Johnson Medical School

Plscataway, NJ

Fellowship
Robert Wood Johnson Medical School
Piscataway, NJ ‘

08/01/1980

07/01/1984

07/01/1988

07/01/1987

07/01/1988

05/31/1980

05/23/1984

06/30/1987

06/30/1992

06/30/1988

06/30/1992

—

8/9/2011 @ .
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EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

NOL, LLC d/t/a Premler Radiology
28 White Bridge Rd Suite 111
Nashville, TN 37205

Advanced Diagnostic Imaging
3024 Buslneas Park Clrcle
Goodlettsville, TN 37072

Alan S, Ericksen, MD (Locum Tenens)
1936 Old Natchez Trace
Franklin, TN 37069

Diagnostic Imaging, Inc
510 Recovery Rd Suite 200
Nashville, TN 37211

Radiology Assoclates of Bennington, Inc

Southwestern VT Medical Center 100 Hospital Drive

Bennington, VT 05201
HOSPITAL AFFILIATIONS

Southern Hllls Medical Center
Nashville, TN

Aotlve
Skylino Medlcal Center
Neashvlile, TN

Stone Crest Medical Center
Smyrna, TN

SouthWestern Vermont Medical Center
Bennington, VT

Mary McClellan Hospital
Cambridge, NY

Assoclate
Williamson Medical Center
Franklin, TN

Assoolate

Summit Medical Ceonter
Hermitago, TN

Actlve

Hendersonville Medical Center
Hendersonville, TN

Courtesy
Unlversity Medical Center
Lebanon, TN

Asgociate
Horizon Medical Center
Dickson, TN

Active

Middle Tennesseo Mental Health Institute

Nashville, TN

10/01/2005

10/01/2005

05/01/2005

04/01/2003

07/01/1992

04/01/2003

01/17/2006

12/01/2003

07/01/1992

12/01/1997

02/01/2007

04/11/2006

01/10/2006

06/13/2007

10/23/2007

03/14/2008

= Present

< Pregent

- 09/30/2005

- 04/30/2005

« 03/31/2003

- 04/30/2005

= Present

~ 04/30/2005

- 03/31/2003

- 03/31/2003

- Present

- 06/12/2007

- Present

- Present

- Present

~ Prosent

g/e/200 - ¢,
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Consuliing 05/02/2008 - Present
Kindred Hoapital Nashvllle
Nashville, TN
MEDICAL LICENSURE
™ 37124 12/16/2002 - Present
NJ 25MAD4742500 01/09/1986 - 06/30/1993
NY 208372 09722/1997 - 07/31/2003
vT 042-0008545 06/17/1992 - 11/30/2004
DEA INFORMATION
Federal BE399473! 08/11/2003 - Presont
SPECIALTIES
Hoard Certified
Amerlcan Board of Radiology Radlology, Diagnostic 11/09/1992
ASSOCIATIONS & AFFILIATIONS
ACR
RSNA
Nationsl Honor Saciety
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Home Address

Business Office

Education

Michael C. Cian, M.D. 7z, o
P 3

111 Westhampton Place 3 4
Nashvllle, TN 37205

(615) 208-8714

cianmg@comcast.net

Advancad Dlagnostic Imaging, PC

3024 Business Park Circle

Goodlettsville, TN 37072

Phone (615) 851-8033; Fax (815) 851-2018

Institution Dates Degree

Queens University 1088-1091 Bachelor of Science
New York Medical College 1892-1996 M.D.

Vanderbilt University 1866-2000 Diagnostic Radiology
UNG at Chapsl Hill 2000-2001 Musculoskeletal Radlology

Academic Honors and Awards

Work Experlence

Facility Afflliations

License &
Reglstrations

Speclaitios
Soclety Memberships

Dlagnostic Radiology Oral Boards, May 17, 2000 - Passed
Dilagnostic Radiology Written Boards, September 16/17 1960 - Passed
percentile rank 80%
Dlagnostic Radiology Physics Boards, September 17, 1909
percentile rank 89%

Advanced Dlagnostic imaging, Musculoskeletal Radiologist, June 20, 2001
to present

NOL, LLC d/b/a Premier Radlology, Musculoskeletal Radlologlst, June 20, 2001
to present; Director of Hermitage Imaging Center location.

Skyline Medical Center

Hendergonville Medical Centar

Williamson County Medical Center

RADS of America, LLC d/b/a Premier Radlology Pain Management Center
Unliversity Medical Center

Horizon Medical Center

Middle TN Mental Health Institute

Kindred Hospltal

Baptist Women’s Health Center, LLC d/b/a The Center for Spinatl Surgery

State License # Issue Date

TN 30461 June 19, 1998

KY 366881 December 13, 2001

AL 284585 October 29, 2007

Cco 45289 February 1, 2007

WA 00047287 Novembaer 6, 2006

GA 85085 September 2, 2010

Americen Board of Radlology Radiology, Diagnostic May 2000

American College of Radiology
Sodlety of Skeletal Radiology
Radlological Soclety of North America.
American Medical Association
Amaerican Joumal of Rediology
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ADDRE$S:

BUSINESS ADDRESS:

HOSPITAL ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE:

CURRICULUM VITAE
MICHAEL 3: LEVITY, MD

6401 Worghester Drive
Nashville, Tchnessee 37221:3709

28 White Bridge Rd
Suite 110
Nashvitle , TN 37205

Naghvitle Memoiia) Hospital
612 West Due West Avenue
Madlgon, TN 37115

(home) {615)377-3568
(office) (615)356-1123
(hospital) (615)865-3463

CERTIFICATION s&nd LICENSURE:

Diplaiate, National Board of Medical Exasniners, July
1987

Board Certifiéd in Diagriostic Radioclogy, June 1981

Licanised in Kentucky, Teanessgee aivd Georgia {inactive)

EDUCATION: MDD Emory University Schaol of Medicine, 1977
B.S. Emory University, 1973
INTERNSHIP and RESIDENCY:

Internship, Radiology Categorical Diversified,
Grady Memorial Hospital, Atlanta, Géorgie, 1977-1978

Diagnostic Radiology Residency, Ermory University
Affitiated Hospitals, Atlanta, Qeorgia. 1978-198)

Chiel Resident, Diagnostic Radiology, Emory University
Affiliated Hogpitals, Atlante, Georgia, 1980-1981
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PRACTICE EXPERIENCE!

Fellowship, Interventional Radiology, Emory University
Affiliated Hospita]s 1981.1932

Feltowship, Neuroradiology, Vanderbilt University
Medical Cénter 19911992

Active Staff, Nashville Memorial Flospitel, Madison,
Tennessee 3!!991-prescm

Park View Madical Center, Nashville, Tennessee, active
stoff 11/11/1982:3/1991

West Side Hospital, Nashville, Tennesses, active staff
11/11/1982-31998°7]

Tennessea Christisn Medical Canter, Madison, ‘l‘ennessee
active staff 11/11/1982-3/199)

Highland Hospital, Portland, Terinesses, active stalf
1/11986-12/31/1987

Private CT office, Piestonsburg, Kentucky, locumt tensns
for KRON, Inc. 9/1982

Griffin - Spalding Hosptizl, Griffin, Georgie, locum
teneéns 8/1982

Tapner Memorial Hospfla!, Carrollton, Georgia, locumt
Tenéns 7/1982

Piedmont Hospital, Atlants; Georgia, courtesy staff
198)-1982

Parkway Regional Hospital, Lith{a Springs, Georgis,
courtesy staff 1981.1982

Union County Hospital, Blairsvills, Georgia, locum -
fsgens 1981
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MEMBERSHIPS: American College of Radiology
Tennessec Medical Assotiation
Davidson County Medical Society
Nashville Academy of Medicine
Radiological Society of North America

Personal and Professional references furnished upon request.
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Joe M MacCurdy Jr, MD
PERSONAL
DATA
Date of Birth 05/11/1964
Baton Rouge, LA
Marital Status Married
Citizenship USA
Residence 211 Gun ClubRd
Nashville, TN 37205
Advanced Diagnostic Imaging
Primary Office 3024 Business Park Circle
Goodlettsville, TN 37072
Telephone Numbers (615) 356-2555(Home)
(615) 851-6033(Office)
(615) 851-2018(Fax)
UPIN F34128
EDUCATION
Undergraduate
Rhodes College
Memphis, TN
BS
Medical School
Louisiana State University, School of Medicine
New Orleans, LA -
MD
Internship
Bowman Gray School of Medicine
Winston-Salem, NC
Residency
Medical College of Georgia
Augusta, GA
Fellowship

University of Pittsburgh Medical Center
Pittsburgh, PA

Curriculum Vitae

08/31/1982
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- 05/31/1986

- 06/30/1991

Internal Medicine

- 06/30/1995

Radiology, Diagnostic

07/01/1995 - 06/30/1996

Radiology, Interventional



EMPLOYMENT

HISTORY

Advanced Diagnostic Imaging
3024 Business Park Circle
Goodlettsville, TN 37072
Premier Radiclogy

28 White Bridge Rd Suite 111
Nashville, TN 37205

Medical College of Georgia
1120 15th Street

Augusta, GA 30912

North Carolina Baptist Hospital
Medical Center Blvd
Winston-Salem, NC 25157

SPECIALTIES

oard fied
American Board of Radiology

ASSOCIATIONS &
AFFILIATIONS

07/08/1996

07/08/1996

07/01/1991

06/01/1990

Radiology, Diagnostic

Society of Cardiovascular and Interventional Rediology

American College of Radiology
American Roentgen Ray Sooiety
RSNA
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06/30/1995
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01/01/1995
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PATIENT TRANSFER AGREEMENT

THIS PATIENT TRANSFER AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made as of April 1,
2011, by and between SAINT THOMAS HEALTH SERVICES (“STHS”), a not-for-profit
Tennessee corporation, and MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC (“Transferor”).

RECITALS:

A. Transferor, and its subsidiaries, operates a number of health care entities located
in Middle Tennessee (“Facilities” or singularly, a “Facility™).

B. STHS is a health gystem which includes four hospital campuses serving the
Middle Tennessee area: Baptist Hospital, St. Thomas Hospital, Middle Tennessee Medical
Center, and Hickman Community Hospital.

C. The parties desire to assure a continuity of care and appropriate medical treatment
for the needs of each patient in their respective facilities, and have determined that, in the interest
of patient care, the parties should enter into an agreement to provide for the transfer of patients
from certain of Transferor’s facilities to STHS hospitals on the terms and conditions set forth
herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained and other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
the parties hereto agree as follows.

1. Term and Termination.

(a) The Agreement shall have a two (2) year term commencing on April 1,
2011 (the “Initial Term”). Upon the expiration of the Initial Term, this Agreement shall
automatically renew for up to three additional one-year renewal terms (“Renewal Term™) unless
either party provides written notice of its intent not to renew to the other party at least sixty (60)
days prior to the end of the then current term (the Initial Term and any Renewal Terms are
collectively referred to herein as the “Term”).

®) This Agreement may be terminated by either party:
@) upon ninety (90) days prior written notice to the other party, or

(ii)  immediately should the other party fail to maintain the licenses,
certifications or accreditations, including Medicare certification,
required to operate its facility as it is currently being operated.

2. Transfer.

(@) Transferor’s Facilities to which this Agreement is applicable, and those
STHS hospitals to which Transferor’s patients may be ftransferred (the “Hospital” or
“Hospitals™), are set forth on Exhibit A which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference.

2571757.3
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(b) Upon such time that a patient’s physician determines that the patient needs
to be transferred from a Transferor Facility to a Hospital pursuant to Transferor’s physician’s
order, Hospital agrees to admit the patient as promptly as possible and provide healthcare
services as necessary, provided all conditions of eligibility are met. Transferor agrees to send the
following with each patient at the time of transfer, or as soon thereafter as possible in emergency
situations:

» an abstract of pertinent medical and other information necessary to
continue the patient’s treatment without interruption; and

(ii)  essential identifying and administrative information.
© Transferor shall also perform the following:
) notify Hospital of the impending transfer;

(i)  receive confirmation that Hospital can accept the patient, and that a
Hospital medical staff physician has done so;

(iil)  obtain patient’s consent to the transfer; and

(iv)  arrange for the transportation of the patient, including mode of
transportation and the provision of one or more health care
practitioners as necessary.

3. Relationship of the Parties.

(a) Nothing in this Agreement shall in any way affect the autonomy of either
party. Each party shall have exclusive control of its management, assets and affairs. Neither
party assumes any liability for the debts or obligations of the other party.

(b) Neither party shall be responsible, financially or otherwise, for the care
and treatment of any patient while that patient is admitted to, -or is under the care of, the other
party’s facility.

© Each party may contract or affiliate with other facilities during the term of
this Agreement,

4, EMTALA. The parties agree that any patient transfers made pursuant to this
Agreement shall be in compliance with 42 U.S.C. § 1395dd, et seq. and any amendments thereto
("EMTALA"), EMTALA's implementing regulations, such other requirements as may be
imposed by the Secretary of Health and Human Services, and any other applicable Federal or
State patient transfer laws.

5. Indemnification. Transferor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold STHS, its
officers, trustees, employees and agents harmless, to the extent permitted by applicable law, from
or against any loss, injury, damage or liability incurred by reason of any act or failure to act by

25717573 -2-
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Transferor, its officers, employees or agents in connection with the performance of this
Agreement.

STHS agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Transferor, its officers, employees and
agents harmless, to the extent permitted by applicable law, from or against any loss, injury,
damages or liability incurred by reason of any act or failure to act by STHS, its officers, trustees,
employees and agents in connection with the performance of this Agreement.

6. Compliance. In compliance with federal law, including the provisions of Title IX
of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973,
the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 and 1975 and the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 each party hereto will not
discriminate on the basis of race, sex, religion, color, national or ethnic origin, age, disability, or
military service, AIDS and AIDS related conditions in its administration of its policies, including
admissions policies, employment, or program activities.

7. Record Availability. Transferor agrees that, until the expiration of four (4) years
after the furnishing of any goods and services pursuant to this Agreement, it will make available,
upon written request of the Secretary of Health and Human Services or the Comptroller General
of the United States or any of their duly authorized representatives, copies of this Agreement and
any books, documents, records and other data of Transferor that are necessary to certify the
nature and extent of the costs incurred by STHS in purchasing such goods and services. If
Transferor carries out any of its duties under this Agreement through a subcontract with a related
organization involving a value or cost of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) or more over a twelve-
month period, Transferor will cause such subcontract to contain a clause to the effect that, until
the expiration of four (4) years after the furnishing of any good or service pursuant to said
contract, the related organization will make available upon written request of the Secretary of
Health and Human Services or the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly
authorized representatives, copies of this Agreement and any books, documents, records and
other data of said related organization that are necessary to certify the nature and extent of costs
incurred by Transferor for such goods or services. Transferor shall give STHS notice
immediately upon receipt of any request from the Secretary of Health and Human Services or the
Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized representatives for
disclosure of such information.

Transferor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold STHS harmless from and against any
loss, liability, judgment, penalty, fine, damages (including punitive and/or compounded
damages), costs (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses) suffered or incurred by
STHS as a result of, in connection with, or arising from Transferor 's failure to comply with this
Section 7.

8. Exclusion from Federal Health Care Programs. Transferor represents and

warrants that it has not been nor is it about to be excluded from participation in any Federal
Healthcare Program. Transferor agrees to notify STHS within one (1) business day of
Transferor's receipt of a notice of intent to exclude or actual notice of exclusion from any such
program. The listing of Transferor or any Transferor-owned subsidiary on the Office of
Inspector General’s exclusion list (OIG website) or the General Services Administration’s Lists

2571757.3 -3 -
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of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and Nonprocurement Programs (GSA website)
for excluded individuals and entities shall constitute “exclusion” for purposes of this paragraph.
In the event that Transferor is excluded from any Federal Healthcare Program, this Agreement
shall immediately terminate. For the purposes of this paragraph, the term “Federal Healthcare
Program” means the Medicare program, the Medicaid program, the Maternal and Child Health
Services Block Grant program, the Block Grants for State for Social Services program, any state
Children’s Health Insurance program, or any similar program. Further, Transferor agrees to
indemnify and hold STHS harmless from and against any loss, liability, judgment, penalty, fine,
damages (including punitive and/or compounded damages), costs (including reasonable
attorneys' fees and expenses) incurred by STHS as a result of Transferor's failure to notify STHS
of its exclusion from any Federal Healthcare Program.

9 Corporate Compliance. STHS has in place a Corporate Responsibility Plan,
which has as its goal to ensure that STHS complies with federal, state and local laws and
regulations. The plan focuses on risk management, the promotion of good corporate citizenship,
including a commitment to uphold & high standard of ethical and legal business practices, and the
prevention of misconduct.  Transferor acknowledges STHS® commitment to corporate
responsibility. Transferor agrees to conduct its business transactions with STHS in accordance
with the principles of good corporate citizenship and a high standard of ethical and legal business
practices.

10. Miscellaneous.

(a) The parties agree to provide each other with information regarding the
resources each has available and the type of patients or health conditions that each is able to
accept.

® Neither party shall use the name of the other in any promotional or
advertising material unless the other party has been given the opportunity to review the material
and prior written approval for the material and its use has been obtained.

© This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, whether written or oral,
between the parties with respect to its subject matter and constitutes a complete and exclusive
statement of the terms of the agreement between the parties with respect to its subject matter.
This Agreement may not be amended, supplemented, or otherwise modified except by a written
agreement executed by the party to be charged with the amendment.

G)) If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable by any
court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force
and effect. Any provision of this Agreement held invalid or unenforceable only in part or degree
will remain in full force and effect to the extent not held invalid or unenforceable.

(e) This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws and in the courts of the State of Tennessee.

63) STHS may assign this Agreement, without the consent of Transferor, to an
entity that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with,
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STHS. For the purposes of this paragraph, the terms "control" means, with respect to a person,
the authority, directly or indirectly, to (i) act as controlling member, sharcholder or partner or
such person, (ii) appoint, elect or approve at least a majority of the individual members,
shareholders or partners of such person, or (iii) appoint, elect or approve at least a majority of the
governing body of such person. Except as set forth above, neither party may assign this
Agreement or any obligation hereunder without first obtaining the written consent of the other
party. Any attempted delegation or assigning in violation of this paragraph shall be null and
void. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the
parties and their respective heirs, administrators, successors and permitted assigns. Nothing
expressed or referred to in this Agreement will be construed to give any person other than the
parties to this Agreement any legal or equitable right, remedy or clain1 under or with respect to
this Agreement or any provision of this Agreement, except such rights as shall inure to a
successor or permitted assignee pursuant to this paragraph.

(2 In the event that any legal action or other proceedings, including
arbitration, is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement or because of an alleged dispute of
breach, the prevailing party shall be awarded its costs of suit and reasonable attorney’s fees.

(h) All notices, consents, waivers and other commmunications required or
permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed given to a party when (a)
delivered to the appropriate address by hand or by nationally recognized overnight courier
service (costs prepaid); or (b) received or rejected by the addressee, if sent by certified mail,
return receipt requested, in each case to the following addresses and marked to the attention of
the person (by name or title) designated below (or to such other address or person as a party may
designate by notice to the other parties):

If to STHS: Saint Thomas Health Services
102 Woodmont Boulevard, Suite 700
Nashville, Tennessee 37205
Attn: Chief Administrative Officer

With a copy to: Saint Thomas Health Services
102 Woodmont Blvd., Suite 700
Nashville, TN 37205
Attn: Contract Administrator

If to Transferor: Middle Tennessee Imaging
102 Woodmont Boulevard, Suite 700
Nashville, Tennessee 37205
Attn: Chief Executive Officer

i) The headings of the various sections of this Agreement are inserted merely
for convenience and do not expressly or by implication limit, define or extend the specific terms
of the sections so designated. Any rule of construction or interpretation otherwise requiring this
Agreement to be construed or interpreted against any party shall not apply to any construction or
interpretation hereof.
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1)) This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which will be deemed to be an original copy of this Agreement and all of which, when taken
together, will be deemed to constitute one and the same agreement. The exchange of copies of
this Agreement and of signature pages by facsimile transmission shall constitute effective
execution and delivery of this Agreement as to the parties and may be used in lieu of the original
Agreement for all purposes. Signatures of the parties transmitted by facsimile shall be deemed to

be their original signatures for all purposes.

(Signature page to follow.)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Patient Transfer Agreement
as of the date first above written.

STHS:

SAINT THOMAS HEALTH SERVICES

TRANSFEROR:

MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC

e M
Name%&wﬂ& Guladne po

Title: Cresickosst
2571757.3 -7
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EXHIBIT A

FACILITIES

Biolmaging Charlotte/Premier Radiology
1800 Charlotte Avenue
Nashville, Tennessee 37203

Biolmaging Cool Springs/Premier Radiology
3310 Aspen Grove Drive, Suite 101
Franklin, Tennessee 37067

Biolmaging Edmondson Pike/Premier Radiology
4928 Edmondson Pike, Suite 204
Nashville; Tennessee 37211

Premier Radiology Nashville
28 White Bridge Pike, Suite 111
Nashville, Tennessee 37205

Premier Radiology Hermitage
5045 Old Hickory Boulevard, Suite 100
Hermitage, Tennessee 37076

Middle Tennessee Imaging
741 President Place, Suite 100
Smyrna, Tennessee 37167

Murfreesboro Diagnostic Imaging
1020 Highland Avenue, Suite A
Murfreesboro, Tennessee 37130

25717573 -8 -
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RECEIVING HOSPITAL

Baptist Hospital

St. Thomas Hospital

St. Thomas Hospital

St. Thomas Hospital

Baptist Hospital

Middle Tennessee Medical Center

Middle Tennessee Medical Center



AMENDMENT TO THE PATIENT
TRANSFER AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO PATIENT TRANSFER AGREEMENT ("Amendment") is made
as of December 18, 2014, by and between SAINT THOMAS HEALTH ("STH"), a not-for- profit
Tennessee corporation, and MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC ("Transferor").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the parties entered into that certain Patient Transfer Agreement that commenced on
April 1, 2011 (the "Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the parties have decided to execute an Amendment to the Agreement to subject
the Agreement to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the receipt
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, it is agreed as follows:;

1. Exhibit A. Exhibit A to the Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following
Facility and corresponding Receiving Hospital:
FACILITIES: RECEIVING HOSPITAL:

Premier Radiology Clarksville St. Thomas Midtown Hospital
980 Professional Park Dr., STE E
Clarksville, TN 37040

2. Reaffirmation. Any and all provisions not amended herein shall remain in full force and
effect.

[Signature page to follow.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date first set forth
above,
STHS:
SAINT THOMAS HEALTH
By:

Name:
Title:

TRANSFEROR:

MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC

By: - %/
Nime: JCILGA Gilevdine
Title: (=,
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Attachment C
Need -4

Service Area TennCare Population
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Service Area TennCare Population

December 2015
TennCare 2015

Service Area Counties Enrollees Population % Enrolled
Houston County 2,074 8,191 25.3%
Montgomery County 33,797 187,213 18.1%
Robertson County 13,973 68,004 20.5%
Stewart County 3,030 13,401 22.6%
Total Service Area 52,874 276,809 19.1%
Tennessee 1,489,597 6,600,299 22.6%

Sources: TennCare Division of Health Care Finance & Administration:
Tenncare Enroliment Report for December 2015; Nielsen
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Health Care Providers that Utilize MRI's - Trend
Medical Equipment Registry - 8/10/2015

Procedures
Provider Percent

County Type Provider 2012 2013 2014 Changed
Anderson HOSP Methodist Medical Center - Oak Ridge 2) 6467 2) 6896 @ 6361 -1.64%
Anderson PO OrthoTennessee Imaging Oak Ridge 1) 581 1) 514 ) 406 -30.12%
Anderson PO Tennessee Orthopaedic Clinics - Oak Ridge (1) 1078 (1) 1066 1) 1149 6.59%
Bedford HOSP Heritage Medical Center (1) 1439 %) 1131 (1) 1148 -20.22%

Heritage Medical Center/Advanced Orthopedics
Bedford H-Imaging (Stopped 2012) (1 1 0) 0 ) 0 -100.00%
Benton HOSP Camden General Hospital (1-1hveek) 352 (1-1/week) 345 (1-1/week) 252 -28.41%
Blount HOSP Blount Memorial Hospital (1 5257 M 6909 (1 5768 9.72%

Blount Memorial Springbrook Diagnostic Center (Unit
Blount HODC moved to East TN Medical Group in 2014) 1) 2493 1) 707 {0) 0 -100.00%
Blount PO East Tennessee Medical Group (0) 0 (0) 0 m 907 0.00%
Blount PO OrthoTennessee Imaging/Maryville Orthopaedic 1) 855 (1) 741 ) 703 -17.78%
Bradley PO Cleveland Imaging (1) 2769 (1) 3509 (N 3874 39.91%
Bradley HOSP Skyridge Medical Center 1) 2499 1) 2302 (1) 2261 -9.52%
Bradley HOSP Skyridge Medical Center - Westside ) 2493 ) 1818 2) 1370 -45.05%
Campbell HOSP Jellico Community Hospital 1) 317 1) 288 (1) 246 -22.40%
Campbell HOSP Lafollette Medical Center (1-5/week) 1285 (1-5/week) 1225 (1-5/week) 1527 18.83%
Cannon HOSP St. Thomas Stones River Hospital 1) 451 (1) 379 (1) 286 -36.59%
Carroll HOSP Baptist Memorial Hospital - Huntingdon (1 986 (1 909 (1) 680 -31.03%
Carroll oDC McKenzie Medical Center 1) 2279 1) 1681 1) 2069 -9.21%
Carroll HOSP McKenzie Regional Hospital (1-1/week) 79 (1-1/week) 25 (1-1/week) 57 -27.85%
Carter HOSP Sycamore Shoals Hospital 1) 2014 1) 1719 ) 1880 -6.65%
Cheatham HOSP TriStar Ashland City Medical Center (1-2/week) 375 (1-2/week) 303 (1-2/week) 298 -20.53%
Chester PO Frix Jennings Clinic, PC 1-4 halfiweek} 637 1-4 halfiweek) 715 {14 halfiweek) 780 22.45%
Claiborne HOSP Claiborne Medical Center (1) 1642 0] 1436 6 1302 -20.71%
Cocke HOSP Newport Medical Center 1) 1255 1) 1274 1) 1300 3.59%
Coffee HOSP Harton Regional Medical Center (John W.) 1 2746 (1) 2538 (1) 2293 -16.50%

Unity Medical Center (fka Medical Center of
Coffee HOSP Manchester) 1) 705 1) 632 1) 734 411%

Unity Medical Center (fka United Regional Medical
Coffee HOSP Center) M 2107 (1) 1615 (M 1566 -25.68%
Cumberland HOSP Cumberland Medical Center, Inc. ) 4979 ) 4708 2) 4994 0.30%
Davidson oDC Belie Meade Imaging 1) 2817 (1) 3085 (1) 2834 0.60%

Center for Inflammatory Disease (Service stopped in
Davidson PO 2013) ") 63 1) 19 (0) 0 -100.00%
Davidson PO Elite Sports Medicine & Orthopaedic Center 2 4781 (2) 4771 2) 5701 19.24%
Davidson PO Heritage Medical Associates - Murphy Avenue (1-Shared) 1831 (1-Shared) 1965 (1-Shared}) 1561 -14.75%
Davidson oDC Hillsboro Imaging (1) 3968 ) 4252 (1) 4359 9.85%
Davidson oDC Millennium MRI, LLC (1-Shared) 366 (1-Shared) 451 (1-Shared) 455 24.32%
Davidson PO Nashville Bone and Joint (1-Shared) 953 (1-Shared) 939 (1-Shared) 945 -0.84%
Davidson HOSP Nashville General Hospital (1) 1481 (1) 1775 ) 1725 16.48%
Davidson PO Neurological Surgeons, PC Imaging Office (1 4305 (1) 4891 1 5012 16.42%
Davidson oDC Next Generation Imaging, LLC (1-Shared) 649 (1-Shared) 859 (1-Shared) 826 27.27%
Davidson H-Imaging One Hundred Oaks Breast Center 1) 679 (1) 682 1) 728 7.22%
Davidson oDC One Hundred Oaks Imaging 2) 5226 ) 5430 2) 5613 7.41%
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Health Care Providers that Utilize MRI's - Trend
Medical Equipment Registry - 8/10/2015

Procedures
Provider Percent

County Type Provider 2012 2013 2014 Changed

Davidson oDC Qutpatient Diagnostic Center of Nashville 2) 4878 2) 5044 2) 5268 8.00%
Davidson PO Pain Management Group, PC 1) 2451 1) 2712 1) 2306 -5.92%
Davidson OoDC Premier Orthopeadics and Sports Medicine 2) 5214 (2) 4471 2) 4930 -5.45%
Davidson oDC Premier Radiology Belle Meade 3) 7686 (3) 6929 3) 5656 -26.41%
Davidson OoDC Premier Radiology Brentwood (1-5iweek) 1058 (1) 1356 1) 2723 157.37%
Davidson oDC Premier Radiology Hermitage 2) 4943 2) 4603 2) 4980 0.75%
Davidson oDC Premier Radiology Midtown (0) 0 2) 1351 2) 3054 126.05%
Davidson oDC Premier Radiology Nashville (1) 2376 I 2072 1) 1872 -21.21%
Davidson oDC Premier Radiology St. Thomas West (0) 0 (0) 0 (1) 1910 0.00%
Davidson oDC Specialty MRI (1-Shared) 1467 (1-Shared) 1158 (1-Shared) 792 -46.01%
Davidson oDC St. Thomas Heart (Stopped 2013) %) 1609 (0) 0 (0) 0 -100.00%
Davidson HOSP St. Thomas Midtown Hospital 3) 4752 2) 3249 1) 2856 -39.90%
Davidson HOSP St. Thomas West Hospital 4) 5631 2) 5464 2) 4596 -18.38%
Davidson PO Tennessee Oncology, PET Services (1 279 (1) 1168 1) 1422 409.68%
Davidson PO Tennessee Orthopaedic Alliance Imaging (3) 7163 (3) 6325 (3) 7388 3.14%
Davidson HOSP TriStar Centennial Medical Center 3) 7996 3) 8840 3) 9037 13.02%
Davidson HOSP TriStar Skyline Medical Center V)] 7930 () 8234 @ 7611 -4.02%
Davidson HOSP TriStar Southem Hills Medical Center 1) 2659 ™) 2740 () 2642 -0.64%
Davidson HOSP TriStar Summit Medical Center Q) 4008 ) 4020 ) 4091 2.07%
Davidson HODC TriStar Summit Medical Center - ODC (1-Shared) 1918 (1-Shared) 2249 (1-Shared) 2099 9.44%
Davidson HOSP Vanderbilt University Hospital (6) 28706 (6) 29507 (6) 29381 2.35%
Decatur HOSP Decatur County General Hospital (1-1week) 360 (1-1/week) 451 (1-1/week) 423 17.50%
DeKalb HOSP St. Thomas DeKalb Hospital (1) 301 (1) 784 €] 841 -6.66%
Dickson PO Dickson Medical Associates South ) 1658 (1) 1994 1) 2409 45.30%
Dickson HODC Natchez Imaging Center 1 427 (1) 484 ) 525 22.95%
Dickson HOSP TriStar Horizon Medical Center (1) 1287 (1) 1590 1) 1797 39.63%
Dyer HOSP Dyersburg Regional Medical Center (1) 2230 (1) 1852 &) 2271 1.84%

Methodist Healthcare-Fayette Hospital (Closed January
Fayette HOSP 2015) (1-1/week) 271 (1-1/week) 204 (1-1/week) 207 -23.62%
Fentress obC Fentress Health Systems 1) 2191 ) 1991 ) 1813 -17.25%
Southern Tennessee Regional Health System -

Franklin HOSP Winchester 1) 2658 %) 2220 (1) 1994 -24.98%
Franklin oDC Summit Open MR, Inc. (1 723 (1) 623 1) 567 -21.58%
Giles HOSP Southern Tennessee Regional Health System - Pulaski (1) 581 (1) 810 (1) 790 35.97%
Greene HOSP Laughlin Memorial Hospital, Inc. 2 3379 2) 3159 2) 3248 -3.88%
Greene HOSP Takoma Regional Hospital ) 1635 ) 1610 (1) 2224 36.02%
Hamblen PO Healthstar Physicians, PC 2) 2793 2) 3217 2) 3421 22.48%
Hamblen HOSP Lakeway Regional Hospital (1) 2288 (1) 2625 1) 1638 -28.41%
Hamblen HOSP Morristown-Hamblen Hospital @ 4560 2) 4211 @) 4057 -11.03%
Hamilton PO Chattanooga Bone & Joint Surgeons, PC ) 1021 (1) 841 (1) 350 -65.72%
Hamilton oDC Chattanooga Imaging Downtown 2) 2035 2) 1540 2) 1935 4.91%
Hamilton RPO Chattanooga Imaging East 1) 2850 4] 2822 1) 2869 0.67%
Hamilton RPO Chattanooga Imaging Hixson 1) 2230 %) 2386 1 2368 6.19%
Hamilton PO Chattanooga Orthopaedic Group PC 1) 5332 ) 5340 1) 7004 31.36%
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Health Care Providers that Utilize MRI's - Trend
Medical Equipment Registry - 8/10/2015

Procedures

Provider Percent

County Type Provider 2012 2013 2014 Changed
Shelby HOSP Baptist Memorial Hospital - Memphis 3) 11913 (3) 11280 3) 10701 -10.17%
Shelby HOSP Baptist Memorial Hospital for Women (0) 0 0 72 M 251 248.61%
Shelby HOSP Baptist Rehabilitation - Germantown 1) 1596 (1) 1212 1) 1107 -30.64%
Shelby H-Imaging Baptist Rehabilitation Germantown - Briarcrest MRI (1-Shared) 650 (1-Shared) 613 (1-Shared) 492 -24.31%
Shelby PO Campbell Clinic - Union 1) 2155 Q) 2539 1) 2738 27.05%
Shelby PO Campbell Clinic Inc 1 6321 Q) 5547 ) 5923 -6.30%
Shelby HOSP Delta Medical Center 1) 787 (1) 674 1) 983 24 .90%
Shelby RPO Diagnostic Imaging PC - Memphis m 6538 ) 6737 (1) 6505 -0.50%
Shelby HOSP LeBonheur Children's Medical Center 3) 5357 3) 5333 3) 5452 1.77%
Shelby HOSP Methodist Healthcare-Germantown Hospital 2) 6557 ) 6892 2) 6904 5.29%
Shelby HOSP Methodist Healthcare-North Hospital ) 6092 73] 6003 ) 6415 5.30%
Shelby HOSP Methodist Healthcare-South Hospital (1 4139 0! 4090 (M 3487 -15.75%
Shelby HOSP Methodist Healthcare-University Hospital 3) 9803 (3) 10524 3) 11130 13.54%
Shelby PO MSK Group PC - New Covington Pike 1 3140 1) 3013 (1) 3034 -3.38%
Shelby PO MSK Group, PC - Briarcrest (1-Shared) 4489 (1-Shared) 4637 (1-Shared) 4439 -1.11%
Shelby PO Neurology Clinic, PC (1-Shared) 3160 (1-Shared) 3312 (1-Shared) 2577 -18.45%
Shelby oDC Outpatient Diagnostic Ctr of Memphis 1) 2214 (1) 2563 " 2889 30.49%
Shelby OoDC Park Avenue Diagnostic Center 2) 2681 (2) 2075 ) 3188 18.91%
Shelby HOSP Regional Medical Center, The (Regional One Heaith) 1) 4491 ) 4131 1) 4109 -8.51%
Shelby PO Semmes-Murphey Clinic (Humphreys Blvd) 2) 6490 2) 6277 ) 6879 5.99%
Shelby HOSP St. Francis Hospital (3) 5393 (3) 5326 3) 5045 -6.45%
Shelby HOSP St. Francis Hospital - Bartlett 2) 3642 2) 3518 2) 3559 -2.28%
Shelby HOSP St. Jude Children's Research Hospital 4) 8737 ) 8305 ) 8377 -4.12%
Shelby PO Wesley Neurology Clinic, P.C. (1-Shared) 1309 (1-Shared) 1026 (1-Shared) 1307 -0.15%
Shelby ASTC/ODC West Clinic, P.C., The 1) 1564 ) 1287 ) 1655 5.82%
Smith HOSP Riverview Regional Medical Center 1) 619 ) 613 (1) 669 8.08%
i PO Appalachian Orthopaedic Associates, PC 1) 268 1) 214 1) 183 -31.72%
HOSP Bristol Regional Medical Center (2) 6578 2) 6323 (2) 6151 -6.49%
Sullivan obC Holston Valley Imaging Center, LLC 3) 8792 3) 8787 3) 6516 -25.89%
Sullivan HOSP Holston Valley Medical Center 1) 3514 1) 3326 (1) 2867 -18.41%
Sullivan HOSP Indian Path Medical Center (1) 3000 1) 2807 1 2913 -2.90%
Sullivan OoDC Meadowview Outpatient Diagnostic Center () 4484 1 4350 Q) 4187 -6.62%
Sullivan H-Imaging  Sapling Grove Imaging, LLC (Wellmont) (Sold 2012) (1) 150 (0) 0 {0) 0 -100.00%
Sullivan oDC Sapling Grove Outpatient Diagnostic Center ) 2309 %) 2245 1) 2231 -3.38%
Sullivan HODC Volunteer Parkway Imaging Center (1) 1348 ") 1239 1) 1153 -14.47%
Sumner H-Imaging Diagnostic Center at Sumner Station (1) 1707 1 1948 1) 2106 23.37%

Outpatient Imaging Center at Hendersonville Medical

Sumner HODC Center 1) 2116 (1) 1670 1) 1669 -21.12%
Sumner H-Imaging Portland Diagnostic Center (1-1/week) 247 (1-1/week) 289 (1-1/week) 312 26.32%
Sumner PO Southern Sports Medicine Institute, PLLC (1) 720 ) 723 1) 638 -11.39%
Sumner HOSP Sumner Regional Medical Center (1) 2591 %) 3064 (1) 3046 17.56%
Sumner HOSP TriStar Hendersonville Medical Center 1) 2367 ) 2565 1) 2741 15.80%
Tipton HOSP Baptist Memorial Hospital - Tipton 1) 1265 M 1153 1) 965 -23.72%
Unicoi HOSP Unicoi County Memorial Hospital, Inc. 1) 1164 0 935 1) 630 -45.88%
Warren HOSP St. Thomas River Park Hospital (1) 2390 %) 2323 Q) 2268 -5.10%
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Health Care Providers that Utilize MRI's - Trend
Medical Equipment Registry - 8/10/2015

Procedures

Provider Percent

County Type Provider 2012 2013 2014 Changed
Washington PO Appalachian Orthopaedic Associates - Johnson City 1) 357 1) 188 (1) 123 -65.55%
Washington HOSP Franklin Woods Community Hospital 1 3499 M 3529 ) 3772 7.80%
Washington HOSP Johnson City Medical Center ) 7237 (2) 6617 (2) 8903 23.02%
Washington oDC Mountain States Imaging at Med Tech Parkway ™) 2697 0 2448 (1 2328 -13.68%
Washington PO Watauga Orthopaedics, PLC (1) 2415 (1) 2337 1) 2221 -8.03%
Wayne HOSP Wayne Medical Center (1-2/week) 555 (1-2/week) 581 (1-2/week) 603 8.65%
Weakley HOSP Volunteer Community Hospital (1) 1233 (1) 1037 ) 1033 -16.22%
White HOSP St. Thomas Highlands Hospital (1) 1069 1) 961 (1) 1124 5.14%
Williamson oDC Cool Springs Imaging (1) 4308 (1) 4552 1) 4918 14.16%
oDC Premier Radiology Ceol Springs 1) 3683 (1 3151 (1) 3094 -15.99%
PO Vanderbilt Bone and Joint (1) 2728 1) 2743 1) 1877 -31.20%
HOSP Williamson Medical Center 1) 3654 1) 4103 1 4119 12.73%
oDC Premier Radiology - Mt. Juliet 1) 2559 0 2562 ) 3191 24.70%
Wilson PO Tennessee Orthopedics 1) 1197 1) 1196 (1) 909 -24.06%
Wilson PO Tennessee Sports Medicine (2) 1125 2) 1801 2) 1501 33.42%
Wilson HOSP University Medical Center 1) 3000 (1) 2213 (1) 2472 -17.60%
Statewide 660932 652252 667906 1.06%
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Health Care Providers that Utilize MRI's - Trend
Medical Equipment Registry - 8/10/2015

Procedures
Provider Percent

County Type Provider 2012 2013 2014 Changed

Chattanooga Outpatient Center (Digital Imaging of
Hamilton oDC North Georgia) (10 6465 @ 7292 @ 8659 33.94%
Hamilton H-lmaging Erlanger East Campus (1) 704 1) 568 1) 832 18.18%
Hamilton HOSP Erlanger Medical Center (3) 10915 (3) 11558 3) 12950 18.64%
Hamilton HOSP Memorial Hixson Hospital 2) 2836 2) 2488 2) 2569 -9.41%
Hamilton HOSP Memorial Hospital (3) 4096 3) 4356 3) 4244 3.61%
Hamilton H-Imaging Memorial Ooltewah Imaging Center (1) 1050 (1) 1049 1) 1028 -2.10%
Hamilton PO Neurosurgical Group of Chattanooga, P.C. 1) 1405 1) 1198 ) 1259 -10.39%
Hamilton HOSP Parkridge East Hospital 1) 919 1) 1024 1) 997 8.49%
Hamilton HOSP Parkridge Medical Center 1) 2496 1) 2054 1) 2122 -14.98%
Hamilton RPO Tennessee Imaging and Vein Center 1) 3074 1) 3165 ) 3113 1.27%
Hardin HOSP Hardin Medical Center 1) 1379 1) 1470 ") 1419 2.90%
Hawkins HOSP Hawkins County Memorial Hospital (1-3/week) 895 (1-3/week) 877 (1-3Aveek) 807 -9.83%

Haywood Park Community Hospital (Closed August
Haywood HOSP 2014) (1-1/week) 206 (1-1/week) 179 0) 0 -100.00%
Henderson HOSP Henderson County Community Hospital (1-3/week) 504 (1-3/week) 411 (1-3/week) 373 -25.99%
Henry HOSP Henry County Medical Center 2 2918 (2) 3257 2) 3250 11.38%
Hickman HOSP St. Thomas Hickman Hospital (1-1hweek) 214 (1-1/week) 247 (1-1/week) 157 -26.64%

Houston County Community Hospital (Stopped service
Houston HOSP in 2013) (1-1/week) 223 (1-1/week) 74 ) 0 -100.00%
Jefferson HOSP Jefferson Memorial Hospital (1-6/week) 3098 (1-7fweek) 2074 (1-6/week) 2253 -27.28%
Johnson HOSP Johnson County Community Hospital (1-4/month) 308 (1-4/month) 267 (1-4/month) 235 -23.70%
Knox RPO Abercrombie Radiological Consultants, Inc. ) 4732 2) 4313 2) 3186 -32.67%
Knox PO Ancillary Services, Summit Medical Group 1) 3021 (1) 2768 (1) 3092 2.35%
Knox PO Ancillary Sves-Summit Medical Group-Midlake ") 2273 (1) 2317 ") 2510 10.43%
Knox HOSP East Tennessee Children's Hospital (1) 2594 ") 2674 1 2849 9.83%
Knox oDC East Tennessee Community Open MRI, LLC ) 1860 (2) 1845 2) 2068 11.18%
Knox HOSP Fort Sanders Regional Medical Center 2) 7269 (2) 7461 2) 7477 2.86%
Knox HODC Fort Sanders West Diagnostic Center ") 1346 (1) 1099 (1) 1128 -16.20%
Knox PO Knoxville Comprehensive Breast Center 2 1014 7)) 1809 ) 1965 93.79%
Knox HOSP North Knoxville Medical Center ") 3984 (1) 3696 (1) 3610 -9.39%
Knox PO OrthoTennessee imaging Fort Sanders West ™) 4999 1) 3971 (1) 6321 26.45%
Knox oDC Outpatient Diagnostic Ctr of Knoxville ) 8040 @ 8186 ) 8923 10.98%
Knox HOSP Parkwest Medical Center ) 8254 2) 8038 2) 8037 -2.63%
Knox HOSP Physicians Regional Medical Center 2) 4779 2) 5421 2) 3913 -18.12%
Knox PO Tennessee Orthopaedic Clinics - Regional MRI 1) 1011 %) 935 ) 1075 6.33%
Knox PO Tennessee Orthopaedic Clinics, PC 1) 3425 1) 3259 1) 2892 -15.56%
Knox HOSP Turkey Creek Medical Center 1) 3342 (1) 2507 ) 2408 -27.95%
Knox HOSP University of Tennessee Medical Hospital 4) 17557 ) 16453 (4) 18250 3.95%
Lauderdale HOSP Lauderdale Community Hospital (1-4/week) 389 (1-4/week) 292 (1-4/week) 314 -19.28%

Southern Tennessee Regional Health System -
Lawrence HOSP Lawrenceburg 1) 1622 ") 1441 ) 1450 -10.60%
Lewis H-Imaging Lewis Health Center {1-1/week) 477 (1-1/week) 500 (1-1/week) 451 -5.45%
Lincoln HOSP Lincoln Medical Center (1) 1284 1) 1182 €} 989 -22.98%
Loudon HOSP Fort Loudoun Medical Center 1) 2300 (1) 2023 (1) 2055 -10.65%
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Health Care Providers that Utilize MRI's - Trend
Medical Equipment Registry - 8/10/2015

Procedures
Provider Percent

County Type Provider 2012 2013 2014 Changed
Macon HOSP Macon County General Hospital (1-2/week) 793 (1-2/week) 480 (1-5/week) 542 -31.65%
Madison PO Jackson Clinic, P.A,, The ) 2271 (1) 2019 W) 2093 -7.84%
Madison HOSP Jackson Madison County General Hospital (2) 9877 (2) 9372 2) 8696 -11.96%
Madison HOSP Regional Hospital of Jackson (1 2203 %) 2123 (M 1731 -21.43%
Madison oDC Sports Orthopedics and Spine ") 6781 1) 8835 ) 10676 57.44%
Madison PO West Tennessee Bone & Joint Clinic I6)) 2649 1) 2804 m 3918 47.90%
Madison HODC West Tennessee Imaging Center 3) 7027 3) 6491 (3) 7090 0.90%
Madison PO West Tennessee Neurosciences 1) 2706 1) 2729 o) 2353 -13.05%
Marion HOSP Parkridge West Hospital (1) 953 1) 884 1) 558 -41.45%
Marshall HOSP Marshall Medical Center 1) 700 1) 773 (1) 720 2.86%
Maury HOSP Maury Regional Medical Center (3) 6083 3) 6109 (3) 6606 8.60%
Maury PO Mid Tennessee Bone and Joint Clinic, PC 1) 1909 (1) 2047 (1) 2259 18.33%
Maury RPO Mobile MRI Services, LLC - Columbia (1-2/week) 415 (1-Ofweek) 0 (1-O/week) 0 -100.00%

Spring Hill Imaging Center (Maury Regional Imaging
Maury OoDC Ctr) (1 1897 M 2392 (1 2640 39.17%
McMinn HOSP Starr Regional Medical Center 1 2295 1) 2437 ) 2479 8.02%

Starr Regional Medical Center - Etowah (Removed
McMinn HOSP from service in 2013) ) 1078 %) 479 (0) 0 -100.00%
McNairy HOSP McNairy Regional Hospital (1-2hweek) 642 (1-2/week) 545 (1-2/week) 494 -23.05%
Monroe HOSP Sweetwater Hospital Association (1-5/week) 1638 (1-5/week) 1834 (1-5/week) 2057 25.58%
Montgomery oDC Clarksville Imaging Center, LLC 1) 4119 1) 4276 1) 3426 -16.82%
Montgomery HOSP Gateway Medical Center 2) 5242 2) 4432 2) 4617 -11.92%
Montgomery RPO Mobile MRI Services, LLC - Clarksville (1-3Aweek) 1129 (1-5/week) 1404 (1-5/week) 65 -94.24%
Montgomery PO Premier Medical Group, P.C. (1) 1426 1 1386 (1) 1453 1.89%
Montgomery PO Tennessee Orthopaedic Alliance m 1915 (1) 1932 (N 1976 3.19%
Obion HOSP Baptist Memorial Hospital - Union City (1 2066 N 1784 %)) 1975 -4.40%
Overton HOSP Livingston Regional Hospital 1) 959 (1) 949 1) 649 -32.33%
Polk HOSP Copper Basin Medical Center (1-1/week) 176 (1-1/week) 250 (1-1/week) 142 -19.32%
Putnam HOSP Cookeville Regional Medical Center (1) 4928 (1) 3701 1) 4375 -11.22%

Outpatient Imaging Center at Cookeville Regional Med.
Putnam H-Imaging Ctr. ) 3385 (2) 4791 ) 5273 55.78%
Putnam oDC Premier Diagnostic imaging, LLC 2) 5572 2) 5674 ) 5454 -2.12%
Rhea HOSP Rhea Medical Center 1) 1530 1) 1481 (1 1495 -2.29%
Roane HOSP Roane Medical Center (1) 1914 m 1729 1) 1863 -2.66%
Robertson HOSP Northcrest Medical Center (1) 2780 (1) 3232 ) 3407 22.55%
Rutherford oDC Imaging Center of Murfreesboro 1) 2000 (1) 4827 1) 5327 166.35%
Rutherford PO Murfreesboro Medical Clinic-Garrison Drive (1) 2189 ) 1994 ") 2344 7.08%
Rutherford oDcC Premier Radiology Murfreesboro ) 4800 ) 5169 2) 5595 16.56%
Rutherford oDC Premier Radiology Smyrna 1) 2502 (1) 2392 (1) 3003 20.02%
Rutherford RPO Radiology & Diagnostics, PLC (Closed 2013) (1) 919 0) 0 0) 0 -100.00%
Rutherford HOSP St. Thomas Rutherford Hospital vd) 2345 2) 1964 ) 1994 -14.97%
Rutherford PO Tennessee Orthopaedic Alliance Imaging 1) 4120 ) 4148 (1) 4528 9.80%
Rutherford HOSP TriStar Stonecrest Medical Center ") 2162 (1) 2369 (1) 2509 16.05%
Sevier HOSP LeConte Medical Center (1) 4269 (1) 4235 (1) 4627 8.39%
Shelby HOSP Baptist Memorial Hospital - Collierville (10 1734 (1 1593 1) 1753 1.10%
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Verification of Funding
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Premier .
Radiology gl Featn oS

March 10, 2016

it

Melanie M. Hill, Executive Director Murfreeaboro
Tennessee Health Services and Development Agency Naghvilie

502 Deaderick Street Smyrma
Andrew Jackson Bldg., 9" Floor
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

RE: Middle Tennessee Imaging’s CON Licensure Request to Provide Fixed Site MRI Services
in Clarksville, TN.

Dear Ms. Hill;

Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC (d/b/a Premier Radiology) has sufficient resources available
to fund all costs required for the development and establishment of the project as set forth in
the certificate of need application. The funding needed for Administrative, Architectural,
Engineering, Construction, and Equipment costs appears to be approximately $941,648.

Cash-on-hand will be used to fund this project.

If you need additional information, please teel free to contact me. My number is 615-239-2039.

Sincerely,
el

Mark Gaw
CFO

www.PremierRadiology.com
Open MRl & MRl w 3T MRl & CT & X-Ray ® Ulrasound @ Worz.-ss%‘ervioes m Pain Services ® Nuclear Medicine
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Revenue
Global Patient Charges
Reserve for Contractual Allowances
Reserve for Charity Care

Net Patient Revenue

Physicians Services
Bad Debt

Net Technical Revenue
Net Earnings from STHS Hospitals

Non-Medical Revenue
Hermitage Building Rent
Other Revenue

Total Non-Medical Revenue
Net Technical and Other Revenue

Operating Expenses
Staff Compensation & Benefits
Leased Medical Equipment
Rents & Other Leases
Insurance
Non-Clinical Supplies
Clinic Supplies
RIS/PACS Services
Management Fee
Billling & Collection Agency Fees
Other Purchased Services
Telecommunications
Transport, Meals, & Entertainment
Repairs & Maintenance
Other Operating Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating iIncome (EBITDA)

Non-operating Income & Expense
Depreciation & Amortization

Interest Expense
Gain or Loss on Asset Disposal

Total Non-Operating Income & Expense

Net Income Before Taxes
Provision for Income Taxes

Net Income

Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC
Income Statement

Period and Year to Date Compare to Last Year
For the Period from Jan 1, 2016 to Jan 31, 2016

Current Period

Year to Date

Last Year to Date

14,208,093 505% 14,208,093 505% 14,032,829 490%
(10,154,726) -361% (10,154,726) -361% (9,965,837) -348%
(85,101) -3% (85,101) -3% (84,112) -3%
3,968,266 141% 3,968,266 141% 3,982,880 139%
(756,320) -27% (756,320) -27% (727,695) -25%
(397,137) -14% (397,137) -14% (392,524) -14%
2,814,809 100% 2,814,809 100% 2,862,661 100%
61,476 2% 61,476 2% (280,453) -10%
26,309 1% 26,309 1% 28,809 1%
5,105 0% 5,105 0% 24,008 1%
31,413 1% 31,413 1% 52,817 2%
2,907,699 103% 2,907,699 103% 2,635,024 92%
852,396 30% 852,396 30% 911,938 32%
7,865 0% 7,865 0% 7,865 0%
245,001 9% 245,001 9% 147,556 5%
29,739 1% 29,739 1% 21,548 1%
46,445 2% 46,445 2% 55,942 2%
270,327 10% 270,327 10% 270,442 9%
47,558 2% 47,558 2% 50,411 2%
62,960 2% 62,960 2% 64,480 2%
191,222 7% 191,222 7% 186,685 7%
51,620 2% 51,620 2% 43,804 2%
39,001 1% 39,001 1% 29,938 1%
10,205 0% 10,205 0% 6,024 0%
358,486 13% 358,486 13% 222,466 8%
112,749 4% 112,749 4% 112,651 4%
2,325,573 83% 2,325,573 83% 2,131,750 74%
582,125 21% 582,125 21% 503,274 18%
301,933 11% 301,933 11% 324,712 11%
42,879 2% 42,879 2% 64,973 2%
4,442 0% 4,442 0% - 0%
349,254 12% 349,254 12% 389,685 14%
232,872 8% 232,872 8% 113,589 4%
28,000 1% 28,000 1% 31,333 1%
204,872 7% 204,872 7% 82,256 3%
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Net Technical Revenue

Staff Leased from NOL, LLC
Temporary Labor

Shared Staff Comp
Benefits

Total Staff Compensation
Leased Medical Equipment

Office Rent
Lease - Office F&E

Total Rents & Other Leases

General Business insurance
Malpractice Insurance
Director & Officers Insurance

Total Insurance

Billing Forms

Office Supplies

Patient Waiting Room Supplies
Computer Supplies

Marketing Supplies

Total Non-clinical Supplies
Clinic Forms
Clinic Supplies & Medications
Film
Contrast Materials
Laundry
Total Clinic Supplies
RIS/PACS Services

Management Fee

Billing Service
Collection Agency Fees

Total Billing & Collection Agency Fees

IS Consulting & Support
Mktg Consulting & Support
Recruiting

Legal
Professional/Accounting
Special Projects

Other Medical Services
Cleaning Services

Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC

Operating Expense Support Schedule
Period and Year to Date Compare to Last Year
For the Period from Jan 1, 2016 to Jan 31, 2016

Current Period

Year to Date

Last Year to Date

2,814,809 100% 2,814,809 100% 2,862,661 100%
823,590 29% 823,590 29% 878,238 31%
- 0% - 0% 5,806 0%

- 0% - 0% - 0%
28,806 1% 28,806 1% 27,895 1%
852,396 30% 852,396 30% 911,938 32%
7,865 0% 7,865 0% 7,865 0%
238,390 8% 238,390 8% 143,837 5%
4,411 0% 4,411 0% 3,719 0%
245,001 9% 245,001 9% 147,556 5%
9,540 0% 9,540 0% 5,808 0%
19,667 1% 19,667 1% 14,973 1%
532 0% 532 0% 767 0%
29,739 1% 29,739 1% 21,548 1%
2,134 0% 2,134 0% 662 0%
7,605 0% 7,605 0% 12,868 0%
4,574 0% 4,574 0% 10,170 0%
714 0% 714 0% 3,672 0%
31,419 1% 31,419 1% 28,570 1%
46,445 2% 46,445 2% 55,942 2%
1,907 0% 1,907 0% 2,649 0%
239,061 8% 239,061 8% 237,014 8%
2,327 0% 2,327 0% 1,748 0%
6,962 0% 6,962 0% 8,864 0%
20,071 1% 20,071 1% 20,166 1%
270,327 10% 270,327 10% 270,442 9%
47,558 2% 47,558 2% 50,411 2%
62,960 2% 62,960 2% 64,480 2%
175,761 6% 175,761 6% 161,566 6%
15,461 1% 15,461 1% 25,119 1%
191,222 7% 191,222 7% 186,685 7%
546 0% 546 0% 2,500 0%
10,000 0% 10,000 0% 9,750 0%
242 0% 242 0% 102 0%
9,017 0% 9,017 0% 8,765 0%

- 0% - 0% = 0%

0% 0% 1,215 0%

- 0% - 0% 1,704 0%
5,451 0% 5,451 0% 11,517 0%
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Transcription

Grounds Keeping & Waste
Building Security

Mobile MRI Transportation
Other Purchased Services

Total Purchased Services

Business Lines
Information System Lines
Cellular Phones
Answering Service
Yellow Pages

Total Telecommunications

Business Meals
Entertainment
Flowers & Gifts
Employee Relations
Travel

Mileage
Transportation

Total Transport, Meals, & Entertainment

Maint - Office Equipment & Furnishings
Maint - Computer Equipment

Maint - Medical Equipment

Maint - Building

Total Repairs & Maintenance

Seminars & Training
Books & Publications
Professional Societies
Licenses

CME

Uniforms

Meeting Expense

Bad Debt Expense
Miscellaneous
Business & Property Taxes
Bank Charges
Postage

Utilities

Other

Contributions

Total Other Operating Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC

Operating Expense Support Schedule
Period and Year to Date Compare to Last Year
For the Period from Jan 1, 2016 to Jan 31, 2016

Current Period

Year to Date

Last Year to Date

- 0% = 0% - 0%
3,199 0% 3,199 0% 4,334 0%
657 0% 657 0% 351 0%
5,568 0% 5,568 0% - 0%
16,940 1% 16,940 1% 3,565 0%
51,620 2% 51,620 2% 43,804 2%
7,569 0% 7,569 0% 7,325 0%
30,821 1% 30,821 1% 21,875 1%
437 0% 437 0% 561 0%
174 0% 174 0% 177 0%
0% 0% 0%

39,001 1% 39,001 1% 29,938 1%
112 0% 112 0% 1,722 0%

A 0% 0% - 0%

= 0% - 0% - 0%
7,617 0% 7,617 0% 2,382 0%
278 0% 278 0% - 0%
1,300 0% 1,300 0% 586 0%
898 0% 898 0% 1,334 0%
10,205 0% 10,205 0% 6,024 0%
477 0% 477 0% - 0%
6,468 0% 6,468 0% 6,577 0%
330,886 12% 330,886 12% 203,098 7%
20,655 1% 20,655 1% 12,792 0%
358,486 13% 358,486 13% 222,466 8%
- 0% - 0% 4,508 0%

. 0% - 0% - 0%
760 0% 760 0% 100 0%
18,899 1% 18,899 1% 14,338 1%
® 0% - 0% = 0%
1,403 0% 1,403 0% 631 0%

- 0% - 0% 0%

0% 0% . 0%

- 0% - 0% 0 0%
7,098 0% 7,098 0% 27,928 1%
29,684 1% 29,684 1% 20,359 1%
2,873 0% 2,873 0% 2,175 0%
47,033 2% 47,033 2% 42,611 1%
= 0% - 0% - 0%
5,000 0% 5,000 0% 0%
112,749 4% 112,749 4% 112,651 4%
2,325,573 83% 2,325,573 83% 2,131,750 74%
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Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC
Balance Sheet
January 31, 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash
Account Receivable
Due from Affiliates
Allowances
Prepaid Expenses
Deposits

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Vehicles
Operating Equipment
Leasehold Improvements
Land
Buildings
Accumulated Depreciation

Net Fixed Assets

Intangibles Assets
Goodwill

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabllities
Accounts Payable
Due to Affiliates
Accrued Expenses
Building Deposits Returnable
Line of Credit
Current Portion of Notes Payable
Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities
Notes and Loan Payables
Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion
Other Long-Term Liabilities
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Owner Capital
Owner Distributions
Retained Earnings
YTD Net Income
Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
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Balance

3,804,176
22,105,040
983,329
(18,016,803)
149,432
80,333

9,105,507

134,879
26,805,514
9,464,026
967,099
1,860,221
(24,444,062)

14,787,677

600,000

24,493,183

777,072
1,729,426
1,208,594

4,207
2,000,000
4,084,423

53,858

9,857,580

9,611,430

9,611,430

19,469,010

7,108,225
{40,350,000)
38,061,077

204,872

5,024,173

24,493,183




Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC

Statement of Cash Flow

Period and Year to Date Compare to Last Year

January 2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operations:

Net changein...

Receivables

Prepaids

Other Assets

Investments in Subsidiaries
Accounts Payable

Deposits Returnable
Accrued Expenses

Taxes Payable

Notes & Mortgage Payable
Other Liabilities
Intercompany (to) / from
Depreciation & Amortization

Total Cash Flows from Operations
Cash Flows from Investing Actlvities:
Purchases of Assets
Disposition of Assets

Total Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Owners Distribution

Total Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Increase/Decrease in Cash

Cash at the end of the period
Cash at the beginning of the period

Increase/Decrease in Cash

Current Period Year to Date Last Year Last Year to Date
204,872 204,872 82,256 82,256
720,875 720,875 798,996 798,996

31,918 31,918 13,899 13,899
- - (1,700) {1,700)
(512,076) (512,076) 159,981 159,981
29,418 29,418 14,441 14,441
(48,902) (48,902) (34,738) (34,738)
{(340,369) (340,369) (340,369) (340,369)
814 814 1,120 1,120
(333,310) (333,310) (493,958) (493,958)
217,002 217,002 323,927 323,927
(29,758) (29,758) 523,853 523,853
(169,019) (169,019} (29,368) (29,368)
88,837 88,837 - -
(80,182) (80,182) (29,368) (29,368)
- (2,000,000) {2,000,000)
- - {2,000,000) (2,000,000)
(109,940) (109,940) (1,505,514) (1,505,514)
3,804,176 3,804,176 2,394,158 2,394,158
3,914,117 3,914,117 3,899,673 3,899,673
{109,940) (109,940) (1,505,514) (1,505,514)
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Revenue
Global Patient Charges
Reserve for Contractual Allowances
Reserve for Charity Care

Net Patient Revenue

Physicians Services
Bad Debt

Net Technical Revenue
Net Earnings from STHS Hospitals

Non-Medical Revenue
Hermitage Building Rent
Other Revenue

Total Non-Medical Revenue
Net Technical and Other Revenue

Operating Expenses
Staff Compensation & Benefits
Leased Medical Equipment
Rents & Other Leases
Insurance
Non-Clinical Supplies
Clinic Supplies
RIS/PACS Services
Management Fee
Billling & Collection Agency Fees
Other Purchased Services
Telecommunications
Transport, Meals, & Entertainment
Repairs & Maintenance
Other Operating Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating Income (EBITDA)

Non-operating Income & Expense
Depreciation & Amortization

Interest Expense
Gain or Loss on Asset Disposal

Total Non-Operating Income & Expense

Net Income Before Taxes
Provision for Income Taxes

Net Income

Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC

Income Statement

Period and Year to Date Compare to Last Year
For the Period from Dec 1, 2015 to Dec 31, 2015

Current Period

Year to Date

Last Year to Date

17,101,412 500% 187,754,391 507% 157,936,782 466%
(12,221,844)  -358% (134,111,625)  -362% (111,408,546}  -329%
(102,402) -3% (1,125,143) 3% (946,439) 3%
4,777,166 140% 52,517,623 142% 45,581,797 134%
(849,788) -25% (10,219,491) -28% (7,258,940) -21%
(510,376) -15% (5,283,166) -14% (4,416,716) -13%
3,417,001 100% 37,014,966 100% 33,906,142 100%
60,000 2% 416,248 1% 2,198,325 6%
6,809 0% 303,707 1% 358,123 1%
347,336 10% 618,489 2% 624,903 2%
354,145 10% 922,195 2% 983,026 3%
3,831,146 112% 38,353,409 104% 37,087,492 109%
855,375 25% 10,564,159 29% 10,265,375 30%
7,865 0% 95,037 0% 62,912 0%
247,425 7% 2,853,791 8% 2,857,790 8%
29,576 1% 363,896 1% 256,230 1%
63,234 2% 690,736 2% 683,306 2%
292,464 9% 3,287,830 9% 3,323,478 10%
58,100 2% 649,034 2% 550,659 2%
78,125 2% 834,648 2% 774,089 2%
223,150 7% 2,345,348 6% 2,113,527 6%
63,156 2% 682,551 2% 619,862 2%
38,586 1% 393,241 1% 367,790 1%
4,547 0% 87,467 0% 116,291 0%
427,491 13% 3,726,412 10% 2,952,194 9%
117,163 3% 1,345,198 4% 1,335,015 4%
2,506,256 73% 27,919,349 75% 26,278,516 78%
1,324,891 39% 10,434,060 28% 10,808,976 32%
374,382 11% 3,733,484 10% 3,749,471 11%
41,836 1% 547,951 1% 758,210 2%
528 0% 528 0% (426) 0%
416,746 12% 4,281,963 12% 4,507,255 13%
908,145 27% 6,152,097 17% 6,301,721 19%
28,000 1% 171,992 0% 376,130 1%
880,145 26% 5,980,105 16% 5,925,591 17%
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Net Technical Revenue

Staff Leased from NOL, LLC
Temporary Labor

Shared Staff Comp
Benefits

Total Staff Compensation
Leased Medical Equipment

Office Rent
Lease - Office F&E

Total Rents & Other Leases

General Business Insurance
Malpractice Insurance
Director & Officers Insurance

Total Insurance

Billing Forms

Office Supplies

Patient Waiting Room Supplies
Computer Supplies

Marketing Supplies

Total Non-clinical Supplies
Clinic Forms
Clinic Supplies & Medications
Film
Contrast Materials
Laundry
Total Clinic Supplies
RIS/PACS Services

Management Fee

Billing Service
Collection Agency Fees

Total Billing & Collection Agency Fees

IS Consulting & Support
Mktg Consulting & Support
Recruiting

Legal
Professional/Accounting
Special Projects

Other Medical Services
Cleaning Services

Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC

Operating Expense Support Schedule

Period and Year to Date Compare to Last Year
For the Period from Dec 1, 2015 to Dec 31, 2015

Current Period

Year to Date

Last Year to Date

3,417,001 100% 37,014,966 100% 33,906,142 100%
825,809 24% 10,248,111 28% 9,685,401 29%
83 0% 3,755 0% 181,421 1%

- 0% - 0% - 0%
29,483 1% 312,294 1% 398,552 1%
855,375 25% 10,564,159 29% 10,265,375 30%
7,865 0% 95,037 0% 62,912 0%
240,552 7% 2,770,598 7% 2,791,359 8%
4,673 0% 52,393 0% 46,875 0%
247,425 7% 2,853,791 8% 2,857,790 8%
9,377 0% 112,964 0% 97,265 0%
19,667 1% 241,966 1% 150,031 0%
532 0% 8,966 0% 8,934 0%
29,576 1% 363,896 1% 256,230 1%
4,944 0% 38,936 0% 66,259 0%
17,717 1% 131,300 0% 123,304 0%
7,609 0% 84,665 0% 77,707 0%
6,306 0% 29,146 0% 64,486 0%
26,658 1% 406,689 1% 351,551 1%
63,234 2% 690,736 2% 683,306 2%
- 0% 16,482 0% 2,275 0%
256,033 7% 2,898,127 8% 2,980,349 9%
- 0% 9,563 0% 13,774 0%
13,792 0% 128,183 0% 105,266 0%
22,639 1% 235,475 1% 221,813 1%
292,464 9% 3,287,830 9% 3,323,478 10%
58,100 2% 649,034 2% 550,659 2%
78,125 2% 834,648 2% 774,089 2%
208,835 6% 2,206,115 6% 1,870,971 6%
14,316 0% 139,233 0% 242,556 1%
223,150 7% 2,345,348 6% 2,113,527 6%
1,022 0% 9,546 0% 16,149 0%
10,250 0% 134,755 0% 102,875 0%
485 0% 7,113 0% 3,524 0%
17,531 1% 124,975 0% 131,111 0%

. 0% 9,775 0% 10,048 0%

- 0% 23,668 0% 77,136 0%

248 0% 24,778 0% 22,112 0%
16,646 0% 149,195 0% 150,483 0%
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Transcription

Grounds Keeping & Waste
Building Security

Mobile MRI Transportation
Other Purchased Services

Total Purchased Services

Business Lines
Information System Lines
Cellular Phones
Answering Service
Yellow Pages

Total Telecommunications

Business Meals
Entertainment
Flowers & Gifts
Employee Relations
Travel

Mileage
Transportation

Total Transport, Meals, & Entertainment

Maint - Office Equipment & Furnishings

Maint - Computer Equipment
Maint - Medical Equipment
Maint - Building

Total Repairs & Maintenance

Seminars & Training
Books & Publications
Professional Societies
Licenses

CME

Uniforms

Meeting Expense
Bad Debt Expense
Miscellaneous
Business & Property Taxes
Bank Charges
Postage

Utilities

Other

Contributions

Total Other Operating Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC

Operating Expense Support Schedule
Period and Year to Date Compare to Last Year
For the Period from Dec 1, 2015 to Dec 31, 2015

Current Period

. 0%
4,182 0%

Year to Date

54,386

0%

Last Year to Date

42,896

0%

0% 0%

1,338 0% 12,799 0% 12,338 0%
3,863 0% 21,746 0% . 0%
7,592 0% 109,815 0% 51,189 0%
63,156 2% 682,551 2% 619,862 2%
7,554 0% 100,273 0% 108,652 0%
30,434 1% 284,047 1% 249,651 1%
428 0% 6,720 0% 7,478 0%
170 0% 2,201 0% 2,009 0%
0% - 0% - 0%

38,586 1% 393,241 1% 367,790 1%
164 0% 16,972 0% 20,432 0%

- 0% 450 0% - 0%

- 0% = 0% 309 0%
1,896 0% 35,892 0% 32,181 0%
311 0% 878 0% 5,036 0%
945 0% 8,822 0% 12,959 0%
1,232 0% 20,453 0% 45,374 0%
4,547 0% 87,467 0% 116,291 0%
- 0% 3,281 0% 3,117 0%
2,700 0% 21,245 0% 50,541 0%
388,512 11% 3,461,878 9% 2,716,093 8%
36,279 1% 240,009 1% 182,443 1%
427,491 13% 3,726,412 10% 2,952,194 9%
6,228 0% 12,565 0% 11,584 0%

- 0% 2,205 0% 2,856 0%
100 0% 1,680 0% 1,760 0%
10,173 0% 110,097 0% 136,887 0%
- 0% - 0% - 0%
147 0% 8,146 0% 14,866 0%
0% = 0% = 0%

0% - 0% - 0%

. 0% 266 0% (254) 0%
27,111 1% 221,428 1% 331,432 1%
21,553 1% 301,187 1% 215,253 1%
3,407 0% 39,638 0% 48,426 0%
48,443 1% 639,079 2% 553,755 2%
> 0% 107 0% B 0%

0% 8,800 0% 18,450 0%

117,163 3% 1,345,198 4% 1,335,015 4%
2,506,256 73% 27,919,349 75% 26,278,516 78%
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Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash
Account Receivable
Due from Affiliates
Allowances
Prepaid Expenses
Deposits

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Vehicles
Operating Equipment
Leasehold Improvements
Land
Buildings
Accumulated Depreciation

Net Fixed Assets

Intangibles Assets
Goodwill

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Due to Affiliates
Accrued Expenses
Building Deposits Returnable
Line of Credit
Current Portion of Notes Payable
Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities
Notes and Loan Payables
Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion
Other Long-Term Liabilities
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Owner Capital
Owner Distributions
Retained Earnings
YTD Net Income
Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

283

Balance

3,914,117
23,648,558
650,019
(18,839,997)
181,351
80,333

9,634,380

98,127
26,762,083
9,464,026
967,099
1,860,221
(24,227,060)

14,924,496

600,000

25,158,876

894,409
2,069,272
1,282,421

4,207
2,000,000
4,084,423

53,044

10,387,776

9,951,799

9,951,799

20,339,575

7,108,225
(40,350,000)
32,080,972

5,980,105

4,819,301

25,158,876




Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC

Statement of Cash Flow

Period and Year to Date Compare to Last Year

December 2015

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operations:

Net change in...

Receivables

Prepaids

Other Assets

Investments in Subsidiaries
Accounts Payable

Deposits Returnable
Accrued Expenses

Taxes Payable

Notes & Mortgage Payable
Other Liabilities
Intercompany (to) / from
Depreciation & Amortization

Total Cash Flows from Operations
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of Assets
Disposition of Assets

Total Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Owners Distribution

Total Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Increase/Decrease in Cash

Cash at the end of the period
Cash at the beginning of the period

Increase/Decrease in Cash

Current Period Year to Date Last Year Last Year to Date
880,145 5,980,105 560,198 5,925,591
808,621 1,133,835 386,814 (881,320)
(78,485) (30,269) (43,488) (34,875)

3,761 (739) - 1,214,326
8,400 (937,587) 383,576 1,656,849
- . . (7,458)
13,713 (25,144) 31,413 1,186
47,234 (150,705) 51,091 (126,280)
(340,369) (4,084,423) (340,369) 620,645
831 10,768 1,168 42,276
788,025 53,296 (303,597) (627,300)
358,123 3,709,833 322,777 3,734,717
2,490,000 5,658,970 1,049,583 11,518,357
(139,118) (411,076) (132,915) (3,982,800)
16,550 16,550 - 6,900
(122,567) (394,526) (132,915) (3,975,900)
{1,250,000) (5,250,000) - {6,000,000)
{(1,250,000) (5,250,000) - (6,000,000)
1,117,433 14,444 916,667 1,542,457
3,914,117 3,914,117 3,899,673 3,899,673
2,796,684 3,899,673 2,983,006 2,357,216
1,117,433 14,444 916,667 1,542,457
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MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2014 and 2013
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FRASIERIDEAN E
HOWARDCPAS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Owners of
Middle Tennessee Imaging, LL.C and Subsidiaries
Goodlettsville, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Middle Tennessee Imaging,
LLC (a limited liability corporation) and subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
members’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Frasier, Dean & Howard, PLLC = 3310 West End Avenue, Suite 550 ¢ anh\2l8'17nncssce. 372031089 « 615.383.6592 + fax 15.383.7094 = wow fdbicpacam



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC and subsidiaries as of December
31,2014 and 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Fraaie Oue b Hud, Pre

April 20, 2015
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MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LL.C AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,899,673 $ 2,357,214
Accounts receivable, net 6,702,938 6,325,070
Prepaid expenses 151,082 116,206
Other assets 79,593 163,168
Total current assets 10,833,286 8,961,658
Property and equipment, net 18,239,803 18,598,618
Goodwill 600,000 -
Total assets $ 29,673,089 $ 27,560,276
Liabilities and Members' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 5,463,248 $ 3,892,671
Notes payable 6,084,423 3,003,182
Total current liabilities 11,547,671 6,895,853
Notes payable, net of current portion 14,036,222 16,496,818
Total liabilities 25,583,893 23,392,671
Members' equity 4,089,196 4,167,605
Total liabilities and members' equity $ 29,673,089 $ 27,560,276

See accompanying notes.
-3-
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MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013
Net revenue:
Service fee revenue, net of contractual
allowances and discounts $ 45,581,797 $ 38,121,775
Provision for doubtful accounts (4,416,715) (3,541,321)
Net service fee revenue 41,165,082 34,580,454
Net earnings from STHS hospitals 2,198,325 4,573,124
Non-medical revenue:
Rent revenue 145,315 284,367
Other 624,903 895,706
Net revenue 44,133,625 40,333,651
Operating expenses:
Contracted services 11,317,076 8,813,689
Salaries and benefits 10,265,374 8,529,594
Supplics 4,006,784 2,928,954
Depreciation and amortization 3,749,471 2,815,343
Repairs and maintenance 2,952,194 2,639,674
Leases and rents 2,707,893 2,217,328
Other operating expenses 2,079,328 1,758,104
Total operating expenses 37,078,120 29,702,686
Income from operations 7,055,505 10,630,965
Other income (expense):
Interest expense (758,210) (417,235)
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 426 24,250
Total other income (expense) (757,784) (392,985)
Net income before taxes 6,297,721 10,237,980
Provision for state income taxes (376,130) (439,927)
Net income $ 5,921,591 $ 9,798,053

See accompanying notes.
4-
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MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS' EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Members' equity, beginning of year
Distributions
Net income

Members' equity, end of year

2014 2013
$ 4,167,605 $ 6,169,552
(6,000,000) (11,800,000)
5,921,591 9,798,053
$ 4,089,196 $ 4,167,605

See accompanying notes.
-5-
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MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 5,921,591 9,798,053
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,749,471 2,815,343
Gain on disposal of property and equipment (426) (24,250)
Provision for doubtful accounts 4,416,715 3,541,321
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (4,794,583) (3,802,909)
Prepaid expenses (34,876) 35,879
Other assets 83,575 (62,115)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,570,577 (1,535,182)
Net cash provided by operating activities 10,912,044 10,766,140
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (3,090,230) (11,893,561)
Acquisition of membership interest (900,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities (3,990,230) (11,893,561)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from notes payable 4,200,000 12,382,428
Payments on notes payable (3,579,355) -
Member distributions (6,000,000) (11,800,000)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (5,379,355) 582,428
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,542,459 (544,993)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,357,214 2,902,207
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 3,899,673 2,357,214
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest 758,210 417,235
Income taxes 408,337 320,211

See accompanying notes.
-6-

292



MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC (the “Company”) was formed in April 2011 and provides
diagnostic imaging services including magnetic resonance imaging (MRI), computed tomography
(CT), positron emission tomography (PET), mammography, ultrasound, diagnostic radiology, or X-
ray, and other related procedures. The Company owns a membership interest in RADS of America,
LLC, and Premier Mobile, LLC, single member limited liability companies. The Company operates
14 imaging centers in Middle Tennessee. The Company operates as a limited liability company and
its members have limited personal liability for the obligations or debts of the Company. Only one
class of members’ interest exists and the entity’s life is not finite.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2014 and 2013 include the accounts of the
Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, RADS of America, LLC and Premier Mobile, LLC
(“Premier Mobile”). Premier Mobile was formed in 2014 to acquire the membership interest of
Mobile MRI Medical Services, LLC. All significant inter-entity transactions and balances have been
climinated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenues

Patient revenues, net of contractual allowances and discounts, consist of net patient fees received
from various payers based upon established contractual billing rates, less allowances for contractual
adjustments and discounts.

Service fee revenues are recorded during the period the services are provided based upon the
estimated amounts due from the patients and third-party payers. Third-party payers include federal
and state agencies (under Medicare and Medicaid programs), managed care health plans, commercial
insurance companies, and employers. Estimates of contractual allowances under managed carec
health plans are based upon the payment terms specified in the related contractual agreements.
Contractual payment terms in managed care agreements are generally based upon predetermined
rates per discounted fee-for-service rates. A provision for doubtful accounts (based primarily on
historical collection experience) is also recorded related to patients without insurance and copayment
and deductible amounts for patients who have health care coverage under a third-party payer.
=

293



MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2014 and 2013
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenues (Continued)

The Company’s service fee revenue, net of contractual allowances and discounts and the provision
for doubtful accounts for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are summarized in the
following table:

__ 2014 2013
Commercial insurance $ 26,684,636 $ 21,163,786
Medicare 11,958,333 10,704,250
Medicaid 4,540,730 4,082,913
Workers’ compensation 1,687,590 1,385,461
Other 710,508 785.365
Service fee revenue, net of contractual
allowances and discounts 45,581,797 38,121,775
Provision for doubtful accounts (4.416,715) (3.541.321)
Net service fee revenue $ 41,165,082 $§ 34,580,454

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash includes cash and all highly liquid
investments with original maturities of ninety days or less when purchased.

Accounts Receivable

Substantially all accounts receivable are due under fee-for-service contracts from third-party payers,
such as insurance companies and government-sponsored healthcare programs, or directly from
patients. Services are generally provided pursuant to one-year contracts with healthcare providers.
Receivables are generally collected within industry norms for third-party payers. Collections from
payers are continuously monitored and an allowance for uncollectible accounts is maintained based
upon specific payer collection issues that have been identified and historical experience.

Provision for Doubtful Accounts

An allowance is provided against accounts receivable that could become uncollectible to reduce the
carrying value of such receivables to their estimated net realizable value. This allowance is
estimated based on the aging of accounts receivable by each type of payer over an 18-month look-
back period and other relevant factors. The allowance for bad debts totaled $1,583,550 and $458,127
at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

-8-
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MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31,2014 and 2013
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation and amortization are provided by use of the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, which range from 4 to 10 years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset. Maintenance and repairs
are charged to expense as incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but instead are tested
for impairment at least annually at the reporting unit level. If impairment exists, a write-down to
estimated fair value (normally measured by discounting estimated future cash flows) is recorded. No
goodwill impairment charges were recorded in 2014.

Income Taxes

The Company is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes and does not incur federal
income taxes. Instead, its income or loss is included in the income tax returns of the members. The
Company is subject to Tennessee franchise and excise taxes.

The Company follows Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification
guidance which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity’s
financial statements. This guidance prescribes a minimum probability threshold that a tax position
must meet before a financial statement benefit is recognized. The minimum threshold is defined as a
tax position that is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing
authority, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical
merits of the position. The tax benefit to be recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit
that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company has
no tax penalties or interest reported in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, Tax
years that remain open to examination include the years ended December 31, 2011 through 2014.

Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated subsequent events through April 20, 2015, when these consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued. The Company is not aware of any significant events
that occurred subsequent to the consolidated balance sheet date but prior to the filing of this report
that would have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

295



MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2014 and 2013
NOTE 2 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013

Land $ 967,099 $ 967,099
Buildings 1,847,721 1,769,920
Leasehold improvements 9,380,445 8,404,515
Office furniture and equipment 668,411 649,664
Medical equipment 24,221,474 22,168,884
Computer equipment and software 1,571,307 1,329,456
Automobiles 100,573 91.591

38,757,030 35,381,129
Less: accumulated depreciation (20.517,227) (16,782.511)

Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $3,749,471 and $2,815,343 for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

NOTE 3 - NOTES PAYABLE

During 2012, the Company entered into a credit facility with a financial institution. The facility
consists of the following at December 31, 2014 and 2013:
2014 2013

Line of credit allowing for maximum borrowings of

$2,000,000. The line matures in June 2015 and is

secured by a deed of trust, the Company’s assets, and

a guaranty by RADS of America, LLC. Interest is

payable monthly at a variable rate (3.75% at

December 31, 2014). The loan agreement requires

that the Company maintain a minimum fixed charge

coverage ratio computed on a quarterly basis. § 2,000,000 $ 1,500,000

Note payable for purchase of property and equipment,
payable in monthly principal and interest installments
of $302,243. Interest is charged at a variable rate
(3.75% at December 31, 2014). All unpaid principal
and interest is due June 2019. The note is secured by
a deed of trust, the Company’s assets, and a guaranty
by RADS of America, LLC. 18.120.645 18.000.000

Total notes payable $ 20,120,645 $ 19,500,000
-10-
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MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2014 and 2013
NOTE 3 -NOTES PAYABLE (Continued)

Annual principal maturities of the facility are follows as of December 31, 2014:

Years Ending

December 31:
2015 $ 6,084,423
2016 4,084,423
2017 4,084,423
2018 4,084,423
2019 1,782,953

Thereafter -

$ 20,120,645

Total interest expense was $758,210 and $417,235 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

NOTE 4 - LEASES

The Company has entered into numerous noncancelable operating lease agreements for various
office and center facilities with lease terms expiring at various dates through the year 2023 as
follows:

Lease Expiration

Center Date
Belle Meade April 2021
Briarville October 2016
Clarksville September 2017
Cool Springs March 2022
Hendersonville February 2023
Hermitage June 2019
Midtown July 2018
Mt. Juliet April 2020
Murfreesboro October 2020
Nashville December 2023
Smyrna December 2023
St. Thomas West July 2024

Rent expense under these leases for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 totaled $2,578,551
and $2,129,533, respectively.

-11-
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MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2014 and 2013
NOTE 4 - LEASES (Continued)

Minimum lease commitments are as follows at December 31, 2014:

Years Ending

December 31:
2015 $ 2,363,095
2016 2,404,526
2017 2,404,106
2018 2,298,617
2019 1,766,565
Thereafter 3.703.798

$ 14,940,707
NOTE 5 - STATE INCOME TAXES

The provision for state income taxes consists of the following at December 31, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Current $ 376,130 $ 439,927
Deferred S— —— o
376,130 $ 439927

The provision for state income taxes differs from the computed amount at the applicable state
statutory rate due primarily to income subject to self employment taxes being exempt from tax for
Tennessee excise tax purposes.

Deferred state tax assets and liabilities are not significant at December 31, 2014 and 2013.

NOTE 6 - CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS

The Company has entered into a billing and management agreement with PhyData, LLC (a related
party) whereby the Company pays PhyData, LLC an agreed upon percentage of collections. During
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recognized expense under this

agreement totaling $2,645,060 and $2,387,516, respectively. Amounts payable to PhyData, LLC
totaled $568,207 and $398,773 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

-12-
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MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 6 - CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The Company has entered into a professional services agreement with Advanced Diagnostic
Imaging, P.C. (a related party) and Midstate Radiology Inc. (a related party) to provide reading and
interpretation services based on a percentage of collections. During the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013, the Company recognized expense under this agreement totaling $7,258,940 and
$5,277,467, respectively. Amounts payable to Advanced Diagnostic Imaging, P.C. and Midstate
Radiology Inc. totaled $1,361,567 and $663,186 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Company has entered into an employee leasing agreement with NOL, LLC (a related party) to
provide all employees for the Company. Under terms of the agreement, the Company reimburses
NOL, LLC all costs associated with the applicable employees. During the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013, the Company recognized expense under the agreement totaling $9,866,822 and
$8,252,615, respectively. Amounts payable to NOL, LLC totaled $406,566 and $375,784 as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

NOTE 7 - PROFIT SHARING PLAN

The Company has a combination profit sharing and 401(k) plan (the “Plan”), which covers all
employees who arc at least age 18 and have completed one year of service. The Plan provides for
safe harbor, discretionary matching, and discretionary profit sharing contributions. For the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recognized related expenses totaling $570,780
and $437,969, respectively.

NOTE 8 —- CHARITY CARE ASSISTANCE

The Company provides certain services to individuals who do not have insurance or other means to
pay for the services received. These services represent charity care and are not reported as revenue.
The cost of charity care provided by the Company during the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013 was approximately $945,000 and $770,000, respectively.

NOTE 9 — CONCENTRATIONS

The Company maintains cash balances at financial institutions whose accounts are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to statutory limits. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
the Company’s depositor accounts exceeded such insurance limits by approximately $3,300,000 and
$1,750,000, respectively.

NOTE 10 - RISK OF LOSS

The Company is exposed to various risks of loss including medical malpractice, general liability,
errors and omissions, and other situations. The Company purchases commercial insurance for the
significant risks of loss. There have been no significant claims during the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013.

-13-
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Attachment C
Contribution to the Orderly Development of Health Care - 7.(b)

Facility License, ACR Accreditation
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ACR

AMERICAN COLLEGE OF

RADIOLOGY
American Qollege of Radiology

Magnetic Resonance Imaging Services of

Premier Radiology

980 Professional Park Drive
Ste E

Clarksville, Tennessee 37040

were surveyed by the
Committee on MRI Accreditation of the
Commission on Quality and Safety

The following magnet was approved

General Electric SIGNA LX 2002

For

Head, Spine, MSK
Accredited from:

May 15, 2014 through August 17, 2017

(s f ol 1 Ful - Ulingogon, MD

CHAIRMAN, COMMITTEE ON MRI ACCREDITATION PRESIDENT, AMERICAN COLLEGE OF RADIOLOGY

MRAP# 06249-01
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Attachment D

Copy of Published Public Notice
Letter of Intent
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Attachment D

Copy of Published Public Notice
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State of Tennessee

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, o Floor

502 Deaderick Street

Nashville, TN 37243
www.tn.gov/hsda Phone: 615-741-2364 Fax: 615-741-9884

LETTER OF INTENT

The Publication of Intent is to be published in the _L€af-Chronicle which is a newspaper
(Name of Newspaper)
of general circulation in_Montgomery . Tennessee, on or before 05/02 ,2016
(County) (Month / day) (Year)
for one day.

This is to provide official notice to the Health Services and Development Agency and all interested parties, in
accordance with T.C.A. § 68-11-1601 ef seq., and the Rules of the Health Services and Development Agency,

at;
Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC d/b/a Premier Radiology, an existing outpatient diagnostic center (ODC) provider,

(Name of Applicant) (Facility Type-Existing)
owned by: _Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC with an ownership type of limited liability company
and to be managed by: PhyData, LLC intends to file an application for a Certificate of Need

for [PROJECT DESCRIPTION BEGINS HERE]: the establishment of a new ODC, the initiation of MRI services and the
acquisition of a fixed MRI unit, all at 980 Professional Park Drive, Suite E in Clarksville, TN, 37040 (Montgomery

Co.). As part of the project, 1,072 square feet of medical office space will be renovated to house one fixed MRI.

No other diagnostic imaging services are proposed at this time. Total project costs are estimated to be $941,648.

The anticipated date of filing the application is: May 4 2016.

The contact person for this project is_Robert M, Limyansky Partner
(Contact Name) (Title)
who may be reached at: The Strategy House, Inc. A 71 Vickery Street
(Company Name) (Address)
Roswell GA 30075 770 /__394-8465
o (City) _ (State) (Zip Code) (Area Code / Phone Number)
Nl A B e
T T S 7-2 Cl e rlimyansky@thestrategyhouse.net
= (Signature) (Date) (E-mail Address)

The Letter of Intent must be filed in triplicate and received between the first and the tenth day of the month. If the
last day for filing is a Saturday, Sunday or State Holiday, filing must occur on the preceding business day. File
this form at the following address:

Health Services and Developrnent Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, 9" Floor
502 Deaderick Street
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

il A Tl B e ™l ol Tl O T Tl G B e Tl el D e TRl ol B e Tl D e ™l R B e Tl ol D e ™l O &

The published Letter of Intent must contain the following statement pursuant to T.C.A. § 68-11-1607(c)(1). (A) Any health
care institution wishing to oppose a Certificate of Need application must file a written notice with the Health Services and
Development Agency no later than fifteen (15) days before the regularly scheduled Health Services and Development
Agency meeting at which the application is originally scheduled; and (B) Any other perscn wishing to oppose the
application must file written objection with the Health Services and Development Agency at or prior to the consideration of

HF51 (Rewsed 01/09/2013 - aII forms orior to this date are obsolete)
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SUPPLEMENTAL #1
THE - June 21, 2016
STATEGY . '11:06 am

2

AL

Hé’(ﬁr{{ffm}ﬁ‘ /‘Zd?ffiﬁ_? 71 Vickery Street
Roswell, Georgia 30075
Telephone 770-394-8465
Facsimile 770-394-5470

www.thestrategyhouse.net

June 20, 2016

Via Overnight Delivery

Mark A. Farber, Deputy Director

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, 9% Floor

502 Deaderick Street

Nashville, TN37243

RE: Certificate of Need Application Middle TN Imaging, LLC dba Premier
Radiology, CN1605-016

Establishment of New ODC and Replacement of Mobile MRI with Fixed MRI
Service

Dear Mr. Farber:

Thank you for your letter of May 12, 2016 requesting clarification or additional
discussion in regard to the CON application referenced above. Responses are provided

in triplicate.
1. Section A, Applicant Profile, Item 4

Please identify the members of NOL, LLC and each member’s percentage of
ownership.

What types of organizations are St. Thomas Health and Murfreesboro Imaging
Partner, e.g., non-profit corporations, LLC, etc.?

Response: There are over 25 NOL members, none of which have ownership
greater than 5%. Saint Thomas Health Services is a Tennessee nonprofit
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corporation and Murfreesboro Imaging Partners is a Tennessee limited liability
company (LLC).

2. Section A, Applicant Profile Item 5

Please provide a brief overview of the manager’s management and clinical
leadership team.

Response: As indicated on Bates page 71 of the CON application, the
management of PhyData includes business, billing, financial, coding,
credentialing, legal, and medical personnel, including several board certified
radiologists. Clinical decisions are primarily directed by the radiologists that
staff the various MTI locations.

3. Section A, Applicant Profile, Item 6

The current lease agreement indicates that the applicant may occupy and use the
premises with a mobile MRI unit. Since the applicant proposes to initiate MRI
services with a fixed MRI unit a fully executed revised lease or option to lease
must be filed that acknowledges this change.

Response: As indicated in Attachment 1, the existing space can be used for a
fixed MRI unit.

4. Section B, Applicant Profile, Item 13

The response is noted. Will professional fees for MRI interpretation services by
the MTT’s radiologists be reimbursed by the applicant? If billing separately under
their own provider certification/registration numbers, what assurances apply
such that the radiologists will hold Medicare and Medicaid provider certification
and will be contracted with the same TennCare MCO plans as the applicant?
Please briefly discuss the arrangements planned in this regard.

Response: As indicated on Bates page 44 of the CON application, for the most
part, professional fees for MRI interpretation services by MTI's radiologists will
be reimbursed by the applicant because most studies will be globally billed by
MTL In cases where it is required by law or contract that the professional
services are billed separately, the radiologists will bill for their own services and
MTTI will bill for the technical component of the MRI study only. In cases where
split billing is performed, the professional services agreement requires that the
radiology group participate with all insurance plans that MTI accepts.
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5. Section B, Project Description, Item II (Executive Summary of the Project)

Is it expected that the patient volumes for the proposed ODC will essentially
transfer from the mobile MRI unit? If so please explain the plans for the mobile
unit including the locations it is expected to serve, the estimated patient volumes,
and a discussion explaining how those volumes will be attained, and the impact
to existing providers surrounding those locations.

Is it expected that the staffing for the mobile unit essentially will transfer to the
proposed project? If so please explain how the mobile unit will be staffed.

Response: In a freestanding or ODC environment, a mobile MRI unit is often
used until patient volume builds to the point where a fixed unit can be
supported five or six days per week. Compared to the mobile MRI unit now
serving Clarksville, the fixed MRI unit will provide increased hours of operation.
Therefore, existing referring physicians are expected to continue to refer patients
to the fixed MRI unit.

As indicated in Attachment 2, the mobile MRI unit received CON authorization
to serve 19 Middle Tennessee counties: Bedford, Cannon, Cheatham, Coffee,
Davidson, DeKalb, Dickson, Macon, Maury, Montgomery, Putnam, Robertson,
Rutherford, Smith, Sumner, Trousdale, Warren, Williamson, and Wilson
counties. The mobile MRI unit will continue to operate within this original CON
authorization.

For competitive reasons, site-specific volume projections for the mobile MRI unit
will not be provided. Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC respectfully declines to
engage in a re-evaluation of the need for the existing mobile MRI unit. Suffice it
to say that the 19 authorized counties have a 2016 population of 2,273,954
persons and are expected to increase 7.0% by 2020 compared to a 4.3% growth
rate for the state overall! In theory, the mobile MRI unit could serve each of
these 19 authorized counties one day per month and still remain in compliance
with its CON authorization.

Historical and projected mobile MRI unit procedures for existing sites are
discussed in response to Question 15, below. In 2015, 2,609 procedures were
performed on the mobile MRI unit. Based on actual experience through April
2016, annualized procedures are projected to increase 47.3% to 3,843.

1 Source: The University of Tennessee Center for Business and Economic Research, Population Projection
Data Files, reassembled by the Tennessee Department of Health, Division of Policy, Planning and
Assessment.
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e Volumes for the first four months of 2016 are already at half the volume
for the entire 12 months of 2015.

e Volumes for the first four months of 2016 are already 81% greater than the
volume for the first four months of 2015.

e Based on the first four months of 2016 alone, conservatively assuming no
further growth, the mobile MRI will be operating at 133% capacity based
on 2,880 procedures annually.

e In conclusion, year-to-date 2016 volumes reveal significant growth over
prior year and even month-to-month volumes. Therefore, CON

projections are conservative based on YTD2016 actual experience.

Middle Tennessee Imaging Historical Utilization-Mobile Service

Location 2015 2016 2015 2016
(Full Year) | (Annualized) | (Full Year) | (Annualized)
Clarksville 2,319 2,514 88.9% 65.4%
Hendersonville 34 690 1.3% 18.0%
Briarville Rd/Madison 256 639 9.8% 16.6%
Total 2,609 3,843 100.0% 100.0%

Source: MT1 internal records

As documented above, 84.2% of the growth, or 1,039 procedures, occurred
outside of Clarksville. Upon approval of the fixed MRI unit, similar growth is
expected to come from other portions of the 19-county authorized service area.

The impact to existing providers will be minimal, as they are very highly utilized
- 86.4% overall and 97.1% excluding physician-owned MRIs which serve a
restricted patient population. Please refer to the response to Question 14, below.

With regard to staffing, only the mobile MRI unit tractor trailer driver stays with
the mobile unit. Each mobile site has its own radiology techs and office staff. In
Clarksville, the radiology techs and office staff serving the mobile MRI unit will
transition to the fixed MRI unit.
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6. Section B, Project Description, Item ILA. and Item ILE

Item II.E.1

The description of the 1.5 Tesla replacement fixed MRI unit is noted. When was
the unit manufactured and what measures will be taken to refit or upgrade the
unit prior to patient use?

Response: As indicated on Bates page 15 of the CON application, a CON
decision is not expected until the summer of 2016 (specific review calendar still
pending). MTI cannot commit to the actual purchase of the 1.5 Tesla
replacement fixed MRI unit until that time. Therefore, the seller cannot commit
to provide a specific MRI unit in May 2016. After CON approval, MTI's order
will be executed and the specific unit will be selected from available inventory.
Therefore, refit or upgrade requirements, if any, are not known at this time.
However, MTI will commit that the unit purchased will be accredited by the
American College of Radiology as is customary with other MTI patient
diagnostic equipment.

7. Section C, Need, Item 1 (Project Specific Criteria-Outpatient Diagnostic Center
1.)

Please expand Exhibit IA on page 19 by including Years 2012-2014.

Please expand Exhibit 1B on page 19 by including mobile MRI procedures for
Years 2017 and 2018.

What is the driving distance between the applicant’s site and St. Thomas
Midtown Hospital?

Response: Expanded tables (Exhibits 1A and 1B) are presented below. In
Exhibit 1A, 2014 represents only December data, under new ownership. In
Exhibit 1B, 2016 mobile estimates have been increased from 2,589 to 3,500 based
on more recent year-to-date experience. 2017 and 2018 mobile projections
assume 10 procedures per day over 260 days per year.

According to Google Maps, the driving distance between the applicant’s site and
St. Thomas Midtown Hospital is 46.6 miles.
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EXHIBIT 1A
PREMIER RADIOLOGY — CLARKSVILLE SITE
MRI HISTORICAL AND PROJECTED UTILIZATION, 2015-2020
POPULATION GROWTH AT 2.0% PER YEAR

MRI Volumes JAR Interim

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Procedures 1,649 1,525 65| 2,638| 2,589 2,817
Units 1 1 1 1 1 1

Proc/Unit 1,649 1,525 65| 2,5638| 2,589 2,817
Sources: TN ODC JARs (Dec. 2014 only, under new ownership), MTI internal data

EXHIBIT 1B
APPLICANT’S HISTORICAL AND PROJECTED MRI UTILIZATION (PROCEDURES)

% Projected || Projected
2013 | 2014 2015 change 2016 Year 1 Year 2
13-15 (est) (2017) (2017)

Mobile MRI 65 2,538 3,500 2,600 2,600
Procedures | N/A | (1 mo.) | (full yr) N/A (revised)
Fixed MRI
Procedures 2,817 2,873
as a % of
2,880 MRI 97.8% 99.8%
standard

Sources: TN ODC JARs (Dec.2014 only, under new ownership), MTI internal data

8. Section C, Need, Item 1 (Project Specific Criteria-Outpatient Diagnostic Center
1.)

Your response to this item is noted but does not answer the question. Please
identify the other MRI providers in the proposed service area and explain why
those services are not adequate and/or whether there are special circumstances
requiring additional services.

Response: Please refer to the response to Question 14, below. Existing MRI
providers are highly utilized - 86.4% overall and 97.1% excluding physician-
owned MRIs which serve a restricted patient population. Thus, the other MRI
providers in the proposed service area are not adequate to meet the needs of the
service area.

Furthermore, the existing mobile MRI unit has experienced tremendous growth
since its acquisition and start up in December 2014. In 2015, 2,609 procedures
were performed on the mobile MRI unit. Based on actual experience through
April 2016, annualized procedures are projected to increase 47.3% to 3,843.
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e Volumes for the first four months of 2016 are already at half the volume
for the entire 12 months of 2015.

e Volumes for the first four months of 2016 are already 81% greater than the
volume for the first four months of 2015.

e Based on the first four months of 2016 alone, conservatively assuming no
further growth, the mobile MRI will be operating at 133% capacity based
on 2,880 procedures annually.

e In conclusion, year-to-date 2016 volumes reveal significant growth over
prior year and even month-to-month volumes.  Therefore, CON
projections are conservative based on YTD2016 actual experience.

The proposed fixed MRI unit is necessary to accommodate this growth and to
reduce patient wait times. When patient MRI appointments reached out to six
weeks earlier this year, Premier increased the Clarksville hours of operation to 13
hours per day (7:00 am - 8:00 pm) plus Saturdays. Though still not ideal, this
reduced the scheduling backlog from six weeks to two weeks. Any further
increase in hours simply is not feasible.

9. Section C, Need, Item 1 (Project Specific Criteria-Magnetic Resonance Imaging
4.)

Please identify each of the three mobile MTI sites, and the 2015 MRI volumes at
each site.

Please discuss the locations that the mobile unit will travel, the expected MRI
volumes at those locations, and the impact on existing providers in the service
area of those locations.

Response: As indicated in Question 15, below, the three mobile MTI sites are
Clarksville, Hendersonville and Briarville Road/Madison. In 2015, 2,609
procedures were performed on the mobile MRI unit. Through April 2016,
annualized procedures are projected to increase 47.3% to 3,843. As documented
in the table at Question 15, 84.2% of the growth, or 1,039 procedures, occurred
outside of Clarksville. Upon approval of the fixed MRI unit, similar growth is
expected to come from other portions of the 19-county authorized service area.

For competitive reasons, site-specific volume projections for the mobile MRI unit
will not be provided. Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC respectfully declines to
engage in a re-evaluation of the need for the existing mobile MRI unit. Suffice it
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to say that the 19 authorized counties have a 2016 population of 2,273,954
persons and are expected to increase 7.0% by 2020 compared to a 4.3% growth
rate for the state overall.? In theory, the mobile MRI unit could serve each of
these 19 authorized counties one day per month and still remain in compliance
with its CON authorization.

10. Section C, Need, Item 1 (Project Specific Criteria-Magnetic Resonance Imaging
7.b.)

Constructions costs were provided but a verification letter that confirmed that
the physical environment will conform to applicable federal standards,
manufacturer’s specifications, and licensing agencies," requirements was not
included. Please provide such a letter.

Response: As an existing, operational outpatient imaging center, the physical
environment now conforms to applicable federal standards, manufacturer’s
specifications, and licensing agencies’ requirements. As indicated in Attachment
3, renovations to convert from mobile MRI services to fixed MRI services will
also conform to applicable federal standards, manufacturer’s specifications, and
licensing agencies’ requirements.

11. Section C, Need, Item 1 (Project Specific Criteria-Magnetic Resonance Imaging
7.g.)

Please provide copies of the existing hospital transfer agreements.

Response: As indicated at Bates page 231 of the CON application, a hospital
transfer agreement exists with four hospitals in the Saint Thomas Health
network.

12. Section C, Need, Item 1 (Project Specific Criteria-Magnetic Resonance Imaging
9.)

Your response to this item is noted. Please provide a response to each standard
a. -d.

2 Source: The University of Tennessee Center for Business and Economic Research, Population Projection
Data Files, reassembled by the Tennessee Department of Health, Division of Policy, Planning and
Assessment.
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Response: Principle No. 2 in the State Health Plan states that, "Every citizen
should have reasonable access to health care.” The HSDA may decide to give
special consideration to an applicant:

a. Who is offering the service in a medically underserved area as designated by
the United States Health Resources and Services Administration;

Response: This project qualifies for special consideration under this criterion.
According to https://tn.gov, the whole of Houston, Montgomery, Robertson
and Stewart counties in Tennessee are medically underserved areas.

b. Who is a "safety net hospital" or a "children's hospital" as defined by the
Bureau of TennCare Essential Access Hospital payment program; or

Response: This project does not qualify for special consideration under this
criterion.

c. Who provides a written commitment of intention to contract with at least one
TennCare MCO and, if providing adult services, to participate in the
Medicare program; or

Response: This project qualifies for special consideration under this criterion.
The applicant contracts with four TennCare MCOs (see application, Bates
page 8) and participates in the Medicare program (see application, Bates page
7).

d. Who is proposing to use the MRI unit for patients that typically require
longer preparation and scanning times (e.g., pediatric, special needs, sedated,
and contrast agent use patients). The applicant shall provide in its application
information supporting the additional time required per scan and the impact
on the need standard.

Response: This project does not qualify for special consideration under this
criterion.

13. Section C, Need. Item 4 (Demographics)

Your response to this item is noted. Using population data from the Department of
Health, enrollee data from the Bureau of TennCare, and demographic information from
the US Census Bureau, please complete the following table and include data for each
county in your proposed service area.
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Response: See table, below. The Tennessee portion of the service area is
projected to grow at rates greater than the state overall.

TN
Variable Montgomery | Robertson | Houston | Stewart | Service Tennessee
I Area
Current Year (2016), Age 18,531 10,629 1,854 2,883 33,897 1,091,516
65+
Projected Year (2020), 22,487 12,957 2,134 3,357 40,935 1,266,295
Age 65+
Age 65+, % Change 21.3% 21.9% 15.1% 16.4% 20.8% 16.0%
Age 65+, % Total (PY) 10.1% 16.5% 23.3% 23.3% 12.6% 17.8%
CY, Total Population 201,598 73,796 8,869 14,011 | 298,274 | 6,812,005
PY, Total Population 221,620 78,659 9,157 14,402 | 323,838 | 7,108,031
Total Pop. % Change 9.9% 6.6% 3.2% 2.8% 8.6% 4.3%
TennCare Enrollees 35,466 14,382 2,125 3,130 55,103 1,534,367
TennCare Envollees as a 17.6% 19.5% 24.0% 22.3% 18.5% 22.5%
% of Total Population
(2016)
Median Age (2014) 30.3 38.4 43.0 43.8 N/A 38.6
Median Household $50,693 $53,748 $38,637 | $41,089 N/A $44,621
Income (2014)
Population % Below 13.9% 13.4% 19.1% 17.5% N/A 18.3%
Poverty Level (2014)

14. Section C, Need. Item 5 (Historical MRI Utilization in Applicant’s Primary
Service Area)

The table is noted. Please expand the information provided by adding the
columns indicated in the table below. For assistance or questions, please contact
Alecia Craighead, Stat III at 615-253-2782.

Response: See table, below. Existing MRI providers are highly utilized - 86.4%
overall and 97.1% excluding physician-owned MRIs which serve a restricted
patient population.
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Utilization of Existing MRI Providers Located in Proposed Service Area
MRI Provider Type Current Distance 2012 | 2013 2014 2014
Name (PO, ODC, | # units from procedures/2,880
Hospital, (specify Applicant procedures/unit
HODC, if (in miles) (%0)
RPO,H- mobile)
Imaging)
Houston Co. Hosp. Hospital 0 33.9 miles 223 74 N/A! N/A!
Clarksville Imaging ODC 1 2.6 miles | 4,119 | 4,276 3,426 119.0%
Gateway Hospital 2 0.5 miles 5242 | 4,432 4,617 80.2%
Mobile MRI RPO 1 N/A 1,129 | 1,404 | 2,538 88.1%
(mobile)
Premier Med. PO 1 0.4 miles | 1426 | 1,386 1,453 50.5%
TOA PO 1 69miles | 1,915 | 1,932 1,976 68.6%
Northcrest MC Hospital 1 28.3 miles | 2,780 | 3,232 3,407 118.3%
TOTAL 7 16,834 | 16,736 | 17,417 86.4%
Total Excluding
“PO” (Restricted 5 13,493 | 13,418 | 13,988 97.1%
Patient Population)

"Houston County Hospital stopped service in 2013 per Medical Equipment Registry
22015 data substituted for 2014 Mobile MRI because of only 1 month of data in 2014 (first year)

15. Section C, Need, Item 6 (Applicant’s Historical and Projected Utilization)
Your response to this item is noted. Please complete the following charts:

Mobile MRI/Middle Tennessee Imaging Historical and Projected Utilization-

Clarksville
Type Of 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Service
Mobile 1,649 1,525 65* 2,538 3,500 2,600 2,600
Fixed N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2,817 2,873

*Operational for one month only (December), under new ownership

Middle Tennessee Imaging Projected Utilization-Mobile Service

Location 2017 2018

Location 1

Location 2

Etc.

Total

Response: As indicated previously in Attachment 2, the mobile MRI unit
received CON authorization to serve 19 Middle Tennessee counties: Bedford,
Cannon, Cheatham, Coffee, Davidson, DeKalb, Dickson, Macon, Maury,
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Montgomery, Putnam, Robertson, Rutherford, Smith, Sumner, Trousdale,
Warren, Williamson, and Wilson counties. The mobile MRI unit will continue to
operate within this original CON authorization.

For competitive reasons, site-specific volume projections for the mobile MRI unit
will not be provided. Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC respectfully declines to
engage in a re-evaluation of the need for the existing mobile MRI unit. Suffice it
to say that the 19 authorized counties have a 2016 population of 2,273,954
persons and are expected to increase 7.0% by 2020 compared to a 4.3% growth
rate for the state overall® In theory, the mobile MRI unit could serve each of
these 19 authorized counties one day per month and still remain in compliance
with its CON authorization.

In 2015, 2,609 procedures were performed on the mobile MRI unit. Based on
actual experience through April 2016, annualized procedures are projected to
increase 47.3% to 3,843.

e Volumes for the first four months of 2016 are already at half the volume
for the entire 12 months of 2015.

e Volumes for the first four months of 2016 are already 81% greater than the
volume for the first four months of 2015,

e Based on the first four months of 2016 alone, conservatively assuming no
further growth, the mobile MRI will be operating at 133% capacity based
on 2,880 procedures annually.

e In conclusion, year-to-date 2016 volumes reveal significant growth over
prior year and even month-to-month volumes. Therefore, CON
projections are conservative based on YTD2016 actual experience.

3 Source: The University of Tennessee Center for Business and Economic Research, Population Projection
Data Files, reassembled by the Tennessee Department of Health, Division of Policy, Planning and
Assessment.
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Middle Tennessee Imaging Historical Utilization-Mobile Service
Location 2015 2016 2015 2016
(Full Year) | (Annualized) | (Full Year) | (Annualized)
Clarksville 2,319 2,514 88.9% 65.4%
Hendersonville 34 690 1.3% 18.0%
Briarville Rd/Madison 256 639 9.8% 16.6%
Total 2,609 3,843 100.0% 100.0%

Source: MTI internal records

As documented above, 84.2% of the growth, or 1,039 procedures, occurred
outside of Clarksville. Upon approval of the fixed MRI unit, similar growth is
expected to come from other portions of the 19-county authorized service area.

16. Section C, Economic Feasibility Items 1 (Project Costs Chart)

The total on Line D. is slightly off. Please make the necessary corrections and
submit a revised Project Costs Chart.

Response: The four-cent rounding error has been corrected. Please refer to
Attachment 4.

17. Section C, Project Forecast Completion Chart

The Agency will not hear this application any sooner than August 2016. Please
make the applicable changes to the Initial Decision Date and submit a revised
Project Forecast Completion Chart.

Response: The date has been changed. Please refer to Attachment 5.
18. Equipment Registry or Annual Progress Reports

As far as the Annual Progress Reports, Saint Thomas Midtown Hospital
(CN1401-001) has a report due on June 1st.

Saint Thomas Medical Partners (CN1508-033) has completed its project involving
“changing ownership” of the MRI service on Elliston Place from Neurological
Surgeons. A Final Project Report must be submitted.

With regard to the Medical Equipment Registry, Saint Thomas Medical Partners
recently took control over what has been registered as Neurological Surgeons on
Elliston Place. Neurological Surgeon’s MRI has yet to have its registration
updated or 2015 utilizations reported.
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Response: Saint Thomas Medical Partners has no direct relationship to the
applicant in this project.

It is the applicant’s understanding, through Michael D. Brent of Bradley Arant
Boult Cummings, LLP, attorneys for Saint Thomas Medical Partners, that the
Annual Progress Reports were submitted around June 1st,

Thank you for the opportunity to present this supplemental information. A signed
affidavit is presented in Attachment 6.

Warm regards,
THE STRATEGY HOUSE, INC.

/ PP

s
\
\——
|

Robert M. Limyansky
Partner

attachments
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June 13, 2016

VIA Email (ryan.brown@premierradiology.com)

Middle Tennessee Imaging, P.C.
d/b/a Premier Radiology

28 White Bridge Road, Suite 316
Attn: Ryan Brown, General Counsel

Re: Lease of Space at 980 Professional Park, Suite E,
Clarksville, Tennessee (the "Premises")
Dear Mr. Brown,

This letter shall serve as written notice that Premier Radiology is permitted to use the Premises
for the purpose of operating a fixed site MRI machine if Premier Radiclogy is successful in obtaining the
certificate of need that it is applying for that would allow for the operation of a fixed site MRl machine
at the Premises. This letter is to clarify that the language in the lease with respect to the Premises
between Progressive Land Corporation and Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC that describes the use of the
Premises as allowing for a mobile MRI machine will not restrict Premier Radiology from operating a fixed
site magnet.

if you have any questions, please let me know.

Best Regards,

Progressive Land Corporation

Vg e —

fJohn Stanton, M.D., Member
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Revision: Original

Clarksville MRI
Clarksville
Clarksville, TN 37206

June @b/ 20461 Studio, LLC
11:% y in Street, Suite A-1

Nagﬁ\./ille, TN 37206
P: 6153205000 ¢ F:

Printed On: 6/16/16

Please find enclosed industry standard sectional Division pricing breakdown on the above referenced project as you
requested. All work will be completed in conformance with applicable federal standards, manufacturer's
specifications, and licensing agencies’ requirements.

Division
01 General Conditions
02 Site Work
03 Concrete
04 Masonry
05 Steel
06 Carpentry
07 Moisture & Thermal Protection
08 Doors, Windows & Glass
09 Finishes
10 Specialities
12 Furnishings
15 Mechanical
16 Electrical
Total

Cost/Sq. Foot (Sq Ft): 1,072

Total

$21,950.20

$4,155.00
$6,030.00
$4,522.50
$1,507.50
$2,513.51
$3,517.50
$1,152.38

$36,183.02

$0.00

$10,050.00
$128,137.50
$40,199.99
$259,919.10

$242 .46

We appreciate the opportunity to be included in this project, if you have any questions, please feel free to call.

Thank you,

Manley Seale
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AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF DAVIp Sen

NAME OF FACILITY: MIDPLE  TENNESSEE IMACLING. 1oL dbo FPREMIEL
RADIM(J(ZY/ CN [ es —0)6

l,  _MARK  GAW , after first being duly sworn, state under oath that | am the
applicant named in this Certificate of Need application or the lawful agent thereof, that |

have reviewed all of the supplemental information submitted herewith, and that it is true,

accurate, and complete.

7
h Vg S ,//‘/‘“‘ /z:m)
Signature/Title

Sworn to and subscribed before me, a NokCy._Ppblic, this the _ 1 & Hday of JWNE  opjC

witness my hand at office in the County of “-\ﬁm&u—c@’b’\ , State of Tennessee.

N T
{1:}”{}-( { 1;_.4\_,@/\@&@&;%/;«- -
NOTARY PUBLIC Q

My commission expires {7/( , X077 .
HF-0043 Wy,
NN onN BRy, ‘e,

Revised 7/02 SofXe,
S sme 2
- OF A -
- TENNESSEE . =
- NOTARY -
- PUBLIC s
P $
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Foabheare atiiors _
71 Vickery Street
Atlanta, Georgia 30075
Telephone 770-394-8465
Facsimile 770-394-5470
www.thestrategyhouse.net

June 29, 2016

Via Hand Delivery

Mark A. Farber, Deputy Director

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, 9t Floor

502 Deaderick Street

Nashville, TN37243

RE: Certificate of Need Application Middle TN Imaging, LLC dba Premier
Radiology, CN1605-016

Establishment of New ODC and Replacement of Mobile MRI with Fixed
MRI Service

Dear Mr. Farber:

Thank you for your letter of June 24, 2016 requesting clarification or additional
discussion in regard to the CON application referenced above. Responses are
provided in triplicate.

1. Section A, Applicant Profile, Item 4

It is understood that no member of NOL, LLC has an ownership interest of
5% of greater; however, please identify the members of NOL, LLC and each
member’s percentage of ownership. Additionally, please provide the same
information for Murfreesboro Imaging Partners, LLC.

Response: The members of NOL, LLC and each member’s percentage of
ownership are as follows.
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Percentage Ownership (this entity
in total owns 42.15% of Middle
Name of NOL Member Tennessee Imaging, LLC)
Alarcon, John J. 3.759%
Arevalos, Enrique 3.759%
Blount, Steve 3.759%
Burcham, Stan 3.759%
Calendine, Chad 3.759%
Cian, Michael 3.759%
Couden, Michael 3.759%
Cunneely, Kevin 3.759%
Edwards, Byard 3.759%
Friday, Michael 3.759%
Gordon, Jonathan 3.759%
Harney, lantha 3.759%
Huggett, Jeff 3.759%
King, James 3.759%
Levitt, Michael 3.759%
MacCurdy, Joe 3.759%
Metzman, Michael 3.759%
Moreland, Michael 1.880%
Nau, Paul 3.759%
Parikh, Viraj 3.759%
Sharma, Vineet 3.759%
Shaba, Steve 3.759%
Soble, Marc 3.759%
Spellman, Michael 3.759%
Thorstad, Brett 3.759%
Williams, Jeff 3.759%
Wunder, Dan 3.759%
Gaw, Mark 0.188%
Sweeney, Joy 0.188%

The members of Murfreesboro Imaging Partners, LLC and each member’s
percentage of ownership are as follows.



SUPPLEMENTAL #2

Mark Farber, Deputy Director Junel2ne 21816
Health Services and Development Agency 11:44 am Page3
Percentage Ownership (this entity
Name of Murfreesboro Imaging in total owns 3.99% of Middle
Partners Member Tennessee Imaging, LLC)
Dame, Eric 9.09%
Green, Eric 9.09%
Haynes, Scott 9.09%
Johnson, Richard 9.09%
Klumpe, Marynelle 9.09%
Menke, Paul 9.09%
Moss, Max 9.09%
Pope, Stan 9.09%
Smith, Bretton 9.09%
Thorburn, Jerald 9.09%
Mullen, Stanley 9.09%

2. Section A, Applicant Profile Item 5

Your response to this item is noted. Please describe the level of experience
PhyData has in managing outpatient diagnostic centers (ODCs) including
how many ODCs PhyData currently manages. Please also identify the
members of PhyData’s management and clinical leadership team.

Response: PhyData currently provides billing and management services
for eleven ODCs. PhyData has been managing ODCs (or imaging centers
before ODCs existed) for many years (since 1998). All of the ODCs that
PhyData manages are owned by Middle Tennesee Imaging, LLC d/b/a
Premier Radiology. The members of PhyData’s management team include
James King, M.D. (President), Chad Calendine, M.D. (CEO), Michael
Moreland (Administrator), Mark Gaw, CPA (CFO), Ryan Brown, JD
(General Counsel), and Len Shepard (Billing Director). PhyData has an
executive committee (Board of Directors) that would address any clinical
matters that consists of seven radiologists including Dr. King, Dr.
Calendine, Dan Wunder, M.D., Paul Nau, M.D., Steven Blount, M.D., Byard
Edwards, M.D., and Jetff Huggett, M.D. All of these individuals have been
practicing medicine or working in their areas of healthcare management for
over 15 years.

3. Section C, Need, Item 1 (Project Specific Criteria-Outpatient Diagnostic
Center 1.)

Should the last column of Exhibit 1B be titled “Projected Year 2 (2018)"?
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Response: That is correct. The last column of Exhibit 1B should be titled
“Projected Year 2 (2018)”. The correction to Exhibit 1B is presented below.

ExHIBIT 1B
APPLICANT’S HISTORICAL AND PROJECTED MRI UTILIZATION (PROCEDURES)

Y% Projected Projected
2013 2014 2015 change 2016 Year 1 Year 2
'13-15 (est) (2017) (2018)

Mobile MRI 65 2,538 3,500 2,600 2,600
Procedures | N/A | (1 mo.) | (full yr) N/A (revised)
Fixed MRI
Procedures 2,817 2,873
as a % of
2,880 MRI 97.8% 99.8%
standard

Sources: TN ODC JARs (Dec.2014 only, under new ownership), MTl internal data

4. Section C, Orderly Development, Item 2. (Positive and/or Negative
Effects of the Proposal on the Health Care System)

The mobile unit is expected to perform 2,514 scans at the Clarksville site in
2016. The applicant projects that the proposed fixed unit will perform 2,817
scans in 2017 at the Clarksville site. It appears that the majority of the
volume currently realized by the mobile unit will transfer to the fixed unit,
which should result in a significant negative impact to the utilization of the
mobile unit. Yet, the applicant projects that the mobile unit will perform
2,600 scans in 2017. Please explain in detail how the mobile unit can attain
this volume level and not be negatively impacted by the proposed fixed
unit.

Response: Based on our knowledge of the market and our access to 19
Middle Tennessee counties, we believe there is more than enough volume
to fill the mobile unit in addition to the proposed fixed site in Clarksville.

The mobile MRI was acquired and began operating under new ownership
in December 2014. In 2015, its first full year of operation under new
ownership, the mobile MRI served over 1,000 more patients than under its
last full year of operation under its prior ownership. (2,538 procedures in
2015 versus 1,525 procedures in 2013, according to the ODC JARs.) In short,
Middle Tennessee Imaging has the brand recognition along with access to
sub-specialized radiologists to support continued MRI growth in the area.

As indicated in Exhibit 1B, above, the mobile MRI unit is on track to increase
by another 1,000 procedures in 2016 (3,500 annualized). The three mobile
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MTI sites are Clarksville, Hendersonville and Briarville Road/Madison. In
2015, 2,609 procedures were performed on the mobile MRI unit. Through
April 2016, annualized procedures are projected to increase 47.3% to 3,843.
Upon approval of the fixed MRI unit, similar growth is expected to come
from other portions of the 19-county authorized service area (Bedford,
Cannon, Cheatham, Coffee, Davidson, DeKalb, Dickson, Macon, Maury,
Montgomery, Putnam, Robertson, Rutherford, Smith, Sumner, Trousdale,
Warren, Williamson, and Wilson counties).

Middle Tennessee Imaging Historical Utilization-Mobile Service

Location 2015 2016 Procedure Percent
(Full Year) | (Annualized) | Growth Growth

Clarksville 2,319 2,514 195 8.4%

Hendersonville 34 690 656 1,929.4%

Briarville 256

Rd/Madison 639 383 149.6%

Total 2,609 3,843 1,234 47.3%

Source: MTI internal records

Single-day service sites such as Hendersonville and Briarville Rd/Madison,
can and have generated an average of 665 annualized procedures per
operating day. At this average, over five days, the mobile MRI can be
expected to average 3,325 procedures per week by adding three more
single-day sites throughout the mobile unit’s 19-county authorized service
area to replace the Clarksville site. This is well above the mobile MRI
projection of 2,600 procedures in 2017.

As stated previously, the 19 authorized counties have a 2016 population of
2,273,954 persons and are expected to increase 7.0% by 2020 compared to a
4.3% growth rate for the state overall.! In theory, the mobile MRI unit could
serve each of these 19 authorized counties one day per month and still
perform at least 2,600 procedures in 2017.

In conclusion, we believe there is more than sufficient demand across the
19 county mobile MRI service area to replace the fixed MRI volume. Thus,

1 Source: The University of Tennessee Center for Business and Economic Research, Population
Projection Data Files, reassembled by the Tennessee Department of Health, Division of Policy,
Planning and Assessment.



Mark Farber, Deputy Director June 29, 2016
Health Services and Development Agency Page 6

approval of the fixed MRI unit will not result in a “significant negative
impact” to the utilization of the mobile unit.

Thank you for the opportunity to present this supplemental information. A signed
affidavit is presented in Attachment 1.
Warm regards,

THE STRATEGY HOUSE, INC.

-~

Robert M. Limyansky
Partner

Attachment 1 - Affidavit
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AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF DAVIDSON

NAME OF FACILITY: MIDDLE TENNESSEE IMAGING, LLC, DBA PREMIER
RADIOLOGY, CN1605-016.

|, MARK GAW, after first being duly sworn, state under oath that | am the applicant named
in this Certificate of Need application or the lawful agent thereof, that | have reviewed all

of the supplemental information submitted herewith, and that it is true, accurate, and
complete.

X ’ i ’
W \f’“ﬂ BRAO ) ‘, VS 7/ /Z’ J CFo

STAIE

Signature/Title

-
-
OF =
TENNE SSEE -
NOTARY : -
PUBLIC 2 =
o .:.
]
\\

Sworn to and subscribed before me, a Notary Public, this the 28th day of JUNE, 2016, witne§§_.--\_
my hand at office in the County of DAVIDSON, State of Tennessee. J |

Qg/ » .ﬁm(ﬁ/ﬁ( | /

TARY PUBLIC

My commission expires N\\ Qﬁ A _ ,____.:

HF-0043

Revised 7/02



State of Tennessee

Health Services and Development Agency

Andrew Jackson Building, 9" Floor

502 Deaderick Street

Nashville, TN 37243

www.th.gov/hsda Phone: 615-741-2364 Fax: 615-741-9884

LETTER OF INTENT
The Publication of Intent is to be published in the _Leaf-Chronicle which is a newspaper
(Name of Newspaper)
of general circulation in _Montgomery , Tennessee, on or before 05/02 ,2016
(County) (Month / day) (Year)

for one day.

This is to provide official notice to the Health Services and Development Agency and all interested parties, in
accordance with T.C.A. § 68-11-1601 et seq., and the Rules of the Health Services and Development Agency,

that:
Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC d/b/a Premier Radiology, an existing outpatient diagnostic center (ODC) provider,

(Name of Applicant) (Facility Type-Existing)
owned by: Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC with an ownership type of limited liability company
and to be managed by: PhyData, LLC intends to file an application for a Certificate of Need

for [PROJECT DESCRIPTION BEGINS HERE]: the establishment of a new ODC, the initiation of MRI services and the
acquisition of a fixed MRI unit, all at 980 Professional Park Drive, Suite E in Clarksville, TN, 37040 (Montgomery

Co.). As part of the project, 1,072 square feet of medical office space will be renovated to house one fixed MRI.

No other diagnostic imaging services are proposed at this time. Total project costs are estimated to be $941,648.

The anticipated date of filing the application is: May 4 2016.

The contact person for this project is_Robert M. Limyansky Partner
(Contact Name) (Title)
who may be reached at:_The Strategy House, Inc. 71 Vickery Street
(Company Name) (Address)
Roswe@7 GA 30075 770 [__394-8465
(State) (Zip Code) (Area Code / Phone Number)
& /\)é& . H-29- 2O rlimyansky@thestrategyhouse.net
T © (Signature) (Date) (E-mail Address)

The Letter of Intent must be filed in triplicate and received between the first and the tenth day of the month. If the
last day for filing is a Saturday, Sunday or State Holiday, filing must occur on the preceding business day. File
this form at the following address:

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, 9" Floor
502 Deaderick Street
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

i S e Tl N ™l ol e Tl e ™ o A Tl el e ™l R A T el e Tl ! D e Tl ol A T ™l O ™

The published Letter of Intent must contain the following statement pursuant to T.C.A. § 68-11-1607(c)(1). (A) Any health
care institution wishing to oppose a Certificate of Need application must file a written notice with the Health Services and
Development Agency no later than fifteen (15) days before the regularly scheduled Health Services and Development
Agency meeting at which the application is originally scheduled; and (B) Any other person wishing to oppose the
application must file written objection with the Health Services and Development Agency at or prior to the consideration of

HF51 (Revised 01/09/2013 — all forms prior to this date are obsolete)



RULES
OF
HEALTH SERVICES AND DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

CHAPTER 0720-11
CERTIFICATE OF NEED PROGRAM — GENERAL CRITERIA

TABLE OF CONTENTS

0720-11-.01 General Criteria for Certificate of Need

0720-11-.01 GENERAL CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED. The Agency will consider the
following general criteria in determining whether an application for a certificate of need should be granted:

(1) Need. The health care needed in the area to be served may be evaluated upon the following factors:

(2)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)

®
(2)

The relationship of the proposal to any existing applicable plans;
The population served by the proposal;

The existing or certified services or institutions in the area;

The reasonableness of the service area;

The special needs of the service area population, including the accessibility to consumers,
particularly women, racial and ethnic minorities, TennCare participants, and low-income
groups;

Comparison of utilization/occupancy trends and services offered by other area providers;

The extent to which Medicare, Medicaid, TennCare, medically indigent, charity care patients
and Jow income patients will be served by the project. In determining whether this criteria is
met, the Agency shall consider how the applicant has assessed that providers of setvices which
will operate in conjunction with the project will also meet these needs.

(2) Economic Factors. The probability that the proposal can be economically accomplished and
maintained may be evaluated upon the following factors:

(@)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(B

Whether adequate funds are available to the applicant to complete the project;

The reasonableness of the proposed project costs;

Anticipated revenue from the proposed project and the impact on existing patient charges;
Participation in state/federal revenue programs;

Alternatives considered; and

The availability of less costly or more effective alternative methods of providing the benefits
intended by the proposal.

(3) Contribution to the Orderly Development of Adequate and Effective Healthcare Facilities and/or
Services. The contribution which the proposed project will make to the orderly development of an
adequate and effective health care system may be evaluated upon the following factors:

November, 2005



CERTIFICATE OF NEED PROGRAM — GENERAL CRITERIA CHAPTER 0720-11

(Rule 0720-11-.01, continued)

(2)

®
(c)

(d

The relationship of the proposal to the existing health care system (for example: transfer
agreements, contractual agreements for health services, the applicant’s proposed TennCare
participation, affiliation of the project with health professional schools);

The positive or negative effects attributed to duplication or competition;

The availability and accessibility of human resources required by the proposal, including
consumers and related providers;

The quality of the proposed project in relation to applicable governmental or professional
standards.

(4) Applications for Change of Site. When considering a certificate of need application which is limited
to a request for a change of site for a proposed new health care institution, The Agency may consider,
in addition to the foregoing factors, the following factors:

(a)

(b

©

Need. The applicant should show the proposed new site will serve the health care needs in the
area to be served at least as well as the original site. The applicant should show that there is
some significant legal, financial, or practical need to change to the proposed new site.

Economic factors. The applicant should show that the proposed new site would be at least as
economically beneficial to the population to be served as the original site.

Contribution to the orderly development of health care facilities and/or services. The applicant
should address any potential delays that would be caused by the proposed change of site, and
show that any such delays are outweighed by the benefit that will be gained from the change of
site by the population to be served.

(5) Certificate of need conditions. In accordance with T.C.A, § 68-11-1609, The Agency, in its discretion,
may place such conditions upon a certificate of need it deems appropriate and enforceable to meet the
applicable criteria as defined in statute and in these rules.

Authority: T.CA. §§ 4-5-202, 68-11-1605, and 68-11-1609. Administrative History: Original rule filed August
31, 2005, effective November 14, 2005.
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CERTIFICATE OF NEED
REVIEWED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
DIVISION OF POLICY, PLANNING AND ASSESSMENT
615-741-1954

DATE: April 30, 2016

APPLICANT: Middle Tennessee Imaging
d/b/a Premier Radiology
980 Professional Park Drive, Suite E
Clarksville, Tennessee 37040

CN1605-016

CONTACT PERSON: Robert Limyansky

COST: $941,648

In accordance with Section 68-11-1608(a) of the Tennessee Health Services and Planning Act of
2002, the Tennessee Department of Health, Division of Policy, Planning, and Assessment, reviewed
this certificate of need application for financial impact, TennCare participation, compliance with
Tennessee’s State Health Plan, and verified certain data. Additional clarification or comment
relative to the application is provided, as applicable, under the heading “Note to Agency Members.”

SUMMARY:

The applicant, Middle Tennessee Imaging, LLC d/b/a Premier Radiology, has filed a Certificate of
Need application for the establishment of a new outpatient diagnostic center (ODC), initiation of
MRI services and for the acquisition of a fixed MRI unit. The intended location is at 980
Professional Park Drive, Suite E in Clarksville, TN 37040, Montgomery County.

MTI operates 13 fixed MRI site locations providing medical imaging in the middle Tennessee area.
MTI also operates one mobile MRI unit located at the same address proposed in this application,
980 Professional Park Drive, Suite E in Clarksville, TN 37040, Montgomery County. The applicant
proposes to remove the Mobile MRI unit from the current location and establish a new Outpatient
Diagnostic Center, replace the mobile unit with a fixed MRI unit and provide MRI services while
expanding days of service from four days per week to five days per week.

Construction includes minor renovations to 1,072 square feet of the 1,253 square feet of medical
office space currently leased by the applicant. The total cost of the project will be approximately
$941,648, including the equipment costs of $250,000 and renovation costs of $541,101. Funding
for the project will be from MTI's cash reserves and cash equivalents.

GENERAL CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED

The applicant responded to all of the general criteria for Certificate of Need as set forth in the
document Tennessee’s State Health Plan.

NEED:

The applicant’s primary service area is Montgomery County with 67.2% of patients residing in the
county. The secondary service area consists of Stewart, Robertson, and Houston counties in
Tennessee; and Christian, Logan, Todd, and Trigg counties in Kentucky. These areas constitute
approximately 89.2% of the patients served for 2015.
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CON 87-CN-031 was originally granted a service area of 19 middle Tennessee counties: Bedford,
Cannon, Cheatham, Coffee, Davidson, DeKalb, Dickson, Macon, Maury, Montgomery, Putham,
Robertson, Rutherford, Smith, Sumner, Trousdale, Warren, Williamson, and Wilson. The mobile

unit will continue to operate within this area.

Tennessee Service Area

County 2016 Population | 2020 Population % of Increase/
(Decrease)

Primary

Montgomery 201,598 221,620 9.9%
Secondary

Stewart 96,675 14,402 2.8%
Robertson 73,795 78,659 6.6%
Houston 8,869 9,157 3.2%
Total 96,675 102,218 5.7%

Tennessee Population Projections 2000-2020, 2015 Revised UTCBER, Tennessee Department of Health

It is important to understand the history behind the mobile mri unit currently in service at the
Clarksville location. CON 87-CN-031 was originally granted to Horizon Mobile MRI d/b/a Tennessee
Imaging Alliance to provide mobile MRI services in 19 middle Tennessee counties. The ownership
and right to conduct business was later transferred to Mobile MRI Medical Services, LLC. Mabile
MRI Medical Services, LLC was granted an ODC license, # 58, in July 2011 and was authorized to
conduct mobile MRI services. The applicant acquired the ownership of Mobile MRI Medical
Services, LLC in September of 2014 and continues to operate the MRI unit at the Clarksville
address, four days per week. The applicant does not intend to voluntarily surrender CON 87-CN-
031A should this application be approved.

This application seeks to establish a new Outpatient Diagnostic Center, initiate MRI service, and
acquire a fixed MRI unit. The applicant contends that the project will improve access to outpatient
MRI services by implementing a fixed MRI unit operating at 5 days per week at the current location
and utilizing the mobile unit to better service the approved 19 county mobile service area. The
mobile unit is already committed to two other locations and cannot expand services any further in
Clarksville. Replacing the mobile with a fixed unit is the next step to meeting patient volume. The
applicant states that with access to the 19 counties approved for the mobile unit, a higher than
average service area population growth, and the large increase in procedure growth at the
Hendersonville and Briarsville Road locations, the mobile unit will perform at least 2600 procedures
in 2017. There should be no negative impact on the mobile unit utilization.

HSDA Service Area 2014 MRI Equipment Utilization

Facility County Fixed Procedures Mobile Procedures

Clarksville Imaging Center, LLC Montgomery 1 3,426 0 0
Gateway Medical Center Montgomery 2 4,617 0 0
Mobile MRI Services, LLC Montgomery 0 0 1 65
Premier Medical Group, P.C Montgomery 1 1,453 0 0
Tennessee Orthopaedic Alliance Montgomery 1 1,976 0 0
NorthCrest Medical Center Robertson 1 3,407 0 0

Total 6 14879 1 65

Source: HSDA 8/10/15 Equipment Utilization

Per the 2014 HSDA Equipment Registry, there were 6 fixed MRI units in operation in the applicant
service area with a total of 14,879 exams performed. The average annual exam volume per unit
was 2,480 exams. This represents 86% of the 2,880 minimum annual average per the MRI criteria
for providers in the service area.
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According to the 2015 Joint Annual report, 66% of the applicant’s patients resided in Montgomery
county, 7 % resided in Stewart county, 5% from Robertson county, with the balance made up
secondary Tennessee counties and from southern Kentucky.

TENNCARE/MEDICARE ACCESS:

The applicant participates in the four TennCare MCOs operating in the area, as well as the
Medicare program. The applicant projects $882,303 in gross Medicare revenue which is 17% of
total gross revenue and $1,117,233 in gross TennCare revenue which is 21.5% of total gross
revenue.

ECONOMIC FACTORS/FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY:

The Department of Health, Division of Policy, Planning, and Assessment have reviewed the Project
Costs Chart, the Historical Data Chart, and the Projected Data Chart to determine if they are
mathematically accurate and if the projections are based on the applicant’s anticipated level of
utilization. The location of these charts may be found in the following specific locations in the
Certificate of Need Application or the Supplemental material:

Project Costs Chart: The Project Costs Chart is located in Supplemental 1, attachment 4.
The total cost of the project is expected to be $941,648, including $250,000 for equipment, and
renovations costs of $541,101. The applicant intends to purchase a previously owned GE 1.5 tesla
to replace the mobile unit currently operating at the Clarksville location. Funding for the project will
be from MTI's cash reserves and cash equivalents.

Historical Data Chart: The Historical Data Chart is located on page 11 of Supplemental 2.
The applicant took ownership of the mobile unit in September of 2014, but had only one month of
operations yielding 65 exams. In 2015, the mobile unit performed 2,538 exams, with a net
revenue of $122,962. Per internal data, the applicant states that exam totals through April 2016
are already 81% greater than the volumes of the first four months on 2015, and annualized to be
3,843 in 2016.

Projected Data Chart: The Projected Data Chart is located on page 11 of Supplemental 2.

2013 2014 2015 2016 Projected Yr 1 | Projected Yr 2
(est) (2017) (2018)
Mobile MRI N/A 65 (1 mo) | 2538 3500 2600 2600
Fixed MRI 2817 2873
As a % of MRI 97.8% 99.8%
2880 standard

The applicant projects to perform over 3,500 exams on the mobile unit in 2016, and approximately
2,600 exams for 2017 and 2018.

The applicant expects to perform 2,817 and 2,873 exams on the fixed MRI unit in 2017 and 2018
with net revenues of $236,241 and $236,719 respectively.

The mobile unit is currently operating 4 days per week in Clarksville, as well as, operating at two
other locations on different days. Expanding services at the current location using the mobile is
not possible. The inability to expand the mobile services in Clarksville along with the relatively low
cost of installing a previously-owned MRI unit make this project the most logical and cost effective
alternative.
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The applicant plans to keep the current charges for services in place when the fixed unit is in
operation.

Facility MRI

Applicant $1,843
Clarksville Imaging Center $1,853
Gateway Medical Center $5,469
Premier Medical Group $1,285
Tennessee Orthopedic Alliance $1,615
Northcrest Medical Center $1,963

The applicant’s average gross charge, deduction and average net charges are provided below.

Per Procedure Year two
Average Gross Charge $1,843
Average Deduction $1,318
Average Net Charge $525

CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF HEALTHCARE:

The applicant currently leases space in a single story, multi-tenant medical office building. This
project will contribute to the orderly development of healthcare by utilizing the current leased
space for the fixed MRI. The leased space will require only minor renovations to accommodate the
fixed MRI. Once removed, the mobile MRI unit can be used to better serve the demands of the
approved 19 county service area. The days of operation will increase from four days per week to
five days per week. The existing staff and radiologists will remain at the site, with no further staff
changes expected. Radiologists are not onsite as the MRI images are securely routed through a
PACS (picture archiving and communication system) which allows interpretation by anyone in the
radiologist group. This type of image flow allows for quick turnaround times for study
interpretation with an average of 15 minute completion. Physician supervision will be performed
by Dr. Richard Berkman and Dr. Richard Rubinowicz, whom have offices in the same building.

The fixed MRI will be used for musculoskeletal, breast, body, cardiac, neuro, and vascular imaging
exams.

The fixed unit address is located across Dunlop Lane from Gateway Medical Center, which is
located adjacent to Interstate I-24. Clarksville Transit System provides regularly scheduled bus
service to the MTI location.

The applicant provides a list of all active managed care contracts on page 47 of the application.
QUALITY MONITORING: The current Mobile unit is accredited with the American College of
Radiology through August 2017. Applicant states on page 15 that the fixed MRI unit will be ACR
accredited.

SPECIFIC CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED

The applicant responded to all relevant specific criteria for Certificate of Need as set forth in the
document Tennessee’s State Health Plan.

OUTPATIENT DIAGNOSTIC CENTERS
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1.The need for outpatient diagnostic services shall be determined on a county by county basis
(with data presented for contiguous counties for comparative purposes) and should be
projected four years into the future using available population figures.

Tennessee Service Area
County 2016 Population | 2020 Population % of Increase/
(Decrease)

Primary

Montgomery 201,598 221,620 9.9%
Secondary

Stewart 96,675 14,402 2.8%
Robertson 73,795 78,659 6.6%
Houston 8,869 9157 3.2%
Total 96,675 102,218 5.7%

Projected Data Chart: The Projected Data Chart is located on page 11 of Supplemental 2.

2013 2014 2015 2016 Projected Yr 1 | Projected Yr 2
(est) (2017) (2018)
Mobile MRI N/A 65 (1 mo) | 2538 3500 2600 2600
Fixed MRI 2817 2873
As a % of MRI 97.8% 99.8%
2880 standard

2.Approval of additional outpatient diagnostic services will be made only when it is
demonstrated that existing services in the applicant’s geographical service area are not
adequate and/or there are special circumstances that require additional services.

The only other ODC in the service area is Clarksville Imaging Center which performed 3,928
MRI procedures with one fixed unit in 2014 per Joint Annual Report for ODC.

3. Any special needs and circumstances:
a. The needs of both medical and outpatient diagnostic facilities and services must be
analyzed.
This project replaces a mobile MRI unit with a fixed unit and increases the days of
service and creates a new ODC. There is only one other ODC in the service area.

b.  Other special needs and circumstances, which might be pertinent, must be analyzed.

c. The applicant must provide evidence that the proposed diagnostic outpatient services
will meet the needs of the potential clientele to be served.

1. The applicant must demonstrate how emergencies within the outpatient diagnostic
facility will be managed in conformity with accepted medical practice.

The applicant has arranged for two physicians located in the same building to oversee
MRI contrast administration, and for emergency situation. A stocked crash cart will be
maintained at all times.

2. The applicant must establish protocols that will assure that all clinical procedures
performed are medically necessary and will not unnecessarily duplicate

The applicant maintains policies to address medical necessity.
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MAGNETIC RESONANCE IMAGING SERVICES

Standards and Criteria

1.

Utilization Standards for non-Specialty MRI Units.

a.

An applicant proposing a new non-Specialty stationary MRI service should project
a minimum of at least 2160 MRI procedures in the first year of service, building to
a minimum of 2520 procedures per year by the second year of service, and
building to a minimum of 2880 procedures per year by the third year of service
and for every year thereafter.

The applicant projects 2817 and 2873 exams for years one and two respectively.

Providers proposing a new non-Specialty mobile MRI service should project a
minimum of at least 360 mobile MRI procedures in the first year of service per day
of operation per week, building to an annual minimum of 420 procedures per day
of operation per week by the second year of service, and building to a minimum of
480 procedures per day of operation per week by the third year of service and for
every year thereafter.

Not applicable.

An exception to the standard number of procedures may occur as new or
improved technology and equipment or new diagnostic applications for MRI units
are developed. An applicant must demonstrate that the proposed unit offers a
unique and necessary technology for the provision of health care services in the
Service Area.

Not applicable.

Mobile MRI units shall not be subject to the need standard in paragraph 1 b if
fewer than 150 days of service per year are provided at a given location.
However, the applicant must demonstrate that existing services in the applicant’s
Service Area are not adequate and/or that there are special circumstances that
require these additional services.

Not applicable.

Hybrid MRI Units. The HSDA may evaluate a CON application for an MRI “hybrid”
Unit (an MRI Unit that is combined/utilized with another medical equipment such
as a megavoltage radiation therapy unit or a positron emission tomography unit)
based on the primary purposes of the Unit.

Not applicable.

2. Access to MRI Units. All applicants for any proposed new MRI Unit should document that

the proposed location is accessible to approximately 75% of the Service Area’s population.
Applications that include non-Tennessee counties in their proposed Service Areas should
provide evidence of the number of existing MRI units that service the non-Tennessee
counties and the impact on MRI unit utilization in the non-Tennessee counties, including
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the specific location of those units located in the non-Tennessee counties, their utilization
rates, and their capacity (if that data are available).

3. Economic Efficiencies. All applicants for any proposed new MRI Unit should document that
alternate shared services and lower cost technology applications have been investigated
and found less advantageous in terms of accessibility, availability, continuity, cost, and
quality of care.

The mobile unit is currently operating 4 days per week in Clarksville, as well as, operating at two
other locations on different days. Expanding services at the current location using the mobile is
not possible. The inability to expand the mobile services in Clarksville along with the relatively low
cost of installing a previously-owned MRI unit make this project the most logical and cost effective
alternative

4. Need Standard for non-Specialty MRI Units.

A need likely exists for one additional non-Specialty MRI unit in a Service Area when the
combined average utilization of existing MRI service providers is at or above 80% of the
total capacity of 3600 procedures, or 2880 procedures, during the most recent twelve-
month period reflected in the provider medical equipment report maintained by the HSDA.
The total capacity per MRI unit is based upon the following formula:

Stationary MRI Units: 1.20 procedures per hour x twelve hours per day x 5 days per week
x 50 weeks per year = 3,600 procedures per year

Mobile MRI Units: Twelve (12) procedures per day x days per week in operation x 50
weeks per year. For each day of operation per week, the optimal efficiency is 480
procedures per year, or 80 percent of the total capacity of 600 procedures per year.

HSDA Service Area 2014 MRI Equipment Utilization

Facility County Fixed Procedures Mobile Procedures
Clarksville Imaging Center, LLC Montgomery 1 3,426 0 0
Gateway Medical Center Montgomery 2 4,617 0 0
Mobile MRI Services, LLC Montgomery 0 0 1 65
Premier Medical Group, P.C Montgomery 1 1,453 0 0
Tennessee Orthopedic Alliance Montgomery 1 1,976 0 0
NorthCrest Medical Center Robertson 1 3,407 0 0
Total 6 14879 1 65

Source: HSDA 8/10/15 Equipment Utilization

Per the 2014 HSDA Equipment Registry, there were 6 fixed MRI units in operation in the applicant
service area with a total of 14,879 exams performed. The average annual exam volume per unit
was 2,480 exams. This represents 86% of the 2,880 minimum annual average per the MRI criteria
for providers in the service area.

5. Need Standards for Specialty MRI Units.

Item 5, in its entirety, is non applicable.

a. Dedicated fixed or mobile Breast MRI Unit. An applicant proposing to acquire a
dedicated fixed or mobile breast MRI unit shall not receive a CON to use the MRI
unit for non-dedicated purposes and shall demonstrate that annual utilization of
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the proposed MRI unit in the third year of operation is projected to be at least
1,600 MRI procedures (.80 times the total capacity of 1 procedure per hour times
40 hours per week times 50 weeks per year), and that:

1. It has an existing and ongoing working relationship with a breast-imaging
radiologist or radiology proactive group that has experience interpreting breast
images provided by mammography, ultrasound, and MRI unit equipment, and
that is trained to interpret images produced by an MRI unit configured
exclusively for mammographic studies;

2. Its existing mammography equipment, breast ultrasound equipment, and the
proposed dedicated breast MRI unit are in compliance with the federal
Mammography Quality Standards Act;

3. [Itis part of or has a formal affiliation with an existing healthcare system that
provides comprehensive cancer care, including radiation oncology, medical
oncology, surgical oncology and an established breast cancer treatment
program that is based in the proposed service area.

4. It has an existing relationship with an established collaborative team for the
treatment of breast cancer that includes radiologists, pathologists, radiation
oncologists, hematologist/oncologists, surgeons, obstetricians/gynecologists,
and primary care providers.

b. Dedicated fixed or mobile Extremity MRI Unit. An applicant proposing to institute
a Dedicated fixed or mobile Extremity MRI Unit shall provide documentation of the
total capacity of the proposed MRI Unit based on the number of days of operation
each week, the number of days to be operated each year, the nhumber of hours to
be operated each day, and the average number of MRI procedures the unit is
capable of performing each hour. The applicant shall then demonstrate that
annual utilization of the proposed MRI Unit in the third year of operation is
reasonably projected to be at least 80 per cent of the total capacity. Non-specialty
MRI procedures shall not be performed on a Dedicated fixed or mobile Extremity
MRI Unit and a CON granted for this use should so state on its face.

c. Dedicated fixed or mobile Multi-position MRI Unit. An applicant proposing to
institute a Dedicated fixed or mobile Multi-position MRI Unit shall provide
documentation of the total capacity of the proposed MRI Unit based on the
number of days of operation each week, the number of days to be operated each
year, the number of hours to be operated each day, and the average number of
MRI procedures the unit is capable of performing each hour. The applicant shall
then demonstrate that annual utilization of the proposed MRI Unit in the third year
of operation is reasonably projected to be at least 80 per cent of the total capacity.
Non-specialty MRI procedures shall not be performed on a Dedicated fixed or
mobile Multi-position MRI Unit and a CON granted for this use should so state on
its face.
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6. Separate Inventories for Specialty MRI Units and non-Specialty MRI Units. If data
availability permits, Breast, Extremity, and Multi-position MRI Units shall not be counted in
the inventory of non-Specialty fixed or mobile MRI Units, and an inventory for each
category of Specialty MRI Unit shall be counted and maintained separately. None of the
Specialty MRI Units may be replaced with non-Specialty MRI fixed or mobile MRI Units and
a Certificate of Need granted for any of these Specialty MRI Units shall have included on
its face a statement to that effect. A non-Specialty fixed or mobile MRI Unit for which a
CON is granted for Specialty MRI Unit purpose use-only shall be counted in the specific
Specialty MRI Unit inventory and shall also have stated on the face of its Certificate of
Need that it may not be used for non-Specialty MRI purposes.

Not applicable.

7. Patient Safety and Quality of Care. The applicant shall provide evidence that any proposed
MRI Unit is safe and effective for its proposed use.

a. The United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) must certify the proposed MRI
Unit for clinical use.

A copy of the FDA conformity letter is provided on page 142 of the application.

b. The applicant should demonstrate that the proposed MRI Procedures will be offered in
a physical environment that conforms to applicable federal standards, manufacturer’s
specifications, and licensing agencies’ requirements.

As a current operating Outpatient Diagnostic Center, the physical environment
conforms to federal, local, and licensing agency standards. The applicant included
Attachment 3 of the application stating the renovations to convert from mobile MRI
services to a fixed MRI site will conform to all required specifications.

C. The applicant should demonstrate how emergencies within the MRI Unit facility will be
managed in conformity with accepted medical practice.

The applicant has arranged for two physicians practicing in the same building to
supervise the administration of MRI contrast and in the event of an emergency. A
properly stocked crash will be maintained at all times.

d. The applicant should establish protocols that assure that all MRI Procedures performed
are medically necessary and will not unnecessarily duplicate other services.

e. An applicant proposing to acquire any MRI Unit or institute any MRI service, including
Dedicated Breast and Extremity MRI Units, shall demonstrate that it meets or is
prepared to meet the staffing recommendations and requirements set forth by the
American College of Radiology, including staff education and training programs.

The applicant will use the current clerical and technical staff along with ACR board
certified radiologists for exam interpretation.
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f. Al applicants shall commit to obtain accreditation from the Joint Commission, the
American College of Radiology, or a comparable accreditation authority for MRI within
two years following operation of the proposed MRI Unit.

The current Mobile unit is accredited with the American College of Radiology through
August 2017. Applicant states on page 15 that the fixed MRI unit will be ACR accredited.

g. All applicants should seek and document emergency transfer agreements with local
area hospitals, as appropriate. An applicant’s arrangements with its physician medical
director must specify that said physician be an active member of the subject transfer
agreement hospital medical staff.

The applicant provides a transfer agreement on page 231 of the application with four
of the middle Tennessee, Saint Thomas hospitals. Transfer agreement with Tennova
Healthcare Clarksville will also be sought.

8. The applicant should provide assurances that it will submit data in a timely fashion as
requested by the HSDA to maintain the HSDA Equipment Registry.

The applicant states they will continue to submit all HSDA data as required.

9. In light of Rule 0720-11.01, which lists the factors concerning need on which an
application may be evaluated, and Principle No. 2 in the State Health Plan, “Every citizen
should have reasonable access to health care,” the HSDA may decide to give special
consideration to an applicant:

a. Who is offering the service in a medically underserved area as designated by the
United States Health Resources and Services Administration;

Houston, Montgomery, Robertson and Stewart counties of Tennessee are medically
unserved areas.

b. Who is a “safety net hospital” or a “children’s hospital” as defined by the Bureau of
TennCare Essential Access Hospital payment program; or

Project does not qualify.

¢c. Who provides a written commitment of intention to contract with at least one
TennCare MCO and, if providing adult services, to participate in the Medicare
program; or

The applicant participates in the four TennCare MCOs operating in the area, as well as
the Medicare program.

d. Who is proposing to use the MRI unit for patients that typically require longer
preparation and scanning times (e.g., pediatric, special needs, sedated, and
contrast agent use patients). The applicant shall provide in its application
information supporting the additional time required per scan and the impact on the
need standard.

Project does not qualify.
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